
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Wednesday, 27 May 2020. 
 01476 406080

Karen Bradford, Chief Executive
www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

    

Thursday, 4 June 2020 at 2.00 pm
This meeting will be held by remote conferencing using 

Skype for Business

Committee 
Members:

Councillor Ian Stokes (Chairman)
Councillor Paul Wood (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Ashley Baxter, Councillor Chris Benn, Councillor Gloria Johnson, Councillor 
Mark Whittington and Councillor Sue Woolley

Agenda
Virtual Meeting - Joining Arrangements
Councillors should access the meeting using the link in their calendar.

Members of the press and public can gain access to the meeting by using the following link:

Governance and Audit Committee - 4 June 2020

If you are using a smartphone or tablet it may be necessary to download the Skype for Business app 
before you can enter the meeting; please allow yourself time to do this. If you are using a laptop or 
desktop computer, you should be able to access the meeting via your web browser.

When you follow the link to the meeting you will enter a virtual lobby; you will be invited into the 
meeting from the lobby just before the meeting begins. Members of the public should not use the 
Chat function in Skype for Business. This is for use by Councillors, who will use it to indicate that 
they would like to speak.

If you have any questions about how to join the meeting, please e-mail 
democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk.

Governance 
and Audit 
Committee

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
https://meet.southkesteven.gov.uk/d3/VBQ0Z727?sl=1
mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk


1.  Register of attendance, membership and apologies for absence

2.  Disclosure of interests
Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting.

3.  Minutes of the meeting held on 18 December 2019 (Pages 3 - 11)

4.  Updates from previous meeting

5.  External Audit Plan
Report of the Council’s External Auditors, Grant Thornton, giving an overview
of the planned scope and timing of the statutory audit of the final accounts and
the Value for Money work for the financial year 2019/20.

(Pages 13 - 31)

6.  Internal Audit Progress Report
Report from the Council’s Internal Auditors, RSM, giving a summary update on
progress against the Internal Audit Plan 2019/20.

(Pages 33 - 91)

7.  Internal Audit Annual Report
Report from the Council’s Internal Auditors, RSM.

(Pages 93 - 103)

8.  Internal Audit Plan 2020/21
Report from the Council’s Internal Auditors, RSM, presenting the Internal Audit
Plan 2020/21 for consideration by the Committee.

(Pages 105 - 120)

9.  2019/20 Accounting Policies and changes to the deadline for the 
publication of the Statement of Accounts
Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources.

(Pages 121 - 144)

10.  Risk Management Framework - proposed changes
Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources.

(Pages 145 - 156)

11.  Work Programme
The Committee to consider the draft 2020/21 work programme.

(Pages 157 - 160)

12.  Any other business, which the chairman, by reasons of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent.



Minutes
Governance and Audit Committee
Wednesday, 18 December 2019

Committee Members present

Councillor Ashley Baxter
Councillor David Bellamy
Councillor Chris Benn
Councillor Gloria Johnson

Councillor Mark Whittington
Councillor Paul Wood (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Sue Woolley

Cabinet Members

Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance
Councillor Robert Reid, Cabinet Member for Communities and HR

Other Members

Councillor Jacky Smith

Officers External Audit

Paul Harvey (Grant Thornton)

Internal Audit 

Director of Finance (Richard Wyles)
Head of Finance (Alison Hall-Wright)
Head of Customer Experience and IT 
(Nova Roberts)
Governance and Risk Officer (Tracey 
Elliott)
Procurement Lead (Clare Ellis)
Democratic Officer (Naomi Page)

Chris Williams (RSM)
Amjad Ali (RSM)

28. Membership

The Committee was notified that Councillor Bellamy would be substituting for 
Councillor Stokes for this meeting only. Councillor Wood would be chairing the 
meeting in the Chairman’s absence.

29. Disclosure of interests

No interests were disclosed.

3

Agenda Item 3



30. Minutes of the meeting held on 25 September 2019

The minutes of the meeting held on 25 September 2019 were proposed, 
seconded and agreed as a correct record.

31. Updates from previous meeting

Members asked if the safeguarding training requested at item 25 in the 
minutes of the last meeting had been arranged. It was confirmed that 
preferred dates were being considered and the relevant officer would be 
contacted to finalise details for this in the new year.  

32. Certification of the 2018/19 Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim

The committee was given a verbal update on the certification of the 2018/19 
Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim. It was explained that in previous years this 
had been included in the ‘Certifications of Grants and Returns’ report. 
However, as Housing Benefit payments had been removed from the 
framework this year, there was no longer need for a report to be given on the 
Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim. There were no major payments to be noted 
and no significant errors to report. One incorrect figure had been included in 
the calculation, which had let to a £3 underpayment.  

33. Internal Audit Update including Internal Audit Indicative Plan 2020/21

Internal Audit Progress Report 

The Council’s Internal Auditors, RSM, presented the Internal Audit Progress 
Report. The Internal Audit plan was on track to be delivered by the end of 
March 2020. Five audit assignments had been finalised since the last meeting 
of the committee; Communication- Social Media, IT Project Management, 
Enforcement- Littering, Complaints and Freedom of Information and Health 
and Safety Arrangements and Reporting. Positive assurance opinions had 
been concluded from four of these assignments and a partial assurance 
opinion concluded regarding IT Project Management. Changes to the audit 
plan had been made in respect of two reviews, which had been moved to 
quarter 4 and an additional advisory review had been requested in respect of 
cash handling processes.

Members were asked if they had any questions regarding the report:

 The committee sought assurance that steps had been put in place to 
address the findings which had resulted in the partial assurance 
conclusion for the IT Project Management audit. The Head of Customer 
Experience and IT reassured Members that although there had been a 
lack of formal project management documentation in relation to some 
of the recent IT projects, implementation dates had been agreed for all 
of the management actions suggested by the Internal Auditors and the 

4



required documentation had now been developed and would be 
monitored moving forward. In addition to this, project management 
training had been given to relevant officers and further engagement 
with risk management had been introduced to improve the facilitation of 
future projects. 

 One Member commented that throughout the audit assignments 
reported on, there appeared to have been a number of occasions 
where an absence of formal documentation had occurred. The Director 
of Finance explained that this could be partially attributed the nature of 
the audit process; the Internal Auditors were asked to review areas 
where senior officers felt there were already indications that 
improvements may be needed, so it was expected that management 
actions would be suggested following most of the audits requested. 

 The Chairman thanked the Internal Auditors for their thorough reports 
and noted the positive steps taken by officers to implement the 
management actions suggested following the IT Project Management 
audit. He asked whether it was usual for most audit areas to achieve a 
reasonable rather than substantial assurance within Local Authorities. 
The Internal Auditors explained that the framework was intended to 
highlight areas that could be improved and that in large and complex 
organisations there would inevitably be instances where 
inconsistencies could be identified. The committee were reminded that 
a reasonable assurance opinion would have a positive impact on the 
annual opinion. 

 One Member asked how the Communications- Social Media audit was 
measured. The Internal Auditors confirmed that the audit undertaken 
had measured how effectively the Council had implemented its control 
framework regarding social media, rather than how successful it had 
been in reaching the target audience (which would be a matter for one 
of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees to consider).

 One Member wished to note the positive outcome of the audit 
regarding Enforcement- Littering. 

 The Internal Auditors were asked if the audit of Complaints and 
Freedom of Information had incorporated the accuracy of the 
responses received. It was confirmed that the review had considered 
the process the Council was required to follow, rather than the 
accuracy of the content within the response. 

Internal Audit Follow Up Report

The Internal Auditors then presented the Follow-up report, which reviewed the 
progress made to implement the previously agreed management actions. Ten 
out of the twenty five previously agreed actions had been implemented and it 

5



was reported that reasonable progress had been made. The committee asked 
if the Internal Auditors were satisfied with the level of implementation 
achieved. It was confirmed that any actions not yet implemented would 
continue to be monitored through the updated action plan which the Auditors 
had considered satisfactory.

Internal Audit Indicative Plan 2020/21

Attention then turned to the Internal Audit Indicative Plan 2020/21. The 
committee were informed that the document would be finalised after 
consultation with the Chairman of the Governance and Audit Committee and 
the Council’s Management Team. It would then be presented to the committee 
for approval in March 2020. 

Members were asked if they had any comments to feed into the development 
of the Internal Audit Plan 2020/21:

 One Member referred to the indication within the Indicative Plan that 
the Leisure Centre Service Level Agreements (SLAs) would be 
reviewed, and asked what the goal of this audit would be, given the 
current review of the Leisure Centre service provision in South 
Kesteven and the plans to procure a new contract. It was explained that 
as the initial plans were set 15 months previously, some of the audits 
would need to be refocused as they would now be out of date. The 
Leisure Centre audit could look at the developmental place of SLAs in 
the future, or capture the lessons learned previously to feed into new 
contract specifications moving forward. 

 It was suggested that consultants and agency workers be an area for 
review, including the way they were appointed and how fees were set.

 Partnership working was also suggested as an area for audit, in order 
to seek assurance that value for money was being sought and that 
partnership groups were being worked with efficiently. 

The committee agreed that the contents of the Internal Audit Update Report, 
Internal Audit Follow Up Report and Internal Audit Indicative Plan 2020/21 had 
been reviewed and noted. It was confirmed that the Chairman of the 
Committee would be contacting Members in due course to seek any further 
suggestions with reference to the Internal Audit Indicative Plan 2020/21 prior 
to his meeting with RSM.

34. Risk Management Annual Report 2018-19 including proposed changes to 
the Risk Management Framework

The committee were presented with the Risk Management Annual Report 
2018/19. The report reviewed the work undertaken in the 2018/19 financial 
year to mitigate any risks as well as outlining the proposed changes to the 
way the Council undertook its risk management. The Risk Management 
Framework had been revised and approved by the Governance and Audit 

6



Committee in September 2018. The Risk Management Group had met 
periodically to provide peer group challenge relating to risk management, 
internal audit, insurance, counter fraud, governance, procurement, business 
continuity and safeguarding. The Service Risk Register had also been 
reviewed. 

As the Corporate Risk Register had been in its current format for a number of 
years, the Council had invited RSM to work with the corporate team to 
develop risk appetite and move from a Corporate Risk Register to a Strategic 
Risk Register. It was also proposed to revise the Annual Assurance Statement 
to align with the Corporate Controls Assurance and to create a defined plan 
for dealing with emerging and exceptional risks. It was intended that 
Corporate Controls would be periodically reported on to the Governance and 
Audit Committee. The Strategic Risk Register would include the current 
Corporate Risks whilst developing the current Corporate Risk Themes further 
to create a new narrative. If the proposed changes as outlined in appendix B 
were approved by the Committee, the information shown on the document 
would be developed to give a clearer understanding of which risks would fall 
under each of the headings. 

Members were asked if they had any questions regarding the proposed 
changes to the Risk Management Framework:

 One Member expressed concern that having a series of documents 
could lead to a loss of oversight for emerging risks. Officers confirmed 
that separation was already present under the current framework and 
reassured the committee that levels of risk would remain under the 
same definitions and would be overseen by the same officers. If service 
level operational risks became urgent, they would be escalated as 
necessary.   

 Officers were asked how the Council-owned companies were factored 
into the Risk Framework. It was explained that the companies were 
monitored by the Companies Committee and sat outside of the 
Council’s Risk Management Framework as external entities. The 
Companies were given grant payments to deliver outcomes so the 
financial risks to the Council were not deemed significant. However, if 
Members wished to address the individual Risk Management 
Framework arrangements in place within the companies, this could be 
approached via the Companies Committee. 

Officers informed the Committee that as part of the review of the Risk 
Management Framework, a Risk Appetite Matrix would also be developed 
with Members’ input to outline the desired level of risk in different areas. 
This would be considered by the Governance and Audit Committee at a 
later date.

It was proposed, seconded and AGREED:

7



 To approve the proposed changes to the Risk Management 
Framework as detailed in Appendix B

 That the documents demonstrating the implemented changes be 
presented to the Governance and Audit Committee at its meeting in 
March 2020 for approval

35. Treasury Management activity 2019/20 mid-year review

The Head of Finance presented the report relating to the Treasury 
Management Activity 2019/20 Mid-Year Review. The report contained a 
review of the Council’s debt management and investment operations along 
with an update on the treasury management Prudential Code Indicators and 
an economic update for the first part of the 2019/20 financial year. 

Members were asked if they had any questions concerning the report or the 
appended documents:

 One Member asked how the Council would come to the decision 
regarding the refinancing of the £25m loan maturing in March 2020, as 
referenced in the report at point 2.2. Officers explained that advice 
would be taken from Link treasury advisors. 

 Officers were asked if the Council had a minimum risk rating 
concerning which institutions it would hold short term investments with. 
The committee were told that the Council would only invest with 
counterparties identified on Link’s approved lists. Link carried out risk 
analyses for those included on these lists and the Council usually 
chose to hold investments with those holding an AAA rating.

It was proposed, seconded and AGREED:

 To approve the contents of the Treasury Management Activity 2019/20 
Mid-Year Review report

36. Review of Financial Regulations

The committee were presented with the report of the Cabinet Member for 
Finance regarding the review of the Financial Regulations. Following a review 
of the regulations, changes had been proposed to benchmark South 
Kesteven’s regulations with other councils and to update and improve the 
content in a number of areas. Notable proposed changes included the review 
of officer authorisation limits and the amended procedure for approving in-year 
budget modifications. If approved, the changes would also see the two 
documents comprising the current set of regulations amalgamated into one to 
provide greater clarity for Members and officers. If the Governance and Audit 
Committee recommended to Council the updated Financial Regulations, they 
would be considered at the January meeting of Council. 

8



Members were asked if they had any questions arising from the report:

 Members enquired as to the proposed new limits up to which Cabinet 
had the delegated authority to approve in-year additions to budgets. 
Officers explained that under the reviewed Financial Regulations, there 
would be a £150k threshold for individual additions up to a cumulative 
limit of £500k per year. This proposed change was a measured 
approach and was more in line with other local authorities, whilst still 
providing the appropriate level of governance and scrutiny.      

 Officers were asked if the revised Financial Regulations would also 
apply to the Council owned companies, specifically referencing 
InvestSK. It was explained that the regulations under discussion 
applied to how the Council managed its own finances. The companies 
owned or part-owned by the Council would not be governed by the 
same regulations. Some Members expressed concern as they felt that 
the Council had an obligation to oversee how the funding given to the 
companies was spent. It was explained that the companies were held 
to account based on their Strategic Business Plans, and that the 
Companies Committee held responsibility for ensuring that their 
performance was evaluated sufficiently. It was possible for the Articles 
of Association for Council owned companies to state that the company 
must adopt the policies and regulations that the Council itself had in 
place, but this was not currently the case in the main.  

 One Member referred to the authorisation and approval tables 
regarding bad debt write-off, emergency payments and virements 
within the report and suggested that Cabinet Members could be 
required to authorise payment from lower specified amounts to allow 
more sight for elected Members as to the movement of finances and 
the effects on Council budgets. The Member put forward a proposal to 
bring in the Member Lead approval for virements at one step above 
where it currently sat in the table on page 56 of the Financial 
Regulations. The proposal was not seconded.       

It was proposed, seconded and AGREED:

 To recommend to Council the updated Financial Regulations as shown 
in Appendix A of the report

37. Contract Procedure Rules

The Cabinet Member for Communities and HR presented the report regarding 
the Contract Procedure Rules update. He made reference to the procurement 
savings agreed within the current budget, which would not be deliverable by 
the end of the financial year. A review of the Contract Procedure Rules 
(CPRs) had been undertaken to ensure that they were up to date and 
consistent with those of other Welland partners, following the change in the 
Council’s procurement service from Procurement Lincolnshire to Welland 
Procurement in the past year. A new Procurement Lead was now in place to 

9



coordinate this area. Should the updated CPRs be approved by Council, their 
adoption would be followed up by training for relevant officers. It was intended 
that the updated CPRs would be easier to access and follow, to encourage 
maximum compliance across all service areas and promote increased 
procurement savings moving forward in order to meet budgeted savings 
targets.  

Members were given the opportunity to ask any questions arising from the 
report or the appended draft Contract Procedure Rules:

 Further information was requested regarding the Welland Procurement 
partnership. The partnership consisted of a number of local authorities, 
with Melton Borough Council as the host authority. The decision to 
move the Council’s procurement service to Welland had been 
previously considered by the relevant Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. A forecast procurement saving was anticipated in 2019/20 
and it was anticipated that savings of £350k could be made in the 
2020/21 period. 

 One Member suggested that it would be useful for officers to have 
access to a check list section within the document to ensure that the 
correct documentation and procedures had been followed at the time of 
contract approvals. It was confirmed that there was a procurement 
toolkit hyperlinked within the electronic version of the document which 
covered this suggestion. 

It was proposed, seconded and AGREED:

 To recommend to Council the adoption of the revised set of Contract 
Procedure Rules. 

38. Local Government Ombudsman Annual Report 2018/19

The Committee were presented with the Local Government Ombudsman 
Annual Report 2018/19. The Head of Customer Experience and IT explained 
to the committee that each year the Council received an annual review letter 
from the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman regarding the 
number and type of complaints received in relation to the authority and the 
decisions reached for these complaints. In the period 1 April 2018 to 31 March 
2019, the Local Government Ombudsman had received 15 complaints 
regarding South Kesteven District Council, which was the same as in the 
previous year . A 0% upheld rate had been achieved for these complaints 
following any necessary investigations. Members wished to note the 
commendable outcome of the annual review letter.  

39. Any other business, which the chairman, by reasons of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent.

There was no urgent business to discuss.

10



40. Close of meeting

The meeting closed at 16:04.

11



This page is intentionally left blank



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Kesteven District Council  |  2019/20

External Audit Plan
Year ending 31 March 2020

South Kesteven District Council

April 202013

A
genda Item

 5



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Kesteven District Council  |  2019/20 2

Contents

Section Page

1. Introduction & headlines 3

2. Key matters impacting our audit 4                                                                                           

3. Significant risks identified      5

4. Other matters 9

5. Materiality 10

6. Value for Money arrangements 11

7. Audit logistics & team 12

8.    Audit fees 13

9. Independence & non-audit services 15

Appendix

A. Audit quality – national context 17

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit planning process. It is not a
comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and in particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect the
Authority or all weaknesses in your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent.
We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for,
nor intended for, any other purpose.

Your key Grant Thornton 
team members are:

John Gregory

Key Audit Partner

T:  0121 232 5333

E: John.Gregory@uk.gt.com

Paul Harvey

Manager

T: 0116 257 5589

E: Paul.M.Harvey@uk.gt.com

Phil Wood

Assistant Manager

T: 0121 232 5236

E: Philip.Wood@uk.gt.com

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members 
is available from our registered office.  Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant 
Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents 
of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

14



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Kesteven District Council  |  2019/20 3

1. Introduction & headlines
Purpose

This document provides an overview of the planned scope and timing of the statutory
audit of South Kesteven District Council (‘the Authority’) for those charged with
governance.

Respective responsibilities

The National Audit Office (‘the NAO’) has issued a document entitled Code of Audit
Practice (‘the Code’). This summarises where the responsibilities of auditors begin
and end and what is expected from the audited body. Our respective responsibilities
are also set out in the Terms of Appointment and Statement of Responsibilities
issued by Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA), the body responsible for
appointing us as auditor of [insert name of organisation]. We draw your attention to
both of these documents on the PSAA website

Scope of our audit

The scope of our audit is set in accordance with the Code and International Standards on
Auditing (ISAs) (UK). We are responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the :

• Authority’s financial statements that have been prepared by management with the
oversight of those charged with governance (the Governance and Audit committee); and

• Value for Money arrangements in place at the Authority for securing economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in your use of resources.

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or the Governance and
Audit Committee of your responsibilities. It is the responsibility of the Authority to ensure that
proper arrangements are in place for the conduct of its business, and that public money is
safeguarded and properly accounted for. We have considered how the Authority is fulfilling
these responsibilities.

Our audit approach is based on a thorough understanding of the Authority's business and is
risk based.

Significant risks Those risks requiring special audit consideration and procedures to address the likelihood of a material financial statement error have been 
identified as:

• Management override of controls

• Valuation of land and buildings

• Valuation of net pension fund liability

• Covid-19

We will communicate significant findings on these areas as well as any other significant matters arising from the audit to you in our Audit 
Findings (ISA 260) Report.

Materiality We have determined planning materiality to be £1.4m (PY £1.4m) for the Authority, which equates to 2% of your prior year gross 
expenditure for the year. We are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to 
those charged with governance. Clearly trivial has been set at £70k (PY £70k). 

Value for Money arrangements Our risk assessment regarding your arrangements to secure value for money has identified the following VFM significant risk:

• The Council’s financial sustainability and the MTFP.

Audit logistics Our interim visit took place in February and our final visit will take place in September.  Our key deliverables are this Audit Plan and our 
Audit Findings Report. Our audit approach is detailed in Appendix A.

Our fee for the audit will be £43,900 (PY: £43,100) for the Authority, subject to the Authority meeting our requirements set out on page 13.

Independence We have complied with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are 
independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements.

15



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Kesteven District Council  |  2019/20 4

2. Key matters impacting our audit

Factors

Our response

.

The wider economy and political uncertainty

At a national level, the government continues its negotiation with the EU over Brexit, and future 
arrangements remain clouded in uncertainty. The Authority will need to ensure that it is prepared for all 
outcomes, including in terms of any impact on contracts, on service delivery and on its support for local 
people and businesses. 

Local Government funding continues to be stretched with increasing cost pressures and demand from 
residents.  The 2019/20 budget contained £246,000 of funding from the use of reserves which is being 
used to fund specific approved expenditure. The forecast out-turn position for the year at Q3 includes a 
reserve movement of £212,000 for approved expenditure. However there is a forecast budget deficit of 
£182,000 that is being addressed and has been reduced between quarters 2 and 3.

Council tax makes up 49% of funding as a whole. Revenue  budgets have been increased to meet 
service demand, provide funding for Council ambitions and to meet inflationary pressures only. The 
authority has assumed forecast reductions in funding as a result of business rates reset and the impact of 
the fair funding review.  This prudent forecast of funding levels is resulting in a funding shortfall of  circa 
£1,009k in 2021/22 and £1,302k in 2022/23.

While this position is far less severe than that faced by many authorities, it will still require careful 
planning and management.

We will consider your arrangements for managing and reporting your financial resources as part of our 
work in reaching our Value for Money conclusion.

We will consider whether your financial position leads to material uncertainty about the going concern of 
the Authority and will review related disclosures in the financial statements. 

Financial reporting and audit – raising the bar 

The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) has set out its expectation of 
improved financial reporting from organisations and the need for 
auditors to demonstrate increased scepticism and challenge, and to 
undertake more robust testing as detailed in Appendix 1.  

Our work in 2018/19 has highlighted areas where local government 
financial reporting, in particular, property, plant and equipment and 
pensions, needs to be improved, with a corresponding increase in 
audit procedures. We have also identified an increase in the 
complexity of local government financial transactions which require 
greater audit scrutiny.

As a firm, we are absolutely committed to meeting the expectations of 
the FRC with regard to audit quality and local government financial 
reporting. Our proposed work and fee, as set further in our Audi Plan, 
has been agreed with the Director of Finance and is subject to PSAA 
agreement. 

16



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Kesteven District Council  |  2019/20 5

3. Significant risks identified
Significant risks are defined by ISAs (UK) as risks that, in the judgement of the auditor, require special audit consideration. In identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, 
the potential magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood. Significant risks are those risks that have a higher risk of material misstatement.

Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

The revenue cycle includes 
fraudulent transactions (rebutted)

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed risk that revenue may 
be misstated due to the improper recognition of revenue.
This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor concludes that there is no 
risk of material misstatement due to fraud relating to revenue recognition.

Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the 
revenue streams at the Authority, we have determined that the risk of 
fraud arising from revenue recognition can be rebutted, because:

• there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition

• opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited

• the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including 
Rutland County Council, mean that all forms of fraud are seen as 
unacceptable

Therefore we do not consider this to be a significant risk for South 
Kesteven County Council.

Management over-ride of controls Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed risk that the risk 
of management over-ride of controls is present in all entities. The 
Authority faces external scrutiny of its spending and this could potentially 
place management under undue pressure in terms of how they report 
performance.

We therefore identified management override of control, in particular 
journals, management estimates and transactions outside the course of 
business as a significant risk, which was one of the most significant 
assessed risks of material misstatement.

We will:

• evaluate the design effectiveness of management controls 
over journals

• analyse the journals listing and determine the criteria for 
selecting high risk unusual journals 

• test unusual journals recorded during the year and after the 
draft accounts stage for appropriateness and corroboration

• gain an understanding of the accounting estimates and critical  
judgements applied made by management and consider their 
reasonableness with regard to corroborative evidence

• evaluate the rationale for any changes in accounting policies, 
estimates or significant unusual transactions.

17



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Kesteven District Council  |  2019/20 6

Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Valuation of land and buildings 
(Rolling revaluation)

The Authority revalues its land and buildings on a rolling 
five-yearly basis. This valuation represents a significant 
estimate by management in the financial statements due 
to the size of the numbers involved (£303 million) and the 
sensitivity of this estimate to changes in key assumptions.
Additionally, management will need to ensure the carrying 
value in the Authority financial statements is not materially 
different from the current value at the financial statements 
date, where a rolling programme is used.

We therefore identified valuation of land and buildings,
particularly revaluations and impairments, as a significant
risk, which was one of the most significant assessed risks
of material misstatement.

We will:

• evaluate management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the
estimate, the instructions issued to valuation experts and the scope of their
work

• evaluate the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the valuation expert

• write to the valuer to confirm the basis on which the valuation was carried out

• challenge the information and assumptions used by the valuer to assess
completeness and consistency with our understanding, the Authority’s valuer’s
report and the assumptions that underpin the valuation.

• test revaluations made during the year to see if they had been input correctly
into the Authority's asset register

• evaluating the assumptions made by management for those assets not
revalued during the year and how management has satisfied themselves that
these are not materially different to current value at year end.

Significant risks identified

18



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Kesteven District Council  |  2019/20 7

Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Valuation of the pension fund net 
liability

The Authority's pension fund net liability,
as reflected in its balance sheet as the net defined benefit
liability, represents a significant estimate in the financial 
statements. 

The pension fund net liability is considered a significant 
estimate due to the size of the numbers involved (£57.3 
million in the Authority’s balance sheet) and the sensitivity 
of the estimate to changes in key assumptions.

We therefore identified valuation of the Authority’s 
pension fund net liability as a significant risk, which was 
one of the most significant assessed risks of material 
misstatement.

We will:

• update our understanding of the processes and controls put in place by 
management to ensure that the Authority’s pension fund net liability is not 
materially misstated and evaluate the design of the associated controls;

• evaluate the instructions issued by management  to their management expert 
(an actuary) for this estimate and the scope of the actuary’s work;

• assess the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the actuary who carried 
out the Authority’s pension fund valuation; 

• assess the accuracy and completeness of the information provided by the 
Authority to the actuary to estimate the liability;

• test the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures in 
the notes to the core financial statements with the actuarial report from the 
actuary;

• undertake procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial 
assumptions made by reviewing the report of the consulting actuary (as 
auditor’s expert) and performing any additional procedures suggested within 
the report; and

• obtain assurances from the auditor of Lincolnshire Pension Fund as to the 
controls surrounding the validity and accuracy of membership data; 
contributions data and benefits data sent to the actuary by the pension fund 
and the fund assets valuation in the pension fund financial statements.

Significant risks identified

We will communicate significant findings on these areas as well as any other significant matters arising from the audit to you in our Audit Findings Report in July 2020.

19



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Kesteven District Council  |  2019/20 8

Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Covid – 19 The global outbreak of the Covid-19 virus pandemic has led 
to unprecedented uncertainty for all organisations, requiring 
urgent business continuity arrangements to be implemented. 
We expect current circumstances will have an impact on the 
production and audit of the financial statements for the year 
ended 31 March 2020, including and not limited to;

- Remote working arrangements and redeployment of staff 
to critical front line duties may impact on the quality and 
timing of the production of the financial statements, and 
the evidence we can obtain through physical observation

- Volatility of financial and property markets will increase 
the uncertainty of assumptions applied by management to 
asset valuation and receivable recovery estimates, and 
the reliability of evidence we can obtain to corroborate 
management estimates

- Financial uncertainty will require management to 
reconsider financial forecasts supporting their going 
concern assessment and whether material uncertainties 
for a period of at least 12 months from the anticipated 
date of approval of the audited financial statements have 
arisen; and 

- Disclosures within the financial statements will require 
significant revision to reflect the unprecedented situation 
and its impact on the preparation of the financial 
statements as at 31 March 2020 in accordance with IAS1, 
particularly in relation to material uncertainties.

We therefore identified the global outbreak of the Covid-19 
virus as a significant risk, which was one of the most 
significant assessed risks of material misstatement

We will:

• Work with management to understand the implications the response to the 
Covid-19 pandemic has on the organisation’s ability to prepare the financial 
statements and update financial forecasts and assess the implications on our 
audit approach

• Liaise with other audit suppliers, regulators and government departments to 
co-ordinate practical cross sector responses to issues as and when they arise 

• Evaluate the adequacy of the disclosures in the financial statements  in light 
of the Covid-19 pandemic.

• Evaluate whether sufficient audit evidence using alternative approaches can 
be obtained for the purposes of our audit whilst working remotely

• Evaluate whether sufficient audit evidence can be obtained to corroborate 
significant management estimates such as asset valuations and recovery of 
receivable balances

• Evaluate management’s assumptions that underpin the revised financial 
forecasts and the impact on management’s going concern assessment

• Discuss with management any potential implications for our audit report if we 
have been unable to obtain sufficient audit evidence

For our public sector audited bodies, we appreciate the significant responsibility 
and burden your staff have to ensure vital public services are provided. As far we 
can, our aim is to work with you in these unprecedented times, ensuring up to 
date communication and flexibility where possible in our audit procedures.

Significant risks identified

20



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Kesteven District Council  |  2019/20 9

4. Other matters

Other work

In addition to our responsibilities under the Code of Practice, we have a number of other
audit responsibilities, as follows:

• We read your Narrative Report and Annual Governance Statement and any other 
information published alongside your financial statements to check that they are 
consistent with the financial statements on which we give an opinion and consistent 
with our knowledge of the Authority

• We carry out work to satisfy ourselves that disclosures made in your Annual 
Governance Statement are in line with the guidance issued by CIPFA

• We carry out work on your consolidation schedules for the Whole of Government 
Accounts process in accordance with NAO group audit instructions

• We consider our other duties under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the 
Act) and the Code, as and when required, including:

• Giving electors the opportunity to raise questions about your 2019/20 
financial statements, consider and decide upon any objections received in 
relation to the 2019/20 financial statements

• Issue of a report in the public interest or written recommendations to the 
Authority under section 24 of the Act, copied to the Secretary of State

• Application to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary 
to law under Section 28 or for a judicial review under Section 31 of the Act 
or

• Issuing an advisory notice under Section 29 of the Act.

• We certify completion of our audit.

Other material balances and transactions

Under International Standards on Auditing, "irrespective of the assessed risks of material 
misstatement, the auditor shall design and perform substantive procedures for each 
material class of transactions, account balance and disclosure". All other material 
balances and transaction streams will therefore be audited. However, the procedures will 
not be as extensive as the procedures adopted for the risks identified in this report.

Going concern

As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the 
appropriateness of management's use of the going concern assumption in the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is 
a material uncertainty about the Authority's ability to continue as a going concern” (ISA 
(UK) 570). We will review management's assessment of the going concern assumption 
and material uncertainties, and evaluate the disclosures in the financial statements. 

21



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Kesteven District Council  |  2019/20 10

5. Materiality
The concept of materiality

The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements and 
the audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but also to disclosure 
requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and applicable law. 
Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if they, individually or in 
the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of the financial statements.

Materiality for planning purposes

We have determined financial statement materiality based on a proportion of the gross 
expenditure of the Authority for the financial year. In the prior year we used the same 
benchmark. Materiality at the planning stage of our audit is £1.4m (PY £1.4m) for the 
Authority, which equates to 2% of your prior year gross expenditure for the year.  We 
design our procedures to detect errors in specific accounts at a lower level of precision 
which we have determined to be £100k in relation to the disclosure note on the 
remuneration of individual senior officers, which we consider to be sensitive and of interest 
to the public 

We reconsider planning materiality if, during the course of our audit engagement, we 
become aware of facts and circumstances that would have caused us to make a different 
determination of planning materiality.

Matters we will report to the Governance and Audit Committee

Whilst our audit procedures are designed to identify misstatements which are material to 
our opinion on the financial statements as a whole, we nevertheless report to the Audit 
Committee any unadjusted misstatements of lesser amounts to the extent that these are 
identified by our audit work. Under ISA 260 (UK) ‘Communication with those charged with 
governance’, we are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements other than 
those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance. ISA 260 (UK) defines 
‘clearly trivial’ as matters that are clearly inconsequential, whether taken individually or in 
aggregate and whether judged by any quantitative or qualitative criteria.  In the context of 
the Authority, we propose that an individual difference could normally be considered to be 
clearly trivial if it is less than £70k (PY £70k). 

If management have corrected material misstatements identified during the course of the 
audit, we will consider whether those corrections should be communicated to the 
Governance and Audit Committee to assist it in fulfilling its governance responsibilities.

Prior year gross expenditure

£74.4m Authority

(PY: £70.9m)

Materiality

Prior year gross expenditure

Materiality

£1.4m

Authority financial 
statements materiality

(PY: £1.4m)

£70k

Misstatements reported 
to the Governance and 
Audit Committee

(PY: £70k)

22



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Kesteven District Council  |  2019/20 11

6. Value for Money arrangements

Background to our VFM approach

The NAO issued its guidance for auditors on Value for Money work in November 2017. The
guidance states that for Local Government bodies, auditors are required to give a
conclusion on whether the Authority has proper arrangements in place to secure value for
money.

The guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate:

“In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys
resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.”

This is supported by three sub-criteria, as set out below:

Significant VFM risks

Those risks requiring audit consideration and procedures to address the likelihood that 
proper arrangements are not in place at the Authority to deliver value for money.

Financial Sustainability

For 2020/21 the Council is proposing a balanced budget with no use of
General Fund reserves.

The medium term financial strategy (MTFS) to 2022/23 shows funding gaps of
£1,009k in 2021/22 and £1,302k in 2022/23 and officers are working on
addressing these gaps in early 2020/21. The Council have recently appointed
a new Chief Executive and their first priority is to update the Corporate Plan.
An updated MTFS will be developed to supported this updated corporate plan.

We will review the work the Council is undertaking to address the gaps
identified in the Medium Term Financial Strategy. We will also review the
updated Corporate Plan and its effect on the MTFS.

Informed 
decision 
making

Sustainable 
resource 

deployment

Working 
with partners 
& other third 

parties

Value for 
Money 

arrangements 
criteria

23



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Kesteven District Council  |  2019/20 12

7. Audit logistics, team & fees

Client responsibilities

Where clients do not deliver to the timetable agreed, we need to ensure that this 
does not impact on audit quality or absorb a disproportionate amount of time, 
thereby disadvantaging other clients. Where the elapsed time to complete an 
audit exceeds that agreed due to a client not meeting its obligations we will not 
be able to maintain a team on site. Similarly, where additional resources are 
needed to complete the audit due to a client not meeting their obligations we are 
not able to guarantee the delivery of the audit to the agreed timescales. In 
addition, delayed audits will incur additional audit fees.

Our requirements 

To minimise the risk of a delayed audit, you need to ensure that you:

• produce draft financial statements of good quality by the deadline you have 
agreed with us, including all notes, the narrative report and the Annual 
Governance Statement

• ensure that good quality working papers are available at the start of the audit, 
in accordance with the working paper requirements schedule that we have 
shared with you

• ensure that the agreed data reports are available to us at the start of the 
audit and are reconciled to the values in the accounts, in order to facilitate 
our selection of samples

• ensure that all appropriate staff are available on site throughout (or as 
otherwise agreed) the planned period of the audit

• respond promptly and adequately to audit queries.

John Gregory, Engagement Lead

John's role will be to:

•lead our relationship with you;

•be a key contact for the Chief Executive, Strategic Director of Resources and the 
Governance and Audit Committee;

•ensure that Grant Thornton's full service offering is at your disposal; and

•take overall responsibility for the delivery of a high quality audit, meeting the highest 
professional standards and adding value to the Council.

Paul Harvey, Engagement Manager

Paul’s role will be to:

• manage the delivery of a high quality audit, meeting the highest professional 
standards and adding value to the Authority.

• Review work performed by the audit team to ensure high audit quality

Phil Wood, Audit Incharge

Phil’s role will be to:

•be the day to day contact for Council finance staff;

•take responsibility for ensuring there is effective communication and understanding by 
finance team of audit requirements;

•have day to day responsibility for the running of the audit and first point of contact;

•focus on the more technical aspect of the audit and to discuss emerging national 
technical matters as they arise and  deal with technical matters raised by the you 
throughout the year in a timely manner.

Planning and
risk assessment 

Interim audit
February / 
March 2020

Year end audit
June / July 2020

Governance and
Audit Committee

March 2020

Governance and 
Audit Committee

July 2020

Governance and 
Audit Committee
September 2020

Audit 
Findings 
Report

Audit 
opinion

Audit Plan Annual 
Audit 
Letter

24



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Kesteven District Council  |  2019/20 13

8. Audit fees

Actual Fee 2017/18 Actual Fee 2018/19 Proposed fee 2019/20 

Total audit fees (excluding VAT) £47,273 £43,100 £43,900

.

Assumptions:
In setting the above fees, we have assumed that the Authority will:
- prepare a good quality set of accounts, supported by comprehensive and well presented working papers which are ready at the start of the audit
- provide appropriate analysis, support and evidence to support all critical judgements and significant judgements made during the course of preparing the financial statements
- provide early notice of proposed complex or unusual transactions which could have a material impact on the financial statements.

Relevant professional standards:
In preparing our fee estimate, we have had regard to all relevant professional standards, including paragraphs 4.1 and 4.2 of the FRC’s Ethical Standard which stipulate that the Engagement Lead 

(Key Audit Partner) must set a fee sufficient to enable the resourcing of the audit with staff of appropriate skills, time and abilities to deliver an audit to the required professional standard.

Planned audit fees 2019/20

Across all sectors and firms, the FRC has set out its expectation of improved financial reporting from organisations and the need for auditors to demonstrate increased scepticism and challenge 
and to undertake additional and more robust testing. Within the public sector, where the FRC has recently assumed responsibility for the inspection of local government audit, the regulator 
requires that all audits achieve a 2A (few improvements needed) rating. 

Our work across the sector in 2018/19 has highlighted areas where local government financial reporting, in particular, property, plant and equipment and pensions, needs to be improved. We 
have also identified an increase in the complexity of local government financial transactions. Combined with the FRC requirement that 100% of audits achieve a 2A rating this means that 
additional audit work is required. We have set out below the expected impact on our audit fee. The table overleaf provides more details about the areas where we will be undertaking further 
testing. 

As a firm, we are absolutely committed to meeting the expectations of the FRC with regard to audit quality and local government financial reporting. Our proposed work and fee for 2019/20 at the 
planning stage, as set out below and with further analysis overleaf, has been agreed with the Director of Finance and is subject to PSAA agreement. 

25



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Kesteven District Council  |  2019/20 14

Audit fee variations – Further analysis 
Planned audit fees

The table below shows the planned variations to the original scale fee for 2019/20 based on our best estimate at the audit planning stage. Further issues identified during the 
course of the audit may incur additional fees. In agreement with PSAA (where applicable) we will be seeking approval to secure these additional fees for the remainder of the 
contract via a formal rebasing of your scale fee to reflect the increased level of audit work required to enable us to discharge our responsibilities. Should any further issues 
arise during the course of the audit that necessitate further audit work additional fees will be incurred, subject to PSAA approval. 

Audit area £ Rationale for fee variation

Scale fee 36,400

Raising the bar 2,500 The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) has highlighted that the quality of work by all audit firms needs to improve 
across local audit. This will require additional supervision and leadership, as well as additional challenge and 
scepticism in areas such as journals, estimates, financial resilience and information provided by the entity.

Pensions – valuation of net 
pension liabilities under 
International Auditing 
Standard (IAS) 19

1,750 We have increased the granularity, depth and scope of coverage, with increased levels of sampling, additional levels 
of challenge and explanation sought, and heightened levels of documentation and reporting.

PPE Valuation – work of 
experts 

1,750 We have increased the volume and scope of our audit work to ensure an adequate level of audit scrutiny and 
challenge over the assumptions that underpin PPE valuations. 

IFRS16 / Covid-19 1,500 This element of the fee variation was originally agreed to cover the additional costs arising from the implementation 
of the new standard on leasing, IFRS16. Implementation of this standard has now been deferred for a year because 
of covid-19, but across our client base we have left this element of the fee in place to help cover the additional work 
necessary in other areas because of covid-19, and the inefficiencies arising from remote working.

Revised scale fee (to be 
approved by PSAA)

43,900

26



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Kesteven District Council  |  2019/20 15

9. Independence & non-audit services
Auditor independence

Ethical Standards and ISA (UK) 260 require us to give you timely disclosure of all significant facts and matters that may bear upon the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm 
or covered persons relating to our independence. We encourage you to contact us to discuss these or any other independence issues with us.  We will also discuss with you if we make 
additional significant judgements surrounding independence matters. 

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with the 
Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial 
statements. 

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered 
person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements. Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit 
Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 issued in December 2017 and PSAA’s Terms of Appointment which set out supplementary guidance on ethical requirements for auditors of local 
public bodies. 

Other services provided by Grant Thornton

For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Authority. The following other services were identified

Service £ Threats Safeguards

Audit related:

Housing Benefit (Subsidy) 
Assurance Process

9,750 Self-Interest (because this is a recurring fee) The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to 
independence as the fee  for this work is £9,750 in comparison to the total fee for the audit 
of £36,400 and in particular relative to Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it 
is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element to it. These factors all mitigate the 
perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.

Certification of Housing 
capital receipts grant

3,250 Self-Interest (because this is a recurring fee) The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to 
independence as the fee  for this work is £3,250 in comparison to the total fee for the audit 
of £36,400 and in particular relative to Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it 
is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element to it. These factors all mitigate the 
perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.

Non-audit related:

CFO Insights 5,000 The fee is a recurring subscription and, 
therefore, there is a self-interest threat. The 
tool provides information that will help inform 
decision making by informed management. 
The scope of our service does not include 
making decisions on behalf of management 
or recommending a particular course of 
action.

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to 
independence as the fee  for this work is £5,000 in comparison to the total fee for the audit 
of £36,400 and in particular relative to Grant Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it 
is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element to it. These factors all mitigate the 
perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.

27



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Kesteven District Council  |  2019/20 16

Independence & non-audit services

The amounts detailed on the previous page are fees agreed to-date for audit related and non-audit services to be undertaken by Grant Thornton UK LLP in the current financial year. 
These services are consistent with the Authority’s policy on the allotment of non-audit work to your auditors. All services have been approved by the Governance and Audit Committee. 
Any changes and full details of all fees charged for audit related and non-audit related services by Grant Thornton UK LLP and by Grant Thornton International Limited network 
member Firms will be included in our Audit Findings report at the conclusion of the audit.

None of the services provided are subject to contingent fees. The firm is committed to improving our audit quality – please see our transparency report -
https://www.grantthornton.ie/about/transparency-report/

28



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Kesteven District Council  |  2019/20

Appendices

A. Audit Quality – national context

29



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Kesteven District Council  |  2019/20 18

Appendix A: Audit Quality – national context

What has the FRC said about Audit Quality?

The Financial Reporting Council (FRC) publishes an annual Quality Inspection of our firm, 
alongside our competitors. The Annual Quality Review (AQR) monitors the quality of UK 
Public Interest Entity audits to promote continuous improvement in audit quality.

All of the major audit firms are subject to an annual review process in which the FRC 
inspects a small sample of audits performed from each of the firms to see if they fully 
conform to required standards.

The most recent report, published in July 2019, shows that the results of commercial audits 
taken across all the firms have worsened this year. The FRC has identified the need for 
auditors to:

• improve the extent and rigour of challenge of management in areas of judgement

• improve the consistency of audit teams’ application of professional scepticism

• strengthen the effectiveness of the audit of revenue

• improve the audit of going concern

• improve the audit of the completeness and evaluation of prior year adjustments.

The FRC has also set all firms the target of achieving a grading of ‘2a’ (limited 
improvements required) or better on all FTSE 350 audits. We have set ourselves the same 
target for public sector audits from 2019/20.

Other sector wide reviews

Alongside the FRC, other key stakeholders including the Department for Business, energy 
and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) have expressed concern about the quality of audit work and 
the need for improvement. A number of key reviews into the profession have been 
undertaken or are in progress. These include the review by Sir John Kingman of the 
Financial Reporting Council (Dec 2018), the review by the Competition and Markets 
authority of competition within the audit market, the ongoing review by Sir Donald Brydon 
of external audit, and specifically for public services, the Review by Sir Tony Redmond of 
local authority financial reporting and external audit. As a firm, we are contributing to all 
these reviews and keen to be at the forefront of developments and improvements in public 
audit.

What are we doing to address FRC findings?

In response to the FRC’s findings, the firm is responding vigorously and with purpose. As 
part of our Audit Investment Programme (AIP), we are establishing a new Quality Board, 
commissioning an independent review of our audit function, and strengthening our senior 
leadership at the highest levels of the firm, for example through the appointment of Fiona 
Baldwin as Head of Audit. We are confident these investments will make a real difference. 

We have also undertaken a root cause analysis and put in place processes to address the 
issues raised by the FRC. We have already implemented new training material that will 
reinforce the need for our engagement teams to challenge management and demonstrate 
how they have applied professional scepticism as part of the audit. Further guidance on 
auditing areas such as revenue has also been disseminated to all audit teams and we will 
continue to evolve our training and review processes on an ongoing basis.

What will be different in this audit?

We will continue working collaboratively with you to deliver the audit to the agreed 
timetable whilst improving our audit quality. In achieving this you may see, for example, an 
increased expectation for management to develop properly articulated papers for any new 
accounting standard, or unusual or complex transactions. In addition, you should expect 
engagement teams to exercise even greater challenge management in areas that are 
complex, significant or highly judgmental which may be the case for accounting estimates, 
going concern, related parties and similar areas. As a result you may find the audit process 
even more challenging than previous audits. These changes will give the audit committee –
which has overall responsibility for governance - and senior management greater 
confidence that we have delivered a high quality audit and that the financial statements are 
not materially misstated. Even greater challenge of management will also enable us to 
provide greater insights into the quality of your finance function and internal control 
environment and provide those charged with governance confidence that a material 
misstatement due to fraud will have been detected.

We will still plan for a smooth audit and ensure this is completed to the timetable agreed. 
However, there may be instances where we may require additional time for both the audit 
work to be completed to the standard required and to ensure management have 
appropriate time to consider any matters raised. This may require us to agree with you a 
delay in signing the announcement and financial statements. To minimise this risk, we will 
keep you informed of progress and risks to the timetable as the audit progresses.

We are absolutely committed to delivering audit of the highest quality and we should be 
happy to provide further detail about our improvement plans should you require it. 

30



© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Kesteven District Council  |  2019/20

© 2020 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member 
firms, as the context requires.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a 
separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one 
another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. 

grantthornton.co.uk

31



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

SOUTH KESTEVEN DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Internal Audit Progress Report 
Governance and Audit Committee 

21 May 2020 
 

Page 1 of 59

33

Agenda Item 6



 

 

  South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report | 1 

CONTENTS 

 
1 Introduction ................................................................................................................................................................... 2 
2 Reports considered at this Governance and Audit Committee .................................................................................... 3 
3 Other matters ............................................................................................................................................................... 7 
Appendix A: Internal audit assignments completed to date .............................................................................................. 8 
For further information contact ........................................................................................................................................ 10 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 2 of 59

34



 

  South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report | 2 

The Internal Audit Plan for 2019/20 was approved by the Governance and Audit Committee on 21 March 2019. Below 
provides a summary update on progress against that Plan and summarises the results of our work to date. Please see 
chart below for current progress with the Plan.  

    

 

100%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

1

Assignments Complete

1 INTRODUCTION 

Page 3 of 59

35



 

  South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report | 3 

This table of the audit assignments that have been completed and the impacts of those findings since the last 
Governance and Audit Committee held. The Executive Summary and Key Findings of the assignments below are 
attached to this progress report. 

Assignments Status Opinion issued Actions agreed 
  H M L

 
 
Purchasing Cards (13.19/20) 
 

 
 
Final 

 

 
 
0 

 
 
3 

 
 
2 

 
 
Procurement and Contracts (14.19/20) 

 
 
Final 

 

 
 
0 

 
 
11 
 

 
 
1 

 
 
Risk Management (15.19/20) 

 
 
Final 

 

 
 
0 

 
 
1 

 
 
4 

 
 
Planning Service (16.19/20) 

 
 
Final 

 

 
 
0 

 
 
0 

 
 
2 

 
 
Homelessness (17.19/20) 

 
 
Final 

 

 
 
0 

 
 
7 
 

 
 
7 

 
 
Void Management (18.19/20) 
 

 
 
Final 

 

 
0 

 
3 

 
4 

 

 

2 REPORTS CONSIDERED AT THIS GOVERNANCE 
AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

Page 4 of 59

36



 

  South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report | 4 

2.1 Impact of findings to date 

 

Purchasing Cards (13.19/20) 
Conclusion: Reasonable Assurance 

Impact on Annual Opinion: Positive 

As a result of testing undertaken, three ‘medium’ and two ‘low’ priority findings were identified. 
Management actions were agreed in respect of all the findings. 

The medium priority findings relate to: 

• At the time of audit, it was confirmed that there is no evidence maintained on file when spot 
checks are being completed of Purchasing Card expenditure by the Finance Department and 
therefore it was not possible to confirm the frequency of the checks. 

• Through review of the Purchasing Card User Guide it was noted that clear guidance is not in 
place as to particular types of products and services the Purchasing Cards should be used for. 
From a review of an expenses report it was noted in one instance that a Purchasing Card had 
been used for a transaction of £740.62 and in one instance it was noted that the report contained 
three subsistence entries for meetings which totalled £59.40. For both types of expenditure, no 
clear guidance was in place to confirm whether the expenditure should have been processed 
through a Purchasing Card. 

• A sample of 20 monthly Purchasing Card expenses were selected and tested from the current 
financial year. Three instances were noted where Line Manager approval could not be evidenced 
for the monthly claim, three instances were noted where Line Manager approval had not been 
obtained in a timely manner, and one instance was noted where only one receipt had been 
maintained on file, despite seven other purchases being recorded. 

 

Procurement and Contracts (14.19/20) 
Conclusion: Partial Assurance 

Impact on Annual Opinion: Negative 

As a result of testing undertaken, 11 ‘medium’ and one ‘low’ priority findings were identified. 
Management actions were agreed in respect of all the findings. 

The medium priority findings relate to: 

• Through review of the Service Plan in place between the Council and Welland Procurement, 
instances were noted where contracts had not been procured by the agreed target completion 
dates. 

• From discussions with the Procurement Lead it was confirmed that the current Contracts Register 
is not fully complete and there are still gaps in regards to certain departments. 

• A sample of 20 contracts from the Council’s current Contract Register were selected and tested. 
Four instances were noted where no documentation was provided in relation to the documented 
contracts (all in excess of £50,000) and therefore the following could not be confirmed: 

o That a procurement process had been followed in line with the Council's Contract and 
Procurement Procedure Rules for each of the contracts; 

o That the contracts had been advertised on the ProContract e-tendering system; 

o That a scoring matrix was utilised as part of an evaluation process; 

o That successful or unsuccessful letters were sent out to all applicants; 

Page 5 of 59

37



 

  South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report | 5 

o That due-diligence checks such as credit worthiness were carried out by the Council on the 
successful contractors; 

o That a contract was in place that was signed by both the Council and the contracted party; 

o That the Council had included clauses within the contracts governing the circumstances 
whereby early termination or exit of the contract is permitted; 

o That appropriate monitoring had been undertaken of the Contracts by the dedicated Contract 
Managers; and 

o That the Council completed initial and on-going risk assessments for the contracts in relation 
to Health and Safety. 

 

Risk Management (15.19/20) 
Conclusion: Substantial Assurance 

Impact on Annual Opinion: Positive 

As a result of testing undertaken, one ‘medium’ and four ‘low’ priority findings were identified. 
Management actions were agreed in respect of all the findings. 

The medium priority finding relates to: 

• Through review of Risk Management Group meeting minutes, it was identified that attendance 
from some service areas was poor for all three meetings reviewed.  

 

Planning Service (16.19/20) 
Conclusion: Substantial Assurance 

Impact on Annual Opinion: Positive 

As a result of testing undertaken, two ‘low’ priority findings were identified. Management actions were 
agreed in respect of both findings. 

 

Homelessness (17.19/20) 
Conclusion: Partial Assurance 

Impact on Annual Opinion: Negative 

As a result of testing undertaken, seven ‘medium’ and seven ‘low’ priority findings were identified. 
Management actions were agreed in respect of all the findings. 

The medium priority findings relate to: 

• A training log spreadsheet is in place for staff members within the Homelessness Prevention 
Team. It was however noted that certain staff members did not have any delivered training 
documented. Additionally, instances were noted where dates were not recorded for when the 
relevant training was completed and there is also no information currently documented for 
refresher training if applicable. 

• From testing a sample of 20 homelessness applications from the current financial year, instances 
were identified whereby the initial assessment had not been carried out or the initial contact was 
not made promptly with the applicant and instances where decision letters were not sent to the 
applicant promptly. 

Page 6 of 59

38



 

  South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report | 6 

• Testing identified one instance where the Prevention or Relief Duty was note ended within 56 
days and an extension had not been applied. It was also noted that a supporting decision letter 
was not produced and sent to the applicant once duty had ended. 

• The Council has a Temporary Accommodation Procedure in place although it was noted that the 
Procedure had not been updated since 2015. It was also noted that the Procedure does not 
cover the booking of emergency accommodation. Additionally, the Procedure does not specify a 
need to consider value for money, or a list of approved hotels and bed and breakfasts which the 
Council has negotiated favourable rates with.    

• From testing a sample of 20 homelessness applications which had resulted in the allocation of 
temporary or emergency accommodation during the current financial year instances were noted 
whereby a Temporary Accommodation Request Form had either not been completed or 
authorised, no evidence of any action being taken to recover monies owed to the Council by 
tenants with outstanding utility charges or where emergency accommodation costs had been 
covered by the Council. 

• From a review of the Temporary Accommodation Rent Procedure it was noted that it does not 
provide adequate detail to allow rent officers to recoup rent and utility charges. Additionally, the 
Procedure does not specify the point at which a Notice to Vacate should be served and does not 
provide any guidance on the recovery procedure for outstanding utility charges.  

• At the time of audit, it was noted that there is currently no monitoring undertaken by the 
Homelessness Prevention Team to identify repeat users of temporary or emergency 
accommodation. 

 

Void Management (18.19/20) 
Conclusion: Reasonable Assurance 

Impact on Annual Opinion: Positive 

As a result of testing undertaken, three ‘medium’ and four ‘low’ priority findings were identified. 
Management actions were agreed in respect of all the findings. 

The medium priority findings relate to: 

• At the time of audit, the Council did not have a Voids Policy in place. Through discussion with the 
Head of Improvements and Repairs it was confirmed that a Voids Policy is due to be drafted. 

• From a sample of 20 void properties, seven instances were noted where a recharge had been 
identified following the completion of a Full Inspection. Six instances were noted where the 
recharges had not been allocated to the tenants rent accounts for recovery and therefore the 
amounts had not been invoiced. 

• At the time of audit, 11 recharges remained outstanding. No evidence could be provided to 
confirm that an invoice had been raised for the re-charge amounts and that appropriate recovery 
action had been undertaken such as the issuing of reminder letters.      

 

Page 7 of 59

39



 

  South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report | 7 

3.1 Changes to the audit plan  
Since the last Governance and Audit Committee meeting in December 2019, the Capital Strategy review was 
cancelled at the request of the Director of Finance, due to operational disruptions caused by the Covid-19 pandemic.  

Quality Assurance and Continual Improvement  
To ensure that RSM remains compliant with the PSIAS framework we have a dedicated internal Quality Assurance 
Team who undertake a programme of reviews to ensure the quality of our audit assignments. This is applicable to all 
Heads of Internal Audit, where a sample of their clients will be reviewed. Any findings from these reviews being used 
to inform the training needs of our audit teams. 

The Quality Assurance Team is made up of: Ross Wood (Manager, Quality Assurance Department) with support from 
other team members across the Department. All reports are reviewed by James Farmbrough as the Head of the 
Quality Assurance Department. 

This is in addition to any feedback we receive from our post assignment surveys, client feedback, appraisal processes 
and training needs assessments. 

3.2 Post Assignment Surveys  
We are committed to delivering an excellent client experience every time we work with you. Your feedback helps us to 
improve the quality of the service we deliver to you. Currently, following the completion of each product we deliver we 
attached a brief survey for the client lead to complete.  

We would like to give you the opportunity to consider how frequently you receive these feedback requests; and 
whether the current format works. Options available are: 

• After each product (current option); 
• Monthly / quarterly / annual feedback request; and 
• Executive lead only, or executive lead and key team members. 

 

 

 

 

  

3 OTHER MATTERS 

Page 8 of 59

40



 

  South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report | 8 

APPENDIX A: INTERNAL AUDIT ASSIGNMENTS 
COMPLETED TO DATE 
Report previously seen by the Governance and Audit Committee and included for information purposes only: 

Assignment Status Opinion issued 
Actions agreed

H M L
 

Follow Up 1 (1.19/20) 
 

Final  Reasonable Progress 0 9 4 

Building Control (2.19/20) Final 

 

0 4 2 

 
Allocations and Lettings (3.19/20) 
 

 
 

Final 
 

0 0 2 

 
Housing Benefits (4.19/20) 

 
 

Final 
 

0 0 2 

 
Customer Relationship Management 
(5.19/20) 
 

 
 

Final 
 

0 3 1 

 
Communication – Social Media (6.19/20) 
 

 
 

Final 
 
  

 
 
0 

 
 
3 

 
 
1 

 
IT Project Management (7.19/20) 

 
 

Final 
 

1 
 
3 
 

2 

 
Enforcement – Littering (8.19/20) 

 
 

Final 
 

 
0 
 

0 0 

 
Complaints and Freedom of Information 
(9.19/20) 
 

 
 

Final 
 

 
0 
 

4 2 

Page 9 of 59

41



 

  South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report | 9 

Assignment Status Opinion issued 
Actions agreed

H M L

 
Health and Safety Arrangements and 
Reporting (10.19/20) 
 

 
 

Final 
 

 
0 
 

3 2 

 
Follow Up 2 (12.19/20) 
 

Final  Reasonable Progress 0 7 5 

 

  

Page 10 of 59

42



 

rsmuk.com 

This report is solely for the use of the persons to whom it is addressed. To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM Risk Assurance 
Services LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party. 
 
The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our review and are not necessarily 
a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made. Actions for improvements 
should be assessed by you for their full impact. This report, or our work, should not be taken as a substitute for management’s 
responsibilities for the application of sound commercial practices. We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system of 
internal controls rests with management and our work should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses that may 
exist. Neither should our work be relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud and irregularity should there be any. 
 
Our report is prepared solely for the confidential use of South Kesteven District Council, and solely for the purposes set out herein. 
This report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any other party wishing to acquire any rights 
from RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP for any purpose or in any context. Any third party which obtains access to this report or a 
copy and chooses to rely on it (or any part of it) will do so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM Risk 
Assurance Services LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party and shall not be liable for 
any loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature which is caused by any person’s reliance on representations in this report. 
 
This report is released to you on the basis that it shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole or in part (save as otherwise 
permitted by agreed written terms), without our prior written consent. 
 
We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report.  
 
RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales no. OC389499 at 6th floor, 25 
Farringdon Street, London EC4A 4AB. 

 

Chris Williams, Head of Internal 
Audit 

chris.williams@rsmuk.com 

Address: 
RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP 
Suite A, 7th Floor 
City Gate East 
Tollhouse Hill 
Nottingham NG1 5FS 

Phone: 01159 644450 
Mobile: 07753 584993 

 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT 

Page 11 of 59

43



 

  South Kesteven District Council Purchasing Cards | 2 

1.1 Background  
A review of Purchasing Cards was undertaken as part of the approved internal audit periodic plan for 2019/20. 
Purchasing Cards are credit cards which are issued to select members of staff within the Council to enable them to 
make purchases of low value items for which there is a business need. Cards are issued and registered personally to 
the cardholder by Lloyds Bank Card Services, and new cards have to be requested and approved by the relevant 
employee’s Service Manager. 

At the time of audit there was a total of 49 Purchasing Cards in circulation across the Council. The total spend in 
relation to Purchasing Cards since the start of the current financial year to September 2019 was £143,262.76. 

The top five types of spend via Purchasing Cards for the current financial year are as follows: 

• Licences and Test Fees - £27,901.98; 

• Public Transport Costs (typically train travel to conferences/events) - £17,758.53; 

• Conference Expenses - £14,608.91; 

• Other Equipment such as I.T Supplies - £12,414.67; and 

• Advertising – Events - £4,917.67.  

Day to day management of the Purchasing Card process is handled by a dedicated Exchequer Services Officer who is 
responsible for tasks including reconciling card expenses to receipts and bank statements on a monthly basis.  

1.2 Conclusion 
There is an appropriate control framework in place for governing Purchasing Cards. Our work confirmed that there are 
adequate controls in place, however, testing identified that the controls are not always consistently applied. Areas of 
improvement have been noted which has resulted in the agreement of three ‘Medium’ and two ‘Low’ priority 
management actions being raised. 

Internal audit opinion: 
Taking account of the issues identified, the Council can 
take reasonable assurance that the controls in place to 
manage this area are suitably designed and consistently 
applied. However, we have identified issues that need to 
be addressed in order to ensure that the control 
framework is effective in managing the identified area(s). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY – PURCHASING CARDS 

Page 12 of 59

44



 

  South Kesteven District Council Purchasing Cards | 3 

1.3 Key findings 
The key findings from this review are as follows: 

Our audit review identified that the following controls are suitably designed, consistently applied and are operating 
effectively: 

• The Council has a Purchasing Card User Guide in place which was last updated 2018. The guide sets out the 
processes to be followed in regard to the use of Purchasing Cards across the Council.  

• The Council has a Service Level Agreement (SLA) in place with Lloyds Bank Card Services for the management 
of Purchasing Cards. Roles and responsibilities for the bank, Council and cardholders are clearly defined within 
the SLA. 

• A central record is maintained by the Finance Department to confirm which officers have been provided with a 
Purchasing Card and how many are in circulation within the Council. 

• Each Purchasing Card has a default monthly limit of £1,500. Upon issue, limits may be amended based on officer 
requirements. Relevant limits for each cardholder are documented in a central register. 

• Particular types of spending are automatically blocked by Lloyds Bank Card Services so that attempted purchases 
within certain categories which are prohibited by policy are automatically declined. 

• Where breaches of the Purchasing Card Policy are suspected, the relevant Head of Service is informed of the 
incident and a Purchasing Card Misuse Form is completed and signed off by the following individuals: 

o Cardholder; 

o Head of Service; 

o Purchasing Card Administrator; and 

o Director of Finance. 

  If necessary, the cardholder will be asked to reimburse the Council for the identified cost(s).  

• The Finance Department maintains a list of all suspended purchasing cards. The Finance Department are 
required to code expenditure incurred on Purchasing Cards to the appropriate cost code. If cost codes are not 
provided within two weeks of the Council receiving the relevant bank statement, the Purchasing Card is 
suspended. 

• Purchasing Card expenditure is published on the Council's website as part of the Local Government Transparency 
Code 2015 requirements. 

However, we identified the following exceptions with the Council’s established control framework: 

• A sample of 20 current purchasing cardholders were selected and tested. Three instances were noted where the 
original Lloyds Bank Card Services Application Form were not maintained on file. Additionally, one instance was 
noted where a Purchasing Card Issue and Training Form was not maintained on file.   

• At the time of audit, it was confirmed that there is no evidence maintained on file when spot checks are being 
completed of Purchasing Card expenditure by the Finance Department and therefore it was not possible to confirm 
the frequency of the checks.   

• Through review of the Purchasing Card User Guide it was noted that clear guidance is not in place as to particular 
types of products and services the Purchasing Cards should be used for. From a review of an expenses report it 
was noted in one instance that a Purchasing Card had been used for a transaction of £740.62 and in one instance 
it was noted that the report contained three subsistence entries for meetings which totalled £59.40. For both types 
of expenditure, no clear guidance was in place to confirm whether the expenditure should have been processed 
through a Purchasing Card. 

Page 13 of 59

45



 

  South Kesteven District Council Purchasing Cards | 4 

• A sample of 20 monthly Purchasing Card expenses were selected and tested from the current financial year. 
Three instances were noted where Line Manager approval could not be evidenced for the monthly claim, three 
instances were noted where Line Manager approval had not been obtained in a timely manner, and one instance 
was noted where only one receipt had been maintained on file, despite seven other purchases being recorded.      

• At the time of audit, there had been nine leavers within the Council who had been issued with a Purchasing Card. 
Four instances were noted where a Purchasing Card Cancellation Form had not been completed and maintained 
on file, one instance was noted where the wrong form had been used in relation to the leaver and as a result, 
Head of Service approval could not be confirmed and three instances were noted where the leavers discarded 
Purchasing Card were maintained in the relevant cardholders file.   

 

1.4 Additional information to support our conclusion 
The following table highlights the number and categories of management actions made. The detailed findings section 
lists the specific actions agreed with management to implement. 

* Shows the number of controls not adequately designed or not complied with. The number in brackets represents the total number of controls 
reviewed in this area. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Area Control 
design not 
effective*

Non 
Compliance 
with controls*

Agreed management actions
Low Medium High 

Purchasing Cards 0 (12) 5 (12) 2 3 0 

Total  
 

2 3 0 

Page 14 of 59

46



 

  South Kesteven District Council Purchasing Cards | 5 

2 DETAILED FINDINGS 
Categorisation of internal audit findings 
Priority Definition

Low  There is scope for enhancing control or improving efficiency and quality.

Medium Timely management attention is necessary. This is an internal control risk management issue that could lead to: Financial losses which could affect the 
effective function of a department, loss of controls or process being audited or possible regulatory scrutiny/reputational damage, negative publicity in local 
or regional media. 

High Immediate management attention is necessary. This is a serious internal control or risk management issue that may lead to: Substantial losses, violation 
of corporate strategies, policies or values, regulatory scrutiny, reputational damage, negative publicity in national or international media or adverse 
regulatory impact, such as loss of operating licences or material fines.

This report has been prepared by exception. Therefore, we have included in this section, only those areas of weakness in control or examples of lapses in control identified 
from our testing and not the outcome of all internal audit testing undertaken. 

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 
with  

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for 
management 

Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

1 All new purchase 
cardholders are required to 
complete a User Request 
Form. Applicants are 
required to sign to confirm 
the application for a 
Purchasing Card and agree 
to the roles and 
responsibilities for the use of 
the card.  

Additionally, the form is also 
signed off by the relevant 
Head of Service.   

All signed User Request 
Forms for Purchasing Cards 
are retained by the Finance 
Department.   

Yes No A sample of 20 current purchasing 
cardholders were selected, tested and the 
following issues identified:   

• Three instances were noted where a Lloyds 
Bank Card Services Application Form had 
not been maintained on file.  

• One instance was noted where only part of 
the Lloyds Bank Card Services Application 
Form had been retained, and therefore it 
was not possible to evidence Line Manager 
and Programme Administrator approval.   

• One instance was noted where a 
Procurement Card Issue and Training Form 
was not maintained on file.   

If appropriate documentation in relation to the 
issuing of Purchasing Cards is not maintained 

Low A full audit trail of all 
relevant 
documentation will be 
maintained on file in 
relation to the issuing 
of Purchasing Cards. 

31 March 2020 Head of 
Finance 

Page 15 of 59

47



 

  South Kesteven District Council Purchasing Cards | 6 

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 
with  

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for 
management 

Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

All applicants are required to 
complete an application form 
with Lloyds Bank Card 
Services which is signed by 
the card applicant and 
approved by their Line 
Manager and the 
Programme Administrator.   

Once the Council receives 
the relevant Purchasing 
Card, the applicant is 
required to complete a 
Procurement Card Issue and 
Training Form which is 
signed and dated. 

on file there is a risk of a lack of audit trail in 
the event of query or dispute. 

2 Spot check reviews of 
Purchasing Card 
transactions are undertaken 
by the Finance Department 
to identify any spending 
trends.  

Any issues are investigated 
and if required are escalated 
to Senior Management; 

Yes No The Finance Department conducts periodic 
checks/analysis of Purchasing Card 
Expenditure and an example of improvements 
as a result of this, is that the Council has 
recently acquired a Trainline Business 
account.  

However, at the time of audit it was confirmed 
that there is no evidence maintained on file 
when spot checks are being completed and 
therefore it was not possible to confirm the 
frequency of the checks.   

If evidence is not maintained on file of spot 
checks being completed there is a risk that 
they will not be completed in a timely manner. 

Medium Spot checks of 
Purchasing Card 
expenditure will be 
undertaken by 
Finance where 
necessary although it 
is the Heads of 
Service responsibility 
to ensure any 
procurement is in 
accordance with the 
Purchasing Cards 
Policy.  

31 March 2020 Head of 
Finance 

3 Types of purchases which 
should be purchased 
through the use of a 
Purchasing Card is clearly 
outlined.  

Yes No Through review of the Purchasing Card User 
Guide it was identified that clear guidance is 
not in place as to particular types of products 
and services the Purchasing Cards should be 
used for.   

Medium Clear guidance in 
regards to appropriate 
purchases to be made 
on Purchasing Cards 
will be provided within 

31 March 2020 Head of 
Finance 

Page 16 of 59

48



 

  South Kesteven District Council Purchasing Cards | 7 

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 
with  

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for 
management 

Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

Additionally, types of 
purchases which are 
prohibited to be purchased 
via a Purchasing Card are 
also clearly defined. 

A report was obtained and reviewed of all 
Purchasing Card expenditure incurred within 
the current financial year and noted that in one 
instance a Purchasing Card had been used for 
a transaction of £740.62 where an order 
should have been raised with the supplier.  

A sample of 20 monthly Purchasing Card 
Expense Reports were selected and tested 
from the current financial year and in one 
instance noted three subsistence entries for 
meetings which totalled £59.40. There is 
currently no clear guidance in place in relation 
to the use of Purchasing Cards for 
subsistence.   

Without clear guidance in place in regard to 
the types of expenditure which should be 
processed through Purchasing Cards, there is 
a risk of inappropriate and personal purchases 
being made resulting in financial loss to 
Council. 

the Purchasing Card 
User Guide. Finance 
will continue to 
monitor Purchasing 
Card expenditure on a  
monthly basis to 
ensure that cards are 
used appropriately.  

4 Each month, the cardholder 
will complete a Purchasing 
Card Expense Report which 
will detail all expenditure 
incurred for the relevant 
month, their values and the 
reason for the purchases.  

This is then signed by the 
cardholder and authorised 
by their Line Manager via 
signature or email approval.    

Corresponding receipts are 
uploaded by the relevant 
cardholder to a shared folder 

Yes No A sample of 20 monthly Purchasing Card 
expenses were selected and tested from the 
current financial year with the following issues 
identified:   

• Three instances were noted where Line 
Manager approval could not be evidenced 
for the monthly claim.    

• Three instances were noted where Line 
Manager approval had not been obtained in 
a timely manner i.e. 23, 42 and 44 working-
days after month-end.  

• One instance was noted where only one 
receipt had been maintained on file, despite 
seven other purchases being documented.  

Medium All purchasing 
cardholders will be 
reminded to ensure 
that all Purchasing 
Card Expense 
Reports are fully 
completed in a timely 
manner and 
appropriately 
authorised by their 
Line Manager.  

Additionally, they will 
be reminded to ensure 
all supporting receipts 
for expenditure are 

31 March 2020 Head of 
Finance 

Page 17 of 59

49



 

  South Kesteven District Council Purchasing Cards | 8 

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 
with  

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for 
management 

Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

accessible by the Finance 
Department.   

All Purchasing Card 
Expense Reports are cross 
referenced to the relevant 
card statements by the 
Finance Department prior to 
payment to ensure details 
and amounts match. 

If Purchasing Card Expense Reports are not 
fully completed with supporting receipts and 
authorised by the relevant Line Manager, 
there is a risk of Purchasing Cards being used 
for inappropriate expenditure, resulting in 
financial loss to the Council. 

maintained and 
provided as part of the 
monthly approval 
process. 

Management 
Comment 

In the event that the 
deadline has elapsed 
then the card is 
immediately 
suspended 

5 The Finance Department 
maintains a list of all leavers 
who have been issued with a 
Purchasing Card.   

Prior to leaving the Council, 
the relevant cardholder will 
complete a Purchasing Card 
Cancellation Form which is 
signed by the cardholder and 
Service Manager.  

The relevant Purchasing 
Card is cancelled with the 
Lloyds Bank Card Services 
and the discarded card is 
maintained on file in the 
relevant cardholders file. 

Yes No At the time of audit, there had been nine 
leavers within the Council who had been 
issued with a Purchasing Card and from a 
review of these the following issues were 
noted: 

• Four instances were noted where a 
Purchasing Card Cancellation Form had not 
been completed and maintained on file.  

• One instance was noted where the wrong 
form had been used in relation to the leaver 
and as a result, Head of Service approval 
could not be confirmed.   

• In three instances, the discarded 
Purchasing Card was found not to have 
been maintained within the relevant 
cardholders file.  

If all relevant documentation and discarded 
cards are not maintained on file for all leavers 
who have been issued with a Purchasing 
Card, there is a risk of a lack of audit trail in 
the event of query or dispute. 

Low A full audit trail of all 
relevant 
documentation will be 
maintained on file in 
relation to leavers who 
have been issued a 
Purchasing Cards. 

Management 
Comment  

As the card is 
immediately cancelled 
at the time of 
notification, then there 
is minimal risk to the 
Council. 

31 March 2020 Head of 
Finance 

  

Page 18 of 59

50



 

  South Kesteven District Council Procurement and Contracts 14.19/20 

1.1 Background  
A review of Procurement and Contracts was undertaken as part of the approved internal audit periodic plan for 
2019/20. 

The Council has recently appointed a Procurement Lead who commenced employment in September 2019. Prior to 
this the Council did not have a centralised procurement function and individual departments were responsible for 
procuring required contracts in line with the guidance recorded in the Contract and Procurement Procedure Rules 
(CPPR). 

The Procurement Lead has updated the Contracts Register which currently has a total of 44 contracts documented. 

The Council has CPPR in place to set out the principles, roles and processes involved in procurement at the Council. 
As per the CPPR, all procurements must realise value for money through the optimum combination of whole life costs 
and quality of outcome.   

The current procurement thresholds documented within the CPPR are as follows: 

• Where the contract is valued below £10,000, Officers are required to seek at least one written quotation; 

• Where the contract is valued between £10,001 and £25,000, at least three written quotations must be obtained; and 

• For contracts valued between £25,001 and the current EU Services Threshold, at least four written quotations must 
be obtained; 

• For contracts above the EU Services Threshold (Non-Works) a full tender process must be undertaken; 

• For contracts above the EU Services Threshold (For Works), at least five tenders must be obtained; and 

• For contracts above the EU Works Threshold (For Works) a full tender process must be undertaken. 

The Council has an agreement in place with Welland Procurement which commenced in April 2019. All procurements 
for contracts in excess of £50,000 are advertised on Contracts Finder by Welland Procurement. A Service Plan is in 
place between the Council and Welland Procurement to procure 27 contracts for the Council in the 2019/20 financial 
year. 

1.2 Conclusion 
There is a control framework in place for governing Procurement and Contracts. Our work confirmed that there are 
adequate controls in place, however, testing identified that the controls are not always consistently applied. Areas of 
improvement have been noted which has resulted in the agreement of 11 ‘Medium’ and one ‘Low’ priority 
management actions being raised. 

Internal audit opinion: 
Taking account of the issues identified, the Council can 
take partial assurance that the controls to manage this 
area are suitably designed and consistently applied. 
Action is needed to strengthen the control framework to 
manage the identified area. 

 

 

PROCUREMENT AND CONTRACTS - EXECUTIVE 
SUMMARY 

Page 19 of 59

51



 

  South Kesteven District Council Procurement and Contracts 14.19/20 

 

1.3 Key findings 
The key findings from this review are as follows: 

Our audit review identified that the following controls are suitably designed, consistently applied and are operating 
effectively: 

• From our sample testing of 20 contracts it was noted that an Exemption Form to waive CPPR document had been 
completed where valid circumstances exist to not follow the CPPR. The document was formally approved by the 
Executive Manager or Director. 

• From a review of the Contracts Register it was noted that all contracts recorded on the Register had been allocated 
a dedicated Contract Manager who is responsible for ensuring the Contract is being performed in line with agreed 
terms. 

• From our sample testing of 20 contracts it was noted that any proposed contract variations by the Council or 
contracted party were reviewed and approved prior to be actioned. 

• From our testing of 20 contracts it was noted that once contracts are approved, purchase orders for the full value 
are created and approved on the Finance System and once invoices are received these are then called-off against 
the overall value.  

However, we identified the following exceptions with the Council’s established control framework: 

• At the time of audit, the Council’s had a set of CPPR in place and which were tested against, although it was 
confirmed that this document had been reviewed and updated and were at a draft stage pending review from the 
Governance and Audit Committee at their December 2019 meeting. The procedure will then be subsequently 
approved by Council in January 2020. 

• Through review of the Service Plan in place between the Council and Welland Procurement, instances were noted 
where contracts had not been procured by the agreed target completion dates. 

• From discussions with the Procurement Lead it was confirmed that the current Contracts Register is not fully 
complete and there are still gaps in regard to certain departments. 

• A sample of 20 contracts from the Council’s current Contract Register were selected and tested. Four instances 
were noted where no documentation was provided in relation to the documented contracts (all in excess of 
£50,000) and therefore the following could not be confirmed: 

o That a procurement process had been followed in line with the Council's CPPR for each of the contracts; 

o That the contracts had been advertised on the ProContract e-tendering system; 

o That a scoring matrix was utilised as part of an evaluation process; 

o That successful or unsuccessful letters were sent out to all applicants; 

o That due-diligence checks such as credit worthiness were carried out by the Council on the successful 
contractors; 

o That a contract was in place that was signed by both the Council and the Contracted Party; 

o That the Council had included clauses within the contracts governing the circumstances whereby early 
termination or exit of the contract is permitted; 

o That appropriate monitoring had been undertaken of the Contracts by the dedicated contract managers; and 

o That the Council completed initial and on-going risk assessments for the contracts in relation to Health and 
Safety. 

Page 20 of 59

52



 

  South Kesteven District Council Procurement and Contracts 14.19/20 

• One instance was noted from a sample of 20 contracts from the Contract Register where the entry was not in 
relation to an actual contract. 

1.4 Additional information to support our conclusion 
The following table highlights the number and categories of management actions made. The detailed findings section 
lists the specific actions agreed with management to implement. 

* Shows the number of controls not adequately designed or not complied with. The number in brackets represents the total number of controls 
reviewed in this area. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Area Control 
design not 
effective*

Non 
Compliance 
with controls*

Agreed management actions
Low Medium High 

Procurement and Contracts 0 (16) 12 (16) 1 11 0 

Total  
 

1 11 0 

Page 21 of 59

53



 

  South Kesteven District Council Procurement and Contracts 14.19/20 

2 DETAILED FINDINGS 
Categorisation of internal audit findings 
Priority Definition

Low  There is scope for enhancing control or improving efficiency and quality.

Medium Timely management attention is necessary. This is an internal control risk management issue that could lead to: Financial losses which could affect the 
effective function of a department, loss of controls or process being audited or possible regulatory scrutiny/reputational damage, negative publicity in local 
or regional media. 

High Immediate management attention is necessary. This is a serious internal control or risk management issue that may lead to: Substantial losses, violation 
of corporate strategies, policies or values, regulatory scrutiny, reputational damage, negative publicity in national or international media or adverse 
regulatory impact, such as loss of operating licences or material fines.

This report has been prepared by exception. Therefore, we have included in this section, only those areas of weakness in control or examples of lapses in control identified 
from our testing and not the outcome of all internal audit testing undertaken. 

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 
with  

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for management Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

Procurement and Contracts

1 Financial Regulations 
and Contract and 
Procurement Procedure 
Rules (CPPR) are in 
place, that outline the 
overall governance and 
procurement process that 
is undertaken at the 
Council. 

Yes No The Council’s CPPR was obtained and 
reviewed.  

At the time of audit, the Council had a 
current set of CPPR in place although it 
was confirmed that these had been 
reviewed and updated and were at a draft 
stage, pending review at the Governance 
and Audit Committee meeting in December 
2019.  

The new CPPR will then be subsequently 
approved by Council in January 2020.   

There is a risk that procedure notes not 
being finalised and accessible to staff 
creates inconsistent working practices. 

Low Upon approval by the 
Governance and Audit 
Committee and Council, the 
Contract and Procurement 
Procedure Rules will be 
finalised and made available 
to staff. 

31 January 2020 Director of 
Finance 

Page 22 of 59

54



 

  South Kesteven District Council Procurement and Contracts 14.19/20 

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 
with  

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for management Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

2 The Council makes full 
use of the ProContract e-
tendering system. This 
software provides a 
complete e-procurement 
and tender management 
service.  

All tenders issued by the 
Council are managed 
through each stage of the 
processes within the 
ProContract system.  

ProContract facilitates the 
use of electronic tender 
publishing and includes a 
secure portal for supplier 
responses. 

Yes No A sample of 20 contracts from the 
Council’s current Contract Register were 
selected and tested.   

14 Instances were noted where the 
contracts had been procured by the 
Procurement Lincolnshire shared 
procurement service.    

One exemption was noted as part of the 
sample which did not go through a 
procurement process.    

One instance was noted where an entry of 
the Contract Register was not in relation to 
an actual contract and therefore a 
procurement process had not been 
followed.   

For the remaining four instances, no 
documentation was provided in relation to 
the contracts and therefore it was not 
possible to confirm that a procurement 
process had been followed and the correct 
number of quotes/tender process had been 
followed in line with the Council's CPPR.  

Three of the four contracts were found to 
have been for a value in excess of 
£75kand therefore a tender process should 
have been undertaken in line with the 
CPPR. The remaining contract had a value 
of £62.5k.         

If all contracts are not procured in line with 
the Council's CPPR and supporting 
documentation maintained on file, there is 
risk that the Council will not have selected 
the most economical contractor, resulting 
in financial loss and also be non-compliant 

Medium The ProContract e-tendering 
system will be used for the 
procurement of all contracts 
which undergo a tender 
process. A training and 
communication plan will be 
implemented, and an audit 
process established. 

31 March 2020 Procurement 
Lead 

Page 23 of 59

55



 

  South Kesteven District Council Procurement and Contracts 14.19/20 

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 
with  

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for management Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

with PCR2015 which could lead to a formal 
challenge. 

3 In accordance with the 
current CPPR:  

• Contracts below 
£10,000, at least one 
written quotation must 
be obtained; 

• Contracts between 
£10,001 and £25,000, 
at least three written 
quotations must be 
obtained;  

• Contracts between 
£25,001 and the 
current EU Services 
Threshold, at least four 
written quotations must 
be obtained; 

• For contracts above 
the EU Services 
Threshold (Non-
Works) a full tender 
process must be 
undertaken; 

• For contracts above 
the EU Services 
Threshold (For Works), 
at least five tenders 
must be obtained; and 

• For contracts above 
the EU Works 
Threshold (For Works) 

Yes No Findings as per Control Two. Medium All contracts will be procured 
in line with the Council's 
Contract and Procurement 
Procedure Rules and 
supporting documentation 
will be maintained on file. 
Relevant training will be 
provided to officers 
undertaking procurement 
activity. 

29 February 2020 Procurement 
Lead 

Page 24 of 59

56



 

  South Kesteven District Council Procurement and Contracts 14.19/20 

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 
with  

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for management Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

a full tender process 
must be undertaken. 

4 Each procurement 
application is scored 
against a scoring matrix. 
The evaluation criteria 
require both price and 
quality to be evaluated. 
The highest scoring 
tender is awarded the 
contract, or clear 
evidence is retained to 
justify occasions why this 
does not happen. 

Yes No Findings as per Control Two – Sample test 
of 20 contracts. 

Medium All contracts will be procured 
in line with the Council's 
Contract and Procurement 
Procedure Rules and each 
bidder scored against a 
scoring matrix.  

Evidence will be maintained 
on file of the evaluation 
criteria used. 

Relevant training will be 
provided to officers 
undertaking procurement 
activity. 

29 February 2020 Procurement 
Lead 

5 Successful or 
unsuccessful letters are 
sent out to all applicants 
by following the 
evaluation of submitted 
bids. 

Yes No Findings as per Control Two – Sample test 
of 20 contracts. 

Medium All contracts will be procured 
in line with the Council's 
Contract and Procurement 
Procedure Rules and 
successful and unsuccessful 
letters will be issued to all 
relevant applicants.  

All sent letters will be 
maintained on file. 

Relevant training will be 
provided to officers 
undertaking procurement 
activity. 

29 February 2020 Procurement 
Lead 

6 Due diligence checks are 
undertaken on the 
successful bidder. 
Checks should include at 
least a financial 

Yes No Findings as per Control Two – Sample test 
of 20 contracts. 

Medium A process will be established 
to ensure due diligence 
checks are undertaken and 

29 February 2020 Procurement 
Lead 

Page 25 of 59

57



 

  South Kesteven District Council Procurement and Contracts 14.19/20 

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 
with  

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for management Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

assessment, a reference 
check and the 
submission of insurance 
certification. 

training will be provided to 
relevant officers. 

Evidence of due diligence 
checks will be maintained on 
file for the winning bidder. 

7 Welland Procurement 
provide the Council with 
procurement services for 
all procurements and 
tenders in excess of 
£75,000.  

A formal Service Level 
Agreement is in place 
outlining the 
responsibilities of both 
parties and has been 
signed by both parties. 

Yes No The Service Plan in place between the 
Council and Welland Procurement was 
obtained and reviewed.  

Through review it was confirmed that an 
agreement is in place for Welland to 
procure 27 contracts for the Council in the 
current financial year.  Upon review of the 
Service Plan Schedule in place with 
Welland Procurement.  

12 instances were identified in which the 
procurement process was either:   

• Not completed by the target completion 
date;  

• The target date has been extended; or,  

• Based on current activity, it is unlikely 
that upcoming completion dates will be 
met.    

If agreed procurements for contracts are 
not completed in line with the agreed 
Service Plan Schedule, there is a risk that 
contracts will not be procured in a timely 
manner. 

Medium A meeting will take place 
between Welland 
Procurement and the Council 
to schedule out the 
remaining procurements and 
mitigate any risks presented 
by their delay. 

31 January 2020 Director of 
Finance 

8 A formal contract is 
agreed between the 
successful bidder(s) and 
the Council. The contract 
is signed by both parties. 

Yes No Findings as per Control Two – Sample test 
of 20 contracts. 

Medium The Council will ensure that 
all procurements result in a 
signed contract which is 
maintained on file. 

29 February 2020 Procurement 
Lead 

Page 26 of 59

58



 

  South Kesteven District Council Procurement and Contracts 14.19/20 

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 
with  

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for management Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

9 The Council has a 
Contract Register in 
place which is maintained 
up to date with details of 
all current contracts. The 
register is maintained by 
the Procurement Lead. 

Yes No Upon review of the Contract Register it was 
confirmed the register in place details the 
following key information;  

• Contract Manager;   

• Contract Commodity;   

• Current Supplier;   

• Contract Value;   

• Contract Start Date; and   

• Tender or Framework Reference     
Number. 

However, from discussions with the 
Procurement Lead it was confirmed that 
the current Contracts Register is not fully 
complete and there are still gaps 
particularly in regard to the following 
departments:  

• ICT; and  

•   

• Works.    

If all contracts in place across the Council 
are not documented within the Contracts 
Register, there is a risk that the contracts 
will not be correctly managed and 
monitored and may not be compliant with 
Transparency Regulations. 

Medium All current contracts in place 
across the Council will be 
identified and added to the 
Contracts Register. 

That for each key area of 
spend not represented on 
the Contract Register a 
procurement plan is 
developed which addresses 
the current issues and 
results in a Contract Register 
entry where applicable.  

31 March 2020 Head of 
Legal 
Services 

10 Contracts include clauses 
governing the 
circumstances whereby 
early termination or exit 

Yes No Findings as per Control Two – Sample test 
of 20 contracts. 

Medium The Council will ensure that 
all procurements result in a 
signed contract which 
includes clauses governing 
the circumstances whereby 

29 February 2020 Procurement 
Lead 

Page 27 of 59

59



 

  South Kesteven District Council Procurement and Contracts 14.19/20 

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 
with  

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for management Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

of the contract is 
permitted. 

early termination or exit of 
the contract is permitted. 

11 Contracts are managed 
and monitored by 
relevant Contract 
Managers. Regular 
progress monitoring on 
Key Performance 
Indicators (KPI's), 
financial data and Health 
and Safety issues are 
conducted by the 
designated Contract 
Manager, to ensure the 
contract specification, 
budget and timetable is 
being met. 

Yes No Findings as per Control Two – Sample test 
of 20 contracts. 

Medium The Council will ensure 
adequate monitoring is 
undertaken of all existing 
contracts by establishing 
contract management 
standard practice and 
providing contract 
management training to 
relevant officers.  

Evidence will be maintained 
on file of all monitoring 
undertaken, with 
consideration being given to 
the use of the contract 
management module on 
ProContract. 

29 February 2020 Procurement 
Lead 

12 The Council completes 
initial and on-going 
contractor/supplier risk 
assessments for all 
contracts within the 
Contract Register. 

Yes No Findings as per Control Two – Sample test 
of 20 contracts. 

Medium The Council will complete 
risk assessments for all 
contracts valued over 
£50,000 to ensure all 
relevant risks and mitigations 
have been identified. 

29 February 2020 Procurement 
Lead 

Page 28 of 59

60



 

  South Kesteven District Council Risk Management 15.19/20  

1.1 Background  
An audit of Risk Management was carried out as part the agreed internal audit plan for 2019/20. Our objective was to 
ensure the current Risk Management Framework, risk register arrangements and other business areas approach to 
risk were in place and operating effectively within the Council.  

Having a Risk Management Framework established is imperative. The achievement of the Council’s objectives is 
supported by the effectiveness and efficiency of the controls identified in order to mitigate the risks which prevent 
objectives being accomplished.  

South Kesteven District Council follow a risk-scoring matrix which rate the likelihood of risks materialising against the 
potential impact of the risk. The Council has a Service Risk Register which documents risks identified at an operational 
level for each service area and a Corporate Risk Register which contains corporate risks which may impact on the 
Council’s objectives.  

The Risk Management Group, consisting of all Heads of Service or their representative, monitors risk management  
plus other key activities i.e. governance, internal audit, insurance, fraud, business continuity, data protection, 
safeguarding and procurement which are also discussed at the meetings. 

1.2 Conclusion 
The overall opinion was formed by undertaking interviews with key staff and reviewing documents on the Council’s 
Risk Management processes. This was to ensure that all risk identification, assessments, monitoring and controls in 
place were being adhered to. Our review has confirmed that there is an adequate control framework in place, 
however, examples of non-compliance and control improvements have resulted in one ‘Medium’ and four ‘Low’ 
management actions being raised and agreed by management.  

 
Internal audit opinion: 
Taking account of the issues identified, the Council can 
take substantial assurance that the controls upon which 
the Council relies to manage the identified area(s) are 
suitably designed, consistently applied and operating 
effectively. 

1.3 Key findings 
The key findings from this review are as follows: 

• The Council has a documented Risk Management Framework which covers the period 2018-20. The Framework 
was approved by the Governance and Audit Committee and includes guidance on the identification, assessment 
and evaluation of risks and the Council’s risk appetite. 

• The Constitution sets out how South Kesteven District Council operates, how decisions are made and the 
procedures which are followed. The Constitution is designed to ensure that the Council is efficient, transparent and 
accountable to local people and contains detail on the risk management processes i.e. the roles and 
responsibilities of the Governance and Audit Committee, the reviewing and updating of the Corporate Risk Register 
and the identifying and evaluating of risks affecting the Council. 

• Roles and responsibilities are set out within the Risk Management Framework for all levels of staff throughout the 
Council. 

RISK MANAGEMENT - EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Page 29 of 59

61



 

  South Kesteven District Council Risk Management 15.19/20  

• A Corporate Risk Register is maintained which contains key corporate risks that are scored. All risks on the 
Corporate Risk Register have mitigating controls in place along with risk owner.  

• The September 2019 Risk Management Group (RMG) minutes noted that the Terms of Reference were discussed 
and updated. 

However, we have identified the following control weaknesses which actions have been raised in order to mitigate the 
risks associated: 

• The Council’s Financial Regulations are contained within the Constitution and record details on risk management 
procedures were noted to have been last updated in April 2016 which could have an impact in not having up-to-
date information/processes recorded.  

• Upon review of the Service Risk Register it was noted that it was incomplete (mitigating controls not recorded) due 
to a Head of Service having not yet met with the Governance and Risk Officer to discuss their risks.  

• On review of the Service Risk Register it was noted that some of the labelling of risks was not in accordance with 
the matrix within the Risk Management Framework. 

• Through review of RMG meeting minutes, it was identified that attendance from some service areas was poor for 
all three meetings reviewed.  

• Through interviews with four Heads of Service, three expressed an interest in having additional risk management 
training.  

 

1.4 Additional information to support our conclusion 
The following table highlights the number and categories of management actions made. The detailed findings section 
lists the specific actions agreed with management to implement. 

* Shows the number of controls not adequately designed or not complied with. The number in brackets represents the total number of controls 
reviewed in this area. 

Area Control 
design not 
effective*

Non 
Compliance 
with controls*

Agreed management actions
Low Medium High 

Risk Management 0 (16) 5 (16) 4 1 0 

Total  
 

4 1 0 

Page 30 of 59

62



 

  South Kesteven District Council Risk Management 15.19/20  

2 DETAILED FINDINGS 
Categorisation of internal audit findings 
Priority Definition

Low  There is scope for enhancing control or improving efficiency and quality.

Medium Timely management attention is necessary. This is an internal control risk management issue that could lead to: Financial losses which could affect the 
effective function of a department, loss of controls or process being audited or possible regulatory scrutiny/reputational damage, negative publicity in local 
or regional media. 

High Immediate management attention is necessary. This is a serious internal control or risk management issue that may lead to: Substantial losses, violation 
of corporate strategies, policies or values, regulatory scrutiny, reputational damage, negative publicity in national or international media or adverse 
regulatory impact, such as loss of operating licences or material fines.

This report has been prepared by exception. Therefore, we have included in this section, only those areas of weakness in control or examples of lapses in control identified 
from our testing and not the outcome of all internal audit testing undertaken. 

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 
with 

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for management Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

1 The Council has an 
agreed Constitution 
which contains high 
level key controls and 
defines the ownership 
arrangements for the 
management of all 
levels of risk within the 
Council. 

Yes No The Council’s Constitution was noted to be 
available on the Council's website for all staff 
to review.  

The Financial Regulations section within the 
Constitution, which includes risk management 
practices, was recorded as being last updated 
in April 2016.  

 

With the Council’s Financial Regulations 
having not been updated since April 2016 the 
Risk Management practices recorded within 
them may not be current ones for staff to ad-
here to. 

Low The Council will ensure 
that the Financial 
Regulations section within 
the Constitution, where risk 
management practices are 
recorded, is reviewed and 
updated to ensure that it 
records current risk 
management practices 
within the Council.  

Management Comment 

Revised Financial 
Regulations were 
recommended for approval 
at the December meeting 
of Governance and Audit 
Committee – there were no 
changes in respect of risk 
management. 

31 January 2020 Head of 
Finance 

Page 31 of 59

63



 

  South Kesteven District Council Risk Management 15.19/20  

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 
with 

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for management Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

2 The Council’s Risk 
Management Process 
explains how risks are 
assessed and 
evaluated. Risks are 
measured in terms of 
likelihood and impact 
following a risk matrix.

Yes No Through review of the Risk Management 
Framework, Appendix B and C details the risk 
identification, evaluation and the process to 
treat a risk.  

Upon review of the Service and Corporate 
Risk Registers, it was noted that some risk 
priorities have been incorrectly recorded e.g. 
risk ratings between six and nine have been 
recorded as 'Medium' when according to the 
matrix these should be 'High' and risks with a 
rating of 12 are recorded as 'High' but should 
be recorded as 'Very High'.  

Incorrect risk ratings may confuse staff when it 
comes to reviewing them as they may not 
review the risks recorded as 'Medium' when 
they are actually 'High'. 

Low The Governance and Risk 
Officer will review the 
Service and Corporate Risk 
registers to ensure the 
correct risk rating is 
recorded against each risk 
to be in line with the 
Council's risk matrix within 
the Risk Management 
Framework. 

Management Comment 

The risks have been 
amended to capture the 
correct priority. 

Immediate Governance & 
Risk Officer 

3 For each risk on the 
Service Risk Register, 
controls are put in 
place and recorded on 
the register to mitigate 
each risk. 

Yes No A review of the Council's Service Risk 
Register noted that there was a total of 90 
risks recorded but that the register was 
incomplete. The Governance and Risk Officer 
confirmed that this was due to one Head of 
Service having not met with them.  

Without having the Service Risk Register fully 
up to date there is a risk that monitoring, or 
review of specific risks may not have been 
taking place which will leave the Council 
exposed and not able to reduce any impact if 
the risk was to materialise. 

Low The Governance and Risk 
Officer will arrange a 
meeting with the one 
outstanding Head of 
Service to discuss and 
record the necessary 
details to be recorded on 
the Service Risk register 
for their area. 

 

31 March 2020 Governance & 
Risk Officer 

4 A dedicated Risk 
Management Group 
(RMG)meets every 
four months to discuss 
the risks faced by the 
Council and these 

Yes No RMG minutes were obtained for the meetings 
held in December 2018, May 2019 and 
September 2019.  Through review of the 
minutes it was noted that the Service Risk 
Register was discussed and reviewed at each 
of the meetings.   

Medium The Head of Finance will 
remind Heads of Service, 
via an email, of the 
importance of attending 
RMG. 

31 January 2020 Head of 
Finance 

Page 32 of 59

64



 

  South Kesteven District Council Risk Management 15.19/20  

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 
with 

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for management Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

meetings should be  
attended by all Heads 
of Service or a 
representative from 
their area. 

However, through review of the attendance 
levels at RMG it was apparent that the level of 
engagement across service areas varied. 
Some Heads of Service, or their 
representatives, had attended all meetings 
whilst for other service areas it was noted that 
there had been no attendance. 

The lack of attendance will cause 
management to not be aware of crucial 
updates or changes which may affect them. 

5 Staff involved in the 
risk management 
processes understand 
and are fully aware of 
their roles and 
responsibilities. 
Training is provided to 
appropriate staff as 
and when required to 
ensure this is the 
case. 

Yes No The Governance and Risk Officer has 
confirmed training is provided as part of Risk 
Management Group or as part of the Council’s 
management programme. 

Upon discussion with four Heads of Service, 
all stated they understood the Risk 
Management Framework and the process 
within the Council.  

When asked about training / development, 
three expressed interest in having more Risk 
Management training, with one being unsure.  

Without further training, there is a risk staff 
may not be fully engaged with Risk 
Management practices or policies as it may 
not be understood. 

Low The Governance and Risk 
Officer will discuss further 
training needs at the next 
Risk Management Group. 

31 January 2020 Governance & 
Risk Officer 

Page 33 of 59

65



 

  South Kesteven District Council Planning Service  

1.1 Background  
A review of the Planning Service was undertaken as part of the approved internal audit periodic plan for 2019/20.  

Since 1 April 2019 the Council have received over 800 planning applications. The bulk of planning applications 
received come to the Council via the online Planning Portal. Once a planning application is received a case profile is 
created on the Planning system. The Planning system is used to manage and update all ongoing planning 
applications. All planning application fees are set in accordance with the calculated planning application fees for 
England.  

Each planning application is assigned to a Case Officer who must aim to reach a decision about the planning 
application in eight weeks for non-major applications and 13 weeks for major applications. The Council's target for 
responding to cases in this time is 60%  for major cases and 65% for non-major cases. The Council is currently 
performing above target in both cases. 

This audit also focused on the appeals process for planning applications. All appeals are considered by a Planning 
Inspectorate. The Council have dealt with 18 appeals since 1 April 2019. Ongoing appeals are reported and discussed 
at Planning Committee. 

1.2 Conclusion 
There is an appropriate control framework in place for the Planning Service across the Council. Our work confirmed 
that there are adequate controls in place, however, testing identified that the controls are not always consistently 
applied. Areas of improvements have been noted which has resulted in the agreement of two ‘low’ management 
actions being raised. 

Internal audit opinion: 
Taking account of the issues identified, the Council can 
take substantial assurance that the controls upon which 
the Council relies to manage the identified risk(s) are 
suitably designed, consistently applied and operating 
effectively. 

 

1.3 Key findings 
Our audit review identified that the following controls are suitably designed, consistently applied and are operating 
effectively: 

• An up to date Planning Policy is in place covering all aspects of the Planning Service. It is made available to staff 
via the Council's website. 

• Extensive procedure notes are in place covering all areas regarding the Planning Service. They are maintained up 
to date and made available to staff via a shared drive.  

• Comprehensive training is in place across the Planning Service. The Council also subscribe to the East Midlands 
Councils CPD Programme which offer seminars providing the most up to date guidance relating to a variety of 
areas regarding planning.  

• Planning application fees are set in line with the expected planning application fees for England. All planning 
application fees are made available via the Council's website. 

PLANNING SERVICE - EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Page 34 of 59

66



 

  South Kesteven District Council Planning Service  

• The Council operates a 'no fee, no service' in regard to planning applications and testing a sample of 20 planning 
applications received confirmed in all instances that the correct fee was charged and recorded on the planning 
system prior to the application being considered.  

• A review of the Council's website confirmed that comprehensive guidance is in place for completing and submitting 
a planning application. 

• The Council is responsible for informing an applicant on the decision made regarding their planning application. 
Testing a sample of 20 applications received confirmed in all cases that the applicant was informed of the decision 
made and that the decision notice was documented on the planning system.  

• The Council have received 18 appeal cases since 1 April 2019, and these must be reviewed and considered by an 
independent Planning Inspectorate. The Council is required to provide the Planning Inspectorate with a list of all 
neighbours and consultees regarding the planning application. Testing all 18 appeals confirmed that these were 
provided and documented on the planning system where applicable.  

• At the time of the audit, testing confirmed that of the 18 appeal cases received, 14 have had decisions made. In all 
14 cases the appeal decision notice was documented on the planning system and the applicant subsequently 
informed.  

• Extensive KPI reporting is undertaken in line with national expectations and reported to Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on a quarterly basis. 

• All appeal cases are reported and discussed at Planning Committee.  

However, the following control weaknesses were identified; 

• A log outlining all additional training attended by staff is not maintained by management.  

• Testing a sample of 20 applications received, 10 of which that required an extension of time in the decision-making 
process, confirmed in nine cases that an extension of time notice was documented on the planning system. In the 
remaining instance, no extension of time notice was documented on file. 

 

1.4 Additional information to support our conclusion 
The following table highlights the number and categories of management actions made. The detailed findings section 
lists the specific actions agreed with management to implement. 

* Shows the number of controls not adequately designed or not complied with. The number in brackets represents the total number of controls 
reviewed in this area. 

Area Control 
design not 
effective*

Non-
Compliance 
with controls*

Agreed management actions
Low Medium High 

Planning Service 0 (13) 2 (13) 2 0 0 

Total  
 

2 0 0 

Page 35 of 59

67



 

  South Kesteven District Council Planning Service  

2 DETAILED FINDINGS 
Categorisation of internal audit findings 
Priority Definition

Low  There is scope for enhancing control or improving efficiency and quality. 

Medium Timely management attention is necessary. This is an internal control risk management issue that could lead to: Financial losses which could affect the 
effective function of a department, loss of controls or process being audited or possible regulatory scrutiny/reputational damage, negative publicity in local 
or regional media. 

High Immediate management attention is necessary. This is a serious internal control or risk management issue that may lead to: Substantial losses, violation 
of corporate strategies, policies or values, regulatory scrutiny, reputational damage, negative publicity in national or international media or adverse 
regulatory impact, such as loss of operating licences or material fines. 

This report has been prepared by exception. Therefore, we have included in this section, only those areas of weakness in control or examples of lapses in control identified 
from our testing and not the outcome of all internal audit testing undertaken. 

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 

with  

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for management Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

Area: Planning Service

1. An up to date staff 
training log is 
maintained outlining all 
staff training undertaken 
by each staff member 
and when it was 
completed. 

Yes No Upon review it was identified that a 
full training log is in place outlining 
all essential training for staff and 
desirable training they would like to 
receive via the CPD programme. 
However, it was noticed that any 
internal or additional training staff 
receive is not recorded by 
management.   

If a log of all training that staff 
receive is not maintained by 
management, there is a risk that 
management will not be aware of 
whether staff have received up to 
date training guidance. 

Low A log of all training that 
staff attend, including 
additional and internal 
courses, will be 
maintained by 
management. 

31 May 2020 Head of 
Development 
Management 

Page 36 of 59

68



 

  South Kesteven District Council Planning Service  

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 

with  

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for management Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

2. Upon receiving a 
planning application, 
the application is 
considered, and a 
decision is made in a 
timely manner. 

Yes No Planning applications are 
differentiated between major and 
non-major (minor) types of 
application.    

The Council are required to respond 
within eight weeks (56 days) for non-
major applications and 13 weeks (91 
days) for major applications. If an 
extension for consideration of the 
application is required, the applicant 
must be notified, and a copy 
retained on file.   

Testing a sample of 20 planning 
applications received since 1 April 
2019 confirmed in 10 cases that a 
decision on the application was 
made within the relevant time frame.  
In the remaining 10 instances, an 
extension of time was required to 
process the application. Of these 10 
applications, an extension notice 
was documented on the Planning 
system in nine instances. In the 
remaining instance, no extension of 
time notice was noted.    

If all documentation surrounding a 
planning application is not 
documented on the Planning 
system, there is a risk that a full 
audit trail will not be in place in the 
event of dispute or query. 

Low Management will remind 
staff, via email,  to upload 
all application 
documentation, including 
the extension of time 
notice, to the Planning 
system. 

31 March 2020 Head of 
Development 
Management 

Page 37 of 59

69



 

  South Kesteven District Council Homelessness 17.19/20  

1.1 Background  
A review of Homelessness was undertaken at South Kesteven District Council (“the Council”) as part of the approved 
internal audit periodic plan for 2019/20.  

The Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 (HRA) is one of the biggest changes to the rights of homeless persons in the 
last 15 years. It effectively introduced two new duties to the original statutory rehousing duty: 

• Duty to Prevent Homelessness; and 

• Duty to Relieve Homelessness. 

The Prevention Duty applies when a local authority is satisfied that an applicant is threatened with homelessness and 
is eligible for assistance. As part of the Prevention Duty, the Council will help people at risk of losing their current 
accommodation if they are threatened with homelessness within a 56-day period. The Council will attempt to prevent 
individuals from losing their accommodation or help them plan a move to new accommodation. The Council may also 
be able to help with benefits and discretionary payments to top up rent shortfalls. 

Section 189B of the HRA also sets out a Relief Duty on local authorities. If an individual is already homeless, or 
becomes homeless despite activity during the prevention stage, then reasonable steps are taken by the Council on 
helping the applicant to secure accommodation. This duty applies for 56 days. Local connection is considered during 
this duty to ensure the accommodation offered is suitable.  

If the Council has reason to believe a homeless applicant may be eligible for assistance and currently has a Priority 
Need, they must be provided with emergency or temporary accommodation.  

The Council has a dedicated Homelessness Prevention Team in place. The Team is made up of five Homeless 
Prevention Officers and four Homeless Prevention Assistants, which are all overseen by the Senior Homeless 
Prevention Officer. 

Since the start of the current financial year, The Council has had 237 Homelessness Applications which have resulted 
in a Prevention Duty owed and 297 applications with a confirmed Relief Duty owed. 

1.2 Conclusion 
There is a control framework in place for governing Homelessness. Our work confirmed that there are adequate 
controls in place, however, testing identified that the controls are not always consistently applied. Areas of 
improvement have been noted which has resulted in the agreement of seven ‘Medium’ and seven ‘Low’ priority 
management action being raised. 

Internal audit opinion: 
Taking account of the issues identified, the Council can 
take partial assurance that the controls to manage this 
area are suitably designed and consistently applied. 
Action is needed to strengthen the control framework to 
manage the identified area. 

 

 

 

HOMELESSNESS - EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Page 38 of 59

70



 

  South Kesteven District Council Homelessness 17.19/20  

1.3 Key findings 
Our audit review identified that the following controls are suitably designed, consistently applied and are operating 
effectively: 

• A Lincolnshire Homelessness Strategy is in place as per the requirements set out in Section One of the 
Homelessness Act 2002 along with a Lincolnshire Rough Sleeping Strategy. The Strategies are valid from 2017 to 
2021 and 2019 to 2021 respectively and are both available on the Council's website. The Rough Sleeping 
Strategy is intended to be read as an addendum to the Lincolnshire Homelessness Strategy which runs until 2021, 
both are due be reviewed and merged at the end of this period. 

• The Council’s housing stock is regularly reviewed and monitored to identify any potential issues which may arise in 
the future, considering the numbers of available properties and their condition and suitability for different groups 
such as sheltered housing, specially adapted properties, etc. 

• The Council has a dedicated Homeless Prevention Section on its website. Members of the public can access key 
documents in relation to homelessness, request housing advice via an online interactive form, contact the 
Homelessness Prevention Team via telephone, and there is an Emergency Hotline number in place for support 
outside of normal office hours. Contact details for the Homelessness Prevention Team are also contained within 
the Council's tenants' magazine (SKyline). 

• The Rents Team actively monitor rental arrears to pro-actively identify tenants at risk of homelessness. Referrals 
are made to the Homelessness Prevention Team where a tenant has been identified as at risk of potential 
homelessness. Regular meetings are also undertaken between the Homelessness Prevention and Rents Teams 
to discuss any trends, queries or concerns. 

• The Council works with a wide range of local authorities and external agencies such as Housing Associations to 
assist with homelessness prevention.  The Council attends the Lincolnshire Homelessness Forums which are held 
on a quarterly basis. 

However, we identified the following exceptions with the Council’s established control framework: 

• The Council’s Housing Strategy is valid from 2019 to 2023 and is currently in draft format. The Strategy recently 
received approval by Cabinet on 21 January 2020, and therefore a final version of the document is due to be 
produced. Additionally, it was noted that the Council website currently contains an older version (2017 to 2021) of 
the Housing Strategy. 

• The Council has a Tenancy Strategy in place as per requirements set out within Section 150 of the Localism Act 
2011. The Strategy is valid from 2019 to 2024. Through review it was noted that the Council website currently 
contains an outdated version (2013) of the Tenancy Strategy. 

• The Homelessness Prevention Team have a wide range of procedure notes in place which cover various aspects 
of the homelessness process. Through review of the procedure notes it was noted that many of the documents did 
not contain any review dates or version control, so it was not possible to confirm that they had been maintained up 
to date.  

• The Homelessness Prevention Team also has an overarching Triage Procedure - Housing and Homelessness 
Advice which details the steps to be followed by Prevention Officers to ensure the Council is appropriately fulfilling 
its statutory duties regarding homelessness applications. However, it was noted that the procedure document had 
surpassed it’s set review date of September 2019.      

• The Council has a Housing Management Strategy in place. However, through review it was noted that the 
Strategy had surpassed its set review date of 2018. 

 

Page 39 of 59

71



 

  South Kesteven District Council Homelessness 17.19/20  

• A training log spreadsheet is in place for staff members within the Homelessness Prevention Team. It was 
however noted that certain staff members did not have any delivered training documented. Additionally, instances 
were noted where dates were not recorded for when the relevant training was completed and there is also no 
information currently documented for refresher training if applicable. 

• From testing a sample of 20 homelessness applications from the current financial year, instances were identified 
whereby the initial assessment had not been carried out or the initial contact was not made promptly with the 
applicant, a decision letter was not sent to the applicant promptly and instances were noted where the Prevention 
or Relief Duty was note ended within 56 days and an extension had not been applied. 

• The Council has a Temporary Accommodation Procedure in place although it was noted that the Procedure had 
not been updated since 2015. It was also noted that the Procedure does not cover the booking of emergency 
accommodation. Additionally, the Procedure does not specify a need to consider value for money, or a list of 
approved hotels and bed and breakfasts which the Council has negotiated favourable rates with.    

• From testing a sample of 20 homelessness applications which had resulted in the allocation of temporary or 
emergency accommodation during the current financial year instances were noted whereby a Temporary 
Accommodation Request Form had either not been completed or authorised, no evidence of any action being 
taken to recover monies owed to the Council by tenants with outstanding utility charges or where emergency 
accommodation costs had been covered by the Council. 

• From a review of the Temporary Accommodation Rent Procedure it was noted that it does not provide adequate 
detail to allow rent officers to recoup rent and utility charges. Additionally, the Procedure does not specify the point 
at which a Notice to Vacate should be served and does not provide any guidance on the recovery procedure for 
outstanding utility charges.  

• From a review of the Emergency Booking Invoice Procedure it was noted that it does not provide adequate detail 
to allow officers to recoup charges in line with LHA Rates for emergency accommodation bookings.  

• At the time of audit, it was noted that there is currently no monitoring undertaken by the Homelessness Prevention 
Team to identify repeat users of temporary or emergency accommodation. 

 

1.4 Additional information to support our conclusion 
The following table highlights the number and categories of management actions made. The detailed findings section 
lists the specific actions agreed with management to implement. 

* Shows the number of controls not adequately designed or not complied with. The number in brackets represents the total number of controls 
reviewed in this area. 

Area Control 
design not 
effective*

Non 
Compliance 
with controls*

Agreed management actions
Low Medium High 

Homelessness 0 (16) 11 (16) 7 7 0 

Total  
 

7 7 0 

Page 40 of 59

72



 

  South Kesteven District Council Homelessness 17.19/20  

2 DETAILED FINDINGS 
Categorisation of internal audit findings 
Priority Definition

Low  There is scope for enhancing control or improving efficiency and quality.

Medium Timely management attention is necessary. This is an internal control risk management issue that could lead to: Financial losses which could affect the 
effective function of a department, loss of controls or process being audited or possible regulatory scrutiny/reputational damage, negative publicity in local 
or regional media. 

High Immediate management attention is necessary. This is a serious internal control or risk management issue that may lead to: Substantial losses, violation 
of corporate strategies, policies or values, regulatory scrutiny, reputational damage, negative publicity in national or international media or adverse 
regulatory impact, such as loss of operating licences or material fines.

This report has been prepared by exception. Therefore, we have included in this section, only those areas of weakness in control or examples of lapses in control identified 
from our testing and not the outcome of all internal audit testing undertaken. 

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 
with  

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for 
management 

Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

1 The Council has a draft 
Housing Strategy in place. 
The Strategy is valid from 
2019 to 2023 and is 
available on the Council's 
website.   

The Housing Strategy is an 
overarching document which 
takes account of the main 
national and local issues that 
are likely to affect the district 
in the near future.  

It sets out the Council's 
challenges and how they will 
address them, focusing on 
delivering outcomes across 
four core theme areas.  

Yes No The Council’s current Housing Strategy 
was obtained and reviewed. The Strategy 
is valid from 2019 to 2023.  

However, it was noted that the Strategy is 
currently in draft format. The Strategy 
recently received approval by Cabinet on 
21 January 2020, and therefore a final 
version of the document is due to be 
produced.  

Additionally, it was noted that the Council’s 
website currently contains an older version 
(2017 to 2021) of the Housing Strategy.  

If Strategy documents published on the 
Council’s website are not maintained up to 
date, there is a risk that outdated 
information will be presented to the public. 

Low A final version of the 
2019 to 2023 Housing 
Strategy will be 
approved and published 
on the Council’s 
website.   

31 March 2020 

 

Head of 
Housing 
Services 

Page 41 of 59

73



 

  South Kesteven District Council Homelessness 17.19/20  

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 
with  

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for 
management 

Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

The actions needed to 
support this are detailed in 
an action plan. 

2 The Council has a Tenancy 
Strategy in place as per 
requirements set out within 
Section 150 of the Localism 
Act 2011.  

The Strategy is valid from 
2019 to 2024 and is 
available on the Council's 
website.  

The aim of the Strategy is to 
help guide social landlords 
who operate in their area, 
make decisions about what 
types of tenancies to offer, 
so that all social housing 
across the district is used to 
its optimum level. 

Yes No The Council’s current Tenancy Strategy 
was obtained and reviewed. The Strategy 
is valid from 2019 to 2024.  

Through review it was noted that the 
Council’s website currently contains an 
outdated version (2013) of the Tenancy 
Strategy.  

If Strategy documents published on the 
Council’s website are not maintained up to 
date, there is a risk that outdated 
information will be presented to the public. 

Low The Council's website 
will be updated to 
include the current 
version of the Council's 
Tenancy Strategy once 
approved. 

31 March 2020 Head of 
Housing 
Services 

3 Procedure notes are in place 
to provide guidance to staff 
members on the 
management of strategic 
housing and homelessness.  

Procedure notes are 
maintained up to date and 
are readily available to 
relevant staff members. 

Yes No The Homelessness Prevention Team have 
a wide range of procedure notes in place 
which cover various aspects of the 
homelessness process.  

All procedure notes are stored on a local 
shared drive which is accessible to all 
relevant staff members involved within the 
homelessness process.    

Through review of the procedure notes it 
was noted that many of the documents did 
not contain any review dates or version 
control, so it was not possible to confirm 
that they had been maintained up to date 
and where they had been recorded it was 

Low A review will be 
undertaken of all 
homelessness 
procedure 
documentations.  

The review will involve 
ensuring all documents 
are updated and 
version controlled with 
set future review dates. 

Management Comment 

Now updated. 

31 May 2020 Head of 
Housing 
Services 

Page 42 of 59

74



 

  South Kesteven District Council Homelessness 17.19/20  

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 
with  

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for 
management 

Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

noted that the set review date had 
surpassed i.e. Triage Procedure – review 
date September 2019.   

If procedure notes are not maintained up to 
date, there is a risk of inconsistent working 
practices being exercised by staff 
members. 

4 The Council has a Housing 
Management Strategy in 
place to outline the 
processes for monitoring and 
managing its current housing 
stock.  

The Strategy is valid from 
2013 to 2018 and is 
available on the Council's 
website. 

Yes No The Council’s current Housing 
Management Strategy was obtained and 
reviewed and was also found to have been 
published on the Council’s website.  

Through review it was noted that the 
Strategy had surpassed its set review date 
of 2018.  

If Strategy documents are not subject to 
scheduled reviews, there is a risk that the 
document may contain outdated 
information, resulting in inconsistent 
working practices. 

Low The Council's current 
Housing Asset 
Management Strategy 
will be reviewed and 
updated. 

31 July 2020 Head of 
Improvements 
and Repairs 

5 The Council has a dedicated 
Homelessness 
Prevention Team in place.  

The Team is made up of five 
Prevention Homeless 
Officers and four Homeless 
Prevention Assistants, which 
are all overseen by the 
Senior Homeless Prevention 
Officer.  

All staff members have 
received appropriate training 
for their roles and 

Yes No A training log spreadsheet is in place for 
staff members within the Homelessness 
Prevention Team, however, through review 
of the log it was noted that certain staff 
members did not have any delivered 
training documented.  

Additionally, instances were noted where 
dates were not recorded for when the 
relevant training was completed and there 
is also no information currently 
documented for refresher training.    

If the training log spreadsheet is not fully 
completed and maintained up to date, 
there is a risk that it will contain outdated 

Medium The Open Housing 
Training Log 
Spreadsheet will be 
reviewed and updated 
to record when staff had 
attended training. 

Management Comment 

Now updated 

31 May 2020 

 

Head of 
Housing 
Services 

Page 43 of 59

75



 

  South Kesteven District Council Homelessness 17.19/20  

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 
with  

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for 
management 

Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

responsibilities in aiding 
homelessness prevention. 

information resulting in staff members not 
receiving appropriate training in a timely 
manner for their relevant roles and duties. 

6 When an individual contacts 
the Council with concerns of 
homelessness, the relevant 
Homeless Prevention Officer 
managing the request will 
open a case on the Locata 
System. Contact is made 
with the individual within five 
working days.  

The relevant officer will carry 
out an initial assessment to 
assess the case within 
seven working days and 
provide a decision within five 
working days from the point 
of assessment.   

The decision will be based 
on one of the following three 
outcomes:  

• The Council is liable to 
provide support based on 
a Prevention Duty;  

• The Council is liable to 
provide support based on 
a Relief Duty; and  

• No evidence of a duty 
being present is available 
(in this instance the 
Council will provide 
general advice). 

Yes No A sample of 20 homelessness applications 
(10 having Prevention Duty present and 10 
with Relief Duty present) were selected 
and tested from the current financial year.  

From the testing the following issued were 
identified: 

• One instance was noted where initial 
contact was not made with the applicant 
until six working days had elapsed;   

• Two instances were noted where an 
initial assessment had not been carried 
out within seven days of the point of 
initial contact (10 days and 21 days);  

• One instance was noted where a 
Decision Letter documenting the results 
from the initial assessment was not send 
to the applicant until 10 working days 
after the assessment was completed; 
and  

• Three instances were noted where a 
Decision Letter had not been created 
and sent to the applicant.     

If homeless applications are not processed 
in the timeframes as per the Council’s 
procedure, there is a risk that applications 
will not be processed in a timely manner 
resulting in the Council being in breach of 
their statutory duties to prevent 
homelessness. 

Medium A reminder via email 
will be issued to all 
Homelessness 
Prevention Officers to 
ensure initial 
applications are 
processed in a timely 
manner in line with 
procedural 
requirements. 

Management Comment 

Email has now been 
issued. 

14 February 2020 Head of 
Housing 
Services 

Page 44 of 59

76



 

  South Kesteven District Council Homelessness 17.19/20  

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 
with  

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for 
management 

Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

7 Section 189B of the 
Homelessness Reduction 
Act 2017 (HRA) sets out a 
Prevention Duty on local 
authorities.  

The duty requires local 
authorities to assist in the 
prevention of homelessness 
and secure accommodation 
when approached by an 
applicant.  

Valid applicants are 
individuals who have been 
threatened with 
homelessness within 56 
days.  

As part of the Prevention 
Duty, the Prevention Officer 
will work collaboratively with 
the applicant to produce a 
Personalised Housing Plan 
(PHP). The PHP will contain 
the reasonable steps that 
both the Council, and the 
applicant should take, in 
order that the applicant’s 
homelessness can be 
prevented or relieved.   

The duty will be applicable 
for a period of 56 days from 
the point of the original 
application being assessed.  

If the prevention is 
successful, the duty of the 
Council is terminated. If the 

Yes No A sample of 20 homelessness applications 
were selected and tested from the current 
financial year. 10 of the applications 
sampled were confirmed by the Council as 
having a Prevention Duty present. From 
the testing the following issues were noted:  

• In one instance a PHP was not created 
as contact was lost with the original 
applicant.   

• In one instance it was noted where the 
duty was not ended within 56 days and 
an extension had not been applied. 
Additionally, in the same instance a 
supporting Decision Letter was not 
produced and sent to the applicant once 
the duty had ended.   

If Prevention Duties are not resolved and 
ended by the Council within the 56-day 
guideline and supporting Decision Letter 
sent to the applicant, there is a risk that the 
Council may be in breach of its statutory 
duty to applicants. 

Medium A reminder via email 
will be issued to all 
Homelessness 
Prevention Officers to 
ensure that Prevention 
Duties are resolved and 
ended in a timely 
manner in line with 
statutory guidelines.  

A reminder via email 
will also be issued to 
ensure Decision Letters 
are created and sent to 
the original applicant, 
once a duty has come 
to an end. 

Management Comment 

Email has now been 
issued. 

14 February 2020 Head of 
Housing 
Services 

Page 45 of 59

77



 

  South Kesteven District Council Homelessness 17.19/20  

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 
with  

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for 
management 

Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

prevention is unsuccessful, 
the application is assessed 
under the Council's Relief 
Duty. 

8 Section 189B of the HRA 
sets out a ‘Relief Duty’ on 
local authorities.  

If the applicant is already 
homeless, or becomes 
homeless despite activity 
during the prevention stage, 
the reasonable steps are 
focused on helping the 
applicant to secure 
accommodation.  

A PHP will be created if an 
existing version is not 
already in place.  

The Relief Duty lasts for 56 
days unless The Council 
serves a notice to end it.  

The Relief Duty will be 
terminated if accommodation 
is secured and the duty 
ends, the duty is ended with 
no resolution (e.g. if found 
intentionally homeless), or 
the duty ends with a 
resolution and no further 
support is required. 

Yes No A sample of 20 homelessness applications 
were selected and tested from the current 
financial year. 10 of the applications 
sampled were confirmed by the Council as 
having a Relief Duty present.  

From the testing it was identified that in 
one instance the duty was not ended within 
56 days and an extension had not been 
applied.    

If Relief Duties are not resolved and ended 
by the Council within the 56-day guideline, 
there is a risk that the Council may be in 
breach of its statutory duty to applicants. 

Low A reminder will be 
issued to all 
Homelessness 
Prevention Officers to 
ensure that Relief 
Duties are resolved and 
ended in a timely 
manner in line with 
statutory guidelines. 

Management Comment 

Email has now been 
issued. 

14 February 2020 Head of 
Housing 
Services 

9 If the Council has reason to 
believe a homeless applicant 
may be eligible for 
assistance and have a 

Yes No The Council has a Temporary 
Accommodation Procedure in place which 
outlines the Council’s processes for the 
placement of households in temporary 

Medium The Temporary 
Accommodation 
Procedure will be 
reviewed and updated 

31 May 2020 

 

Head of 
Housing 
Services 

Page 46 of 59

78



 

  South Kesteven District Council Homelessness 17.19/20  

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 
with  

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for 
management 

Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

Priority Need, they must be 
provided with emergency or 
temporary accommodation 
(as per Section 188 of the 
HRA).  

The Council has dedicated 
temporary accommodation 
on file which can be 
allocated to homeless 
individuals, providing the 
relevant criteria has been 
met.  

The Council will take into 
consideration the individuals’ 
circumstances and 
determine whether existing 
temporary accommodation 
will be suitable.  

Where temporary 
accommodation is deemed 
not suitable for an individual, 
the Council will book 
emergency accommodation 
via a hotel or bed and 
breakfast.  

Prior to the booking of 
temporary and emergency 
accommodation, the relevant 
officer must complete a 
Temporary Accommodation 
Request Form which is 
reviewed and approved by 
the Senior Homeless 
Prevention Officer. 

accommodation, both inside and outside 
the District.  

Through review it was noted that the 
Procedure had not been updated since 
2015 and does not cover the booking of 
emergency accommodation.  

Additionally, the Procedure does not 
specify a need to consider value for 
money, or a list of approved hotels and bed 
and breakfasts which the Council has 
negotiated favourable rates with.    

If procedure notes are not comprehensive 
and maintained up to date, there is a risk of 
inconsistent working practices resulting in 
financial loss to the Council. 

to reflect current 
working practices.  

The Procedure will be 
revised to include 
information regarding 
the booking of 
emergency 
accommodation and a 
supporting list of 
approved hotels and 
bed, and breakfasts will 
also be documented. 

Management Comment 

B&B’s are currently 
going through a 
procurement process. 

Page 47 of 59

79



 

  South Kesteven District Council Homelessness 17.19/20  

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 
with  

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for 
management 

Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

10 See Reference Nine. Yes No The Council currently has 51 temporary 
accommodation properties which can be 
utilised for homelessness prevention.  

A sample of 20 homelessness applications 
which had resulted in the allocation of 
temporary or emergency accommodation 
were selected and tested from the current 
financial year. From the testing the 
following issues were identified: 

• Five instances were noted where a 
Temporary Accommodation Request 
Form had been completed but not 
authorised; and  

• In 13 instances, evidence could not be 
provided of a Temporary 
Accommodation Request Form being 
completed.   

If Temporary Accommodation Request 
Forms are not completed and appropriately 
authorised prior to the booking of 
temporary or emergency accommodation, 
there is a risk that the relevant criteria may 
not have been met, resulting in financial 
loss to the Council. 

Medium A Temporary 
Accommodation 
Request Form will be 
completed and 
authorised prior to the 
booking of temporary or 
emergency 
accommodation. 

Management Comment 

This has already been 
implemented 

14 February 2020 Head of 
Housing 
Services 

11 The Homelessness 
Prevention Team has a 
Temporary Accommodation 
Rent Account Collection 
Procedure Document in 
place.   

Rental cost or booking fees 
for the use of temporary or 
emergency accommodation 

Yes No The Senior Homelessness Prevention 
Officer runs a weekly report of outstanding 
rent balances for temporary and 
emergency accommodations. Balances in 
excess of £500 are highlighted for further 
investigation.    

A sample of 20 homelessness applications 
(10 temporary accommodation and 10 
emergency accommodation) which had 
resulted in the allocation of temporary or 
emergency accommodation were selected 

Medium Clear guidance will be 
published, and 
subsequent training will 
be delivered to staff 
members regarding the 
recovery process of rent 
and service charges in 
relation to the use 
temporary and 
emergency 
accommodation. 

31 May 2020 

 

Head of 
Housing 
Services 

Page 48 of 59

80



 

  South Kesteven District Council Homelessness 17.19/20  

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 
with  

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for 
management 

Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

is the responsibility of the 
applicant.  

If the applicant is in receipt 
of Housing Benefit, this can 
be off-set against the rental 
or booking fee.  

Applicants who are placed 
into self-contained temporary 
accommodation must also 
pay a small daily utility 
charge, which is not covered 
by Housing Benefit.   

Applicants placed into 
emergency accommodation 
are charged based on the 
daily LHA Rates, which can 
also be offset by Housing 
Benefit.  

Any shortfall for emergency 
accommodation fees is 
covered by the 
Homelessness Budget Fund.  

Failure to pay temporary 
accommodation charges will 
result in the Council issuing 
a Notice to Vacate to the 
applicant. 

and tested from the current financial year. 
The following issues were noted: 

Temporary Accommodation   

• One instance was noted where the 
individual's outstanding balance was 
£514 at the time of audit, however, the 
individual was currently undergoing an 
appeal of a homelessness decision and 
therefore no recovery action had been 
taken; and   

• Three instances were noted where the 
individuals had an outstanding utility 
charge totalling £743 and no evidence 
could be provided of any recovery action 
being undertaken.  

Emergency Accommodation   

• Four instances were noted where costs 
for the stay had not been covered by 
Housing Benefit and the Council had 
made no attempt to recoup the funds 
from the individual granted emergency 
accommodation.    

• Two instances were notes where 
Housing Benefits had only covered a 
proportion of the LHA costs, and the 
Council had not attempted to recoup the 
remaining outstanding costs from the 
individual granted emergency 
accommodation.    

The Temporary Accommodation Officer is 
currently reviewing the identified cases and 
is in the process of attempting to recoup 
the outstanding funds.   

Page 49 of 59

81



 

  South Kesteven District Council Homelessness 17.19/20  

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 
with  

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for 
management 

Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

If rental and services charges are not 
appropriately recovered by the Council in 
regard to the use of temporary and 
emergency accommodation, there is a risk 
of financial loss to the Council. 

12 See Reference 11. Yes No A Temporary Accommodation Rent 
Procedure is in place. Through review it 
was noted that it does not: 

• Provide adequate detail to allow rent 
officers to recoup rent and utility 
charges;  

• Specify the point at which a Notice to 
Vacate should be served;  

• Provide any guidance on the recovery 
procedure for outstanding utility charges; 
and    

• Contain any review information and 
therefore it was not possible to confirm 
that it had been maintained up to date.    

If procedure documents are not 
comprehensive and maintained up to date, 
there is a risk that inconsistent working 
practices will be followed by staff members, 
resulting in subsequent financial loss to the 
Council. 

Low The Temporary 
Accommodation Rent 
Procedure will be 
reviewed and updated 
to reflect current 
working practices.  

A set review date will 
also be documented.  

31 May 2020 Head of 
Housing 
Services 

13 See Reference 11. Yes No An Emergency Booking Invoice Procedure 
is in place.  

Through review it was noted that the 
Procedure does not provide adequate 
detail to allow officers to recoup charges in 
line with LHA Rates for emergency 
accommodation bookings and does not 
contain any review information and 

Low The Emergency 
Booking Invoice 
Procedure will be 
reviewed and updated 
to reflect current 
working practices. A set 
review date will also be 
documented. 

31 May 2020 Head of 
Housing 
Services 

Page 50 of 59

82



 

  South Kesteven District Council Homelessness 17.19/20  

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 
with  

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for 
management 

Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

therefore it was not possible to confirm that 
it had been maintained up to date.    

If procedure documents are not 
comprehensive and maintained up to date, 
there is a risk that inconsistent working 
practices will be followed by staff members, 
resulting in subsequent financial loss to the 
Council. 

14 Monitoring is undertaken by 
the Homelessness 
Prevention Team to identify 
repeat users of temporary or 
emergency accommodation.   

Support is provided by 
Homeless Prevention Officer 
and the Housing Support 
Team to frequent users of 
temporary and emergency 
accommodation to prevent 
them becoming homeless or 
requiring assistance in the 
future. 

Yes No At the time of audit, it was noted that there 
is currently no monitoring undertaken by 
the Homelessness Prevention Team to 
identify repeat users of temporary or 
emergency accommodation.  

A report can be produced from the system 
which details information regarding repeat 
users, however, this is not currently 
regularly run and monitored.   

Without monitoring mechanisms in place to 
identify repeat users of temporary and 
emergency accommodation, there is a risk 
that the Council will not be able to provide 
sufficient support to frequent users to 
prevent them becoming homeless or 
requiring assistance in the future.  

Additionally, there is an enhanced risk of 
financial loss to the Council due to the 
expenses incurred for frequent users of 
temporary or emergency accommodation. 

Medium Monitoring will be 
undertaken to identify 
frequent users of 
temporary or 
emergency 
accommodation.  

Once identified, 
additional support will 
be provided to users to 
avoid them becoming 
homeless again in the 
future. 

Management Comment 

Report to be run 
quarterly from 2 March 
2020 to be scrutinised 
and meetings between 
HPO’s and Support 
Team. 

31 May 2020 

 

Head of 
Housing 
Services 

Page 51 of 59

83



 

  South Kesteven District Council Void Management 

1.1 Background  
A review of Void Management was undertaken at South Kesteven District Council (the Council) as part of the 
approved internal audit periodic plan for 2019/20.  

The audit was focused on the processes in place for identifying voids both prior to and as they materialise and the 
procedures for determining the condition of the property and addressing any issues following the void arising.  

The Council currently manages a portfolio of around 6,200 properties. Since the start of the current financial year there 
has been 165 properties where minor void works have been completed and 91 properties where major void works 
have been completed. 

Notification of current void and upcoming void properties are communicated to the Voids Department by the 
Allocations and Lettings Departments. Once the Voids Department receives notification of a void or upcoming void 
property, arrangements are made to carry out inspections to assess remedial works. Set completion dates for the 
remedial works once the amount of work and man-hours required has been assessed. Upon completion of works, an 
inspection is carried out by one of the Council’s Void Inspectors to ensure the work has been carried out to a 
satisfactory standard, who will then subsequently issue a Void Certificate to signify the property being ready to be 
allocated and re-let.    

The Council has a Housing Asset Management Strategy in place which sets out the Council’s Void Property Standard. 
The aim of the Standard is to ensure that properties are secure, meets all tenant basic needs and are in a reasonable 
condition prior to tenants moving in. All remedial works completed on void properties are required to be compliant with 
the Standard. 

 

1.2 Conclusion 
The review of Void Management has identified that overall the control framework is well designed. However, 
weaknesses in compliance with the established control framework have been identified which has resulted in the 
agreement of three 'Medium' and four ‘Low’ priority management actions.  

Internal audit opinion: 
Taking account of the issues identified, the Council can 
take reasonable assurance that the controls in place to 
manage this area are suitably designed and consistently 
applied. However, we have identified issues that need to 
be addressed in order to ensure that the control 
framework is effective in managing the identified area. 

 

 

 

 

VOID MANAGEMENT - EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Page 52 of 59

84



 

  South Kesteven District Council Void Management 

1.3 Key findings 
Our audit review identified that the following controls are suitably designed, consistently applied and are operating 
effectively: 

• The Council has a Housing Management Strategy in place. The Strategy sets out the Council’s approach to void 
properties as well as the Void Property Standard. 

• The Voids Department receive timely notification from the Lettings Department regarding current and upcoming 
void properties.   

• Once remedial works have been completed on void properties by the Void Department, properties are allocated 
and re-let in a timely manner by the Allocations and Lettings Departments.    

• Once a tenant provides the Council notice to end an existing tenancy or the Council is due to complete an eviction, 
a Pre-Termination Inspection will be completed by a Void Inspector. Inspections are carried out with the aim of 
identifying any repairs that are required to be carried out by the existing tenant. A Pre-Void Inspection / 
Rechargeable Repairs Required Form is completed and signed and dated by the relevant Void Inspector. 

• Once a property has been vacated and the keys to the property have been returned to the Council, a Full 
Inspection of the property is completed. During the inspection, the Void Inspector will document the condition of the 
property and the amount of remedial works required, if any, to ensure the property meets the Council's Void 
Property Standard prior to being re-let. 

• On completion of the Full Inspection, the Voids Inspector will complete a Void Scheduling Sheet which sets out the 
type of works required, number of man-hours required along with a set target completion date. 

• Once remedial works have been completed on a void property, the work is inspected by a Void Inspector to ensure 
standards have been met and that the property meets the Council's Void Property Standard. Once the Post-Works 
Inspection has been completed, a Void Completion Certificate is completed by the relevant Void Inspector and is 
signed and dated to evidence the inspection and sign-off. 

• Decorating and cleaning vouchers are offered as incentives to potential tenants to encourage tenants to let 
properties with poor decoration. Vouchers are provided to tenants at the point of signing-up to a property. 

• Long-term voids undergoing major works are monitored by the Improvements and Repairs Department. The 
properties are placed on hold by the Allocations and Lettings Departments until the target completion date is near, 
at which point the property will be re-advertised.   

• Any long-term voids which cannot be re-let in a timely manner due to low desirability are accessed by the Lettings 
and Allocations Department. A decision is made as to whether the property will be disposed of or re-modelled for 
other uses such as temporary accommodation, etc. 

However, we identified the following exceptions with the Council’s established control framework: 

• At the time of audit, the Council did not have a Voids Policy in place. Through discussion with the Head of 
Improvements and Repairs it was confirmed that a Voids Policy is due to be drafted. 

• The Voids Department has a procedure note in place for the operational processes involved within the void 
management process. However, through review it was confirmed that the document did not have a documented 
review date or version control, so it was not possible to confirm that the document had been maintained up to date.  
Additionally, it was noted that the document did not contain sufficient detail regarding the end-to-end void process.   

• The current spend at the time of audit for the Major Voids Refurbishments Budget was £651,318.72, which was 
£151,318.72 above the original set budget. Through discussion with the Head of Repairs and Improvements it was 
confirmed that all existing void budgets are going to reviewed as part of the upcoming voids process review. 

Page 53 of 59

85



 

  South Kesteven District Council Void Management 

• From a sample of 20 void properties, seven instances were noted where a recharge had been identified following 
the completion of a Full Inspection. Six instances were noted where the recharges had not been allocated to the 
tenants rent accounts for recovery and therefore the amounts had not been invoiced.  

• The Council has a Rechargeable Repairs Policy in place. Through review it was noted that the Policy does not 
currently contain a review date or version control, so therefore it was not possible to confirm that the document had 
been maintained up to date. 

• Two Key Performance Indicators (KPI) are currently in place to monitor the void management process. However, at 
the time of audit it was noted that the KPI’s had not been updated since July 2019 as they are due to be revised to 
reflect new operational practices. 

 

1.4 Additional information to support our conclusion 
The following table highlights the number and categories of management actions made. The detailed findings section 
lists the specific actions agreed with management to implement. 

* Shows the number of controls not adequately designed or not complied with. The number in brackets represents the total number of controls 
reviewed in this area. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Area Control 
design not 
effective*

Non 
Compliance 
with controls*

Agreed management actions
Low Medium High 

Void Management 1 (14) 6 (14) 4 3 0 

Total  
 

4 3 0 

Page 54 of 59

86



 

  South Kesteven District Council Void Management  

2 DETAILED FINDINGS 
Categorisation of internal audit findings 
Priority Definition

Low  There is scope for enhancing control or improving efficiency and quality.

Medium Timely management attention is necessary. This is an internal control risk management issue that could lead to: Financial losses which could affect the 
effective function of a department, loss of controls or process being audited or possible regulatory scrutiny/reputational damage, negative publicity in local 
or regional media. 

High Immediate management attention is necessary. This is a serious internal control or risk management issue that may lead to: Substantial losses, violation 
of corporate strategies, policies or values, regulatory scrutiny, reputational damage, negative publicity in national or international media or adverse 
regulatory impact, such as loss of operating licences or material fines.

 

This report has been prepared by exception. Therefore, we have included in this section, only those areas of weakness in control or examples of lapses in control identified 
from our testing and not the outcome of all internal audit testing undertaken. 

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 
with 

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for 
management 

Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

1 Missing Control  

The Council has a Voids 
Policy in place which details 
the void management 
process. 

No - At the time of audit, the Council did not 
have a Voids Policy in place.  

Through discussion with the Head of 
Improvements and Repairs it was 
confirmed that a Voids Policy is due to be 
drafted which will incorporate key criteria 
about the void management process.   

Without a Voids Policy in place, there is a 
risk that the Council will not be able to 
operate an effective void management 
process which minimises void periods and 
consequently also reduces the levels of 
void rental loss. 

Medium A Voids Policy will be 
produced which details 
the Council's current 
void management 
process. 

30 November 
2020 

Head of 
Improvements 
and Repairs 
and Head of 
Housing 
Services 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 55 of 59

87



 

  South Kesteven District Council Void Management  

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 
with 

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for 
management 

Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

2 The Voids Department has a 
procedure note in place for 
the operational processes 
involved within the void 
management process. 

Yes No The current procedure note in place for the 
Voids Department was obtained and 
reviewed.  

Through review it was confirmed that the 
procedure note in place did not have a 
documented review date or version control, 
so it was not possible to confirm that the 
document had been maintained up to date. 
Additionally, it was noted that the 
document did not contain sufficient detail 
regarding the end-to-end void process.     

If procedure documents are not 
comprehensive and maintained up to date, 
there is a risk that inconsistent working 
practices will be followed by staff members.

Low The procedure note in 
place for the Voids 
Department will be 
reviewed and updated 
to reflect current 
working practices.  

A set review date will 
also be documented. 

31 August 2020 Senior 
Inspector – 
Improvements 
and Repairs 

3 Budgets are in place for 
general void works as well 
as major void 
refurbishments. The budgets 
are monitored on a regular 
basis to ensure they are in 
line with forecasts.  

Any variances are reviewed, 
and explanations 
documented. Monthly 
meetings are held between 
the Head of Improvements 
and Repairs and the Finance 
Department to discuss the 
current position of voids 
budgets. 

Yes No The following two budgets codes are 
currently in place in relation to the void 
management process:   

• J80359 - Voids; and  

• A4314 - Major Void Refurbishments.   

A review of the current spend against each 
of the budgets at the time of the audit 
noted that the ‘Voids’ was underspent by 
£5,700 but the ‘Major Void Refurbishments’ 
budget was overspent by £151,000.    

However, it was noted that the overall 
Repairs Budget in which the above two 
budget form part of, was currently 
underspent by £274,000.   

Through discussion with the Head of 
Repairs and Improvements it was 
confirmed that all existing void budgets are 

Low Going forward, the 
Major Void 
Refurbishments budget 
will be re-evaluated and 
closely monitored to 
ensure actual and 
committed spend 
against the budget are 
in line with set 
forecasts. 

30 November 
2020 

Head of 
Improvements 
and Repairs 

Page 56 of 59

88



 

  South Kesteven District Council Void Management  

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 
with 

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for 
management 

Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

going to reviewed as part of the upcoming 
voids process review.   

If set budgets are not closely monitored 
and adhered to, there is a risk of financial 
loss to the Council. 

4 Once a property has been 
vacated and the keys to the 
property have been returned 
to the Council, a Full 
Inspection of the property is 
completed.  

On completion of the Full 
Inspection, the Voids 
Inspector will complete a 
Void Scheduling Sheet 
which sets out the type of 
works required, number of 
man-hours required along 
with a set target completion 
date.  

Any applicable re-charges 
identified from the inspection 
such as cleaning fees are 
attached to the tenants rent 
account for recovery. 

Yes No A sample of 20 void properties were 
selected and tested from the current 
financial year. Seven instances were noted 
where a recharge had been identified 
following the completion of a Full 
Inspection.   

In one instance, it was confirmed that the 
recharge amount had been allocated to 
tenants rent account for recovery and a 
subsequent invoice was produced.   

However, in the remaining six instances, 
the recharges had not been allocated to 
the tenants rent accounts for recovery and 
therefore the amounts had not been 
invoiced.  

Through further investigation it was 
confirmed that the recharges had been 
overlooked by staff members within the 
Void Department, and additional training is 
due to be provided as a result.   

If re-charges are not attached to tenants 
rent accounts when identified as part of 
inspections, there is a risk of financial loss 
to the Council. 

Medium Training will be 
provided to staff 
members within the 
Void Department 
regarding the recovery 
of re-charges identified 
from Void Inspections. 

31 August 2020 Senior 
Inspector – 
Improvements 
and Repairs 

5 The Council has a 
Rechargeable Repairs Policy 
in place. The policy is 
maintained up to date and is 

Yes No The Council's current Rechargeable 
Repairs Policy was obtained and reviewed.  

Through review it was noted that the Policy 
does not currently contain a review date or 

Low The Rechargeable 
Repairs Policy will be 
reviewed and updated 
to ensure it is reflective 

30 November 
2020 

Head of 
Improvements 
and Repairs 

Page 57 of 59

89



 

  South Kesteven District Council Void Management  

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 
with 

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for 
management 

Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

easily accessible to relevant 
staff members.   

The purpose of the 
rechargeable repairs policy 
is to ensure that tenants 
accept liability for the repair 
of items which have been 
caused by wilful damage or 
by carelessness/negligence 
by the tenant, family 
members or visitors to a 
Council property. 

version control, so therefore it was not 
possible to confirm that the document had 
been maintained up to date.    

If Policy documents are not subject to 
regular review and maintained up to date, 
there is a risk that inconsistent working 
practices will be followed by staff members.

of current working 
practices.  

Additionally, a set 
review date and version 
control will be added to 
the document. 

6 Where tenants are moving 
out of a Council property, the 
Voids Department will 
identify any rechargeable 
repairs at the pre-void 
inspection and arrangement 
will be made for any repairs 
to be carried out by the 
tenant prior to termination.   

Any rechargeable repairs 
outstanding once the 
property is vacated are 
repaired by the Council and 
charged to the outgoing 
tenant. This also include 
costs of clearing out and 
cleaning properties and 
gardens on termination of 
tenancy. 

Yes No Since the start of the current financial year, 
there had been 12 recharges issued in 
relation to void properties which had been 
attached to the tenants rent account.   

One instance was noted where the balance 
due for the recharge had been paid by the 
tenant.     

However, the re-charges were still 
outstanding at the time of audit in the other 
11 instances. Additionally, in all 11 
instances, no evidence could be provided 
at the time of audit to confirm that an 
invoice had been raised for the re-charge 
amounts and that appropriate recovery 
action had been undertaken such as the 
issuing of reminder letters.     

If void property re-charges are not actioned 
and recovered in a timely manner, there is 
a risk of financial loss to the Council. 

Medium A review will be 
undertaken of the 
recovery process for 
void re-charges. 

30 November 
2020 

Head of 
Improvements 
and Repairs 

Page 58 of 59

90



 

  South Kesteven District Council Void Management  

Ref Control Adequate 
control 
design 

Controls 
complied 
with 

Audit findings and implications Priority Action for 
management 

Implementation 
date 

Responsible 
owner 

7 The following KPI's are in 
place in relation to the void 
management process:  

• Average number of days 
to complete void repairs; 
and  

• Average number of days 
between a property 
becoming void and being 
re-let.  

KPI figures are updated 
within the Pentana 
Performance Management 
System which is accessible 
by Senior Management. 

Yes No The current position of void management 
KPI's in place at the time of audit where as 
follows: 

• OP119 - Number of days of void lettings 
(repairs) - 33 Days; and  

• OP120 - Number of days of total void 
lettings and repairs - 49 Days.   

The current target for OP119 is 10 days 
and 21 days for OP120.   

Data for the above KPI's were last updated 
in July 2019 prior to the Council re-
structure.      

Through discussion with the Head of 
Improvements and Repairs it was 
confirmed that the current KPI's in place for 
the void management process are due to 
be revised.  

If KPI figures are not in place which are 
reflective of current operational processes, 
there is a risk that the information collated 
will not be valid for measuring 
performance. 

Low The current KPI's in 
place for the void 
management process 
will be reviewed and 
revised to ensure they 
are reflective of current 
operational practices. 

30 September 
2020 

Head of 
Improvements 
and Repairs 

Page 59 of 59

91



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

SOUTH KESTEVEN DISTRICT 
COUNCIL 
Annual internal audit report 2019/20 
21 May 2020 

 
This report is solely for the use of the persons to whom it is addressed. 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP  
will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party. 

93

Agenda Item 7



 

 

South Kesteven District Council Annual Internal Audit Report 2019/20  | 1 

CONTENTS 

 
1 The annual internal audit opinion ................................................................................................................................. 2 
2 The basis of our internal audit opinion ......................................................................................................................... 4 
3 Our performance .......................................................................................................................................................... 5 
Appendix A: Annual opinions ............................................................................................................................................ 6 
Appendix B: Summary of internal audit work completed 2019/20 .................................................................................... 7 
For further information contact ........................................................................................................................................ 10 
 

 

 

 

 

 

. 

94



 

South Kesteven District Council Annual Internal Audit Report 2019/20  | 2 

1.1 The opinion 
For the 12 months ended 31 March 2020, the Head of Internal Audit opinion for South Kesteven District Council is as 
follows: 

Head of internal audit opinion 2019/20 

Please see appendix A for the full range of annual opinions available to us in preparing this report and opinion.  

1.2 Scope and limitations of our work 
The formation of our opinion is achieved through a risk-based plan of work, agreed with management and approved by 
the Governance and Audit Committee. Our opinion is subject to inherent limitations, as detailed below: 

• The opinion does not imply that internal audit has reviewed all risks and assurances relating to the Council; 
 

• The opinion is substantially derived from the conduct of risk-based plans generated from a robust and Council-
led assurance framework. As such, the assurance framework is one component that the Council takes into 
account in completing its annual governance reporting;  
 

• The opinion is based on the findings and conclusions from the work undertaken, the scope of which has been 
agreed with management/lead individual;  
 

• The opinion is based on the testing we have undertaken, which was limited to the area being audited, as 
detailed in the agreed audit scope; 
 

• Where strong levels of control have been identified, there are still instances where these may not always be 
effective. This may be due to human error, incorrect management judgement, management override, controls 
being by-passed or a reduction in compliance;  
 

• Due to the limited scope of our audits, there may be weaknesses in the control system which we are not 
aware of, or which were not brought to attention;  
 

• It remains management’s responsibility to develop and maintain a sound system of risk management, internal 
control and governance, and for the prevention and detection of material errors, loss or fraud. The work of 
internal audit should not be seen as a substitute for management responsibility around the design and 
effective operation of these systems; and 

1 THE ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT OPINION 

This report provides an annual internal audit opinion, based upon and limited to the work 
performed, on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s risk management, control 
and governance processes. The opinion should contribute to the Council's annual governance 
reporting. 

95



 

South Kesteven District Council Annual Internal Audit Report 2019/20  | 3 

• Our internal audit work for 2019/20 was completed prior to the advent of the substantial operational 
disruptions caused by the Covid-19 pandemic. As such our audit work and annual opinion does not reflect the 
situation which has arisen in the final weeks of the year. We do, however, recognise that there has been a 
significant impact on both the operations of the Council and its risk profile. 

1.3 Factors and findings which have informed our opinion  
Governance 

We have taken into consideration the governance and oversight related elements of each of the reviews undertaken 
as part of the 2019/20 Internal Audit Plan. There is a sound governance framework in place and we have observed 
that the Governance and Audit Committee is effective in monitoring and challenging management and holding them to 
account.  

Risk Management 

Our risk management opinion is informed by our observation of risk management systems and processes throughout 
the course of all audits within the Internal Audit Plan. 

An audit of Risk Management was undertaken during 2019/20, which concluded that the Council can take substantial 
assurance.  

Internal Control 

We undertook 15 internal audit reviews in 2019/20 which resulted in an assurance opinion. There were five reviews 
(33%) from which the Council can take substantial assurance, seven reviews (47%) from which the Council can take 
reasonable assurance and three reviews (20%) from which the Council can take partial assurance.  

We also confirmed ‘reasonable’ progress’ was made in implementing previously agreed management actions from the 
two ‘Follow Up’ reviews undertaken.  

During the year we raised a total of 105 management actions across assurance and follow up reviews. Of the 105 
actions raised: One (1%) was ‘high’, 61 (58%) were ‘medium’ priority and 43 (41%) were ‘low’ priority actions.  

To further enhance the framework for risk management, governance and internal controls, management have agreed 
to put actions in place. 

At the request of management, an additional advisory review of Cash Handling was undertaken to ensure the cash 
handling processes across a number of Council areas are operating effectively through the evaluation of the 
processes in place for the receiving and receipting of cash. An advisory report has been provided to management 
detailing control enhancements for consideration. 

A summary of internal audit work undertaken, and the resulting conclusions, is provided at appendix B. 

96



 

South Kesteven District Council Annual Internal Audit Report 2019/20  | 4 

2.1 Acceptance of internal audit management actions 
Management have agreed actions to address all of the findings reported by the internal audit service during 2019/20. 

2.2 Implementation of internal management actions 
Where actions have been agreed by management, these have been monitored by management through the action 
tracking process in place. During the year progress has been reported to the Governance and Audit Committee, with 
the validation of the action status confirmed by internal audit through the follow up audit.   

Details of the follow up work is summarised below: 

Follow Up 1: Reasonable Progress 

Our initial Follow Up review concluded that the Council has demonstrated reasonable progress in implementing the 
agreed management actions. Of the 34 management actions reviewed, we found that 21 management actions had 
been fully implemented and the remaining 13 were ongoing or not implemented, with revised dates for completion 
agreed. 
 
Follow Up 2: Reasonable Progress 

Our second phase of Follow Up work has concluded that the Council has again demonstrated reasonable progress in 
implementing the agreed management actions. Of the 25 management actions reviewed, we found that 13 
management actions had been fully implemented or superseded and the remaining 12 were ongoing or not 
implemented, with revised dates for completion agreed. 

2.3 Working with other assurance providers 
In forming our opinion we have not placed any direct reliance on other assurance providers.  

 

2 THE BASIS OF OUR INTERNAL AUDIT OPINION 
As well as those headlines discussed at paragraph 1.3, the following areas have helped to inform 
our opinion.  

97



 

South Kesteven District Council Annual Internal Audit Report 2019/20  | 5 

3.1 Conflicts of interest 
RSM has not undertaken any work or activity during 2019/20 that would lead us to declare any conflict of interest. 

3.2 Conformance with internal auditing standards 
RSM affirms that our internal audit services are designed to conform to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
(PSIAS).  

Under PSIAS, internal audit services are required to have an external quality assessment every five years. Our risk 
assurance service line commissioned an external independent review of our internal audit services in 2016 to provide 
assurance whether our approach meets the requirements of the International Professional Practices Framework 
(IPPF) published by the Global Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) on which PSIAS is based.   

The external review concluded that “there is a robust approach to the annual and assignment planning processes and 
the documentation reviewed was thorough in both terms of reports provided to the Governance and Audit Committee 
and the supporting working papers.”  RSM was found to have an excellent level of conformance with the IIA’s 
professional standards.  

3.3 Quality assurance and continual improvement 
To ensure that RSM remains compliant with the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal 
Auditing and the International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF) we have a dedicated internal Quality 
Assurance Team who undertake a programme of reviews to ensure the quality of our audit assignments. This is 
applicable to all Heads of Internal Audit, where a sample of their clients will be reviewed. Any findings from these 
reviews are used to inform the training needs of our audit teams. 

This is in addition to any feedback we receive from our post assignment surveys, client feedback, appraisal processes 
and training needs assessments. 

 

 

 

 

3 OUR PERFORMANCE 

98



 

South Kesteven District Council Annual Internal Audit Report 2019/20  | 6 

The following shows the full range of opinions available to us within our internal audit methodology to provide you with 
context regarding your annual internal audit opinion. 

Annual opinions  Factors influencing our 
opinion 
 
The factors which are 
considered when influencing 
our opinion are: 

• inherent risk in the 
area being audited; 
 

• limitations in the 
individual audit 
assignments; 
 

• the adequacy and 
effectiveness of the 
risk management and 
/ or governance 
control framework; 
 

• the impact of 
weakness identified; 
 

• the level of risk 
exposure; and 
 

• the response to 
management actions 
raised and timeliness 
of actions taken. 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A: ANNUAL OPINIONS 

99



 

South Kesteven District Council Annual Internal Audit Report 2019/20  | 7 

 Assignment Executive lead Assurance level Actions agreed

H M L
 
Follow Up 1 (1.19/20) 
 

 
Director of Finance  

 
Reasonable Progress 

 
0 

 
9 

 
4 

Building Control (2.19/20) 

 
Strategic Director – 
Commercial and 
Operations 

 
0 

 
4 

 
2 

 
Allocations and Lettings 
(3.19/20) 
 

 
Assistant Director – 
Housing 

 
0 

 
0 

 
2 

 
Housing Benefits (4.19/20) 

 
Director of Finance 

 
0 

 
0 

 
2 

 
Customer Relationship 
Management (5.19/20) 
 

 
Strategic Director – 
Transformation and 
Change 

 
0 

 
3 

 
1 

 
Communication – Social 
Media (6.19/20) 
 

 
Strategic Director – 
Transformation and 
Change 

 
0 

 
3 

 
1 

 
IT Project Management 
(7.19/20) 

 
Director of Finance 

 
1 

 
3 

 
2 

 
Enforcement – Littering 
(8.19/20) 

 
Strategic Director – 
Commercial and 
Operations 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
Complaints and Freedom of 
Information (9.19/20) 
 

 
Strategic Director – 
Transformation and 
Change 

 
0 

 
4 

 
2 

APPENDIX B: SUMMARY OF INTERNAL AUDIT WORK 
COMPLETED 2019/20 

100



 

South Kesteven District Council Annual Internal Audit Report 2019/20  | 8 

 Assignment Executive lead Assurance level Actions agreed

H M L

 
Health and Safety 
Arrangements and Reporting 
(10.19/20) 
 

 
Strategic Director – 
Commercial and 
Operations 

 

0 

 

3 

 

2 

 
Cash Handling (11.19/20) 
 

 
Director of Finance  

 
Advisory 

 
0 

 
7 

 
0 

 
Follow Up 2 (12.19/20) 
 

 
Director of Finance  

 
Reasonable Progress 

 
0 

 
7 

 
5 

 
Purchasing Cards (13.19/20) 
 

 
Director of Finance 

 
0 
 

 
3 

 
2 

 
Procurement and Contracts 
(14.19/20) 

 
Director of Finance 

 
0 

 
11 

 
1 

 
Risk Management (15.19/20) 

 
Director of Finance 

 
0 

 
1 

 
4 

 
Planning Service (16.19/20) 

 
Assistant Director – Growth

 
0 

 
0 

 
2 

 
Homelessness (17.19/20) 

 
Assistant Director – 
Housing 

 
0 

 
7 

 
7 

 
Void Management (18.19/20) 
 

 
Assistant Director – 
Housing 

 
0 

 
3 

 
4 

  

 

 

101



 

South Kesteven District Council Annual Internal Audit Report 2019/20  | 9 

We use the following levels of opinion classification within our internal audit reports. Reflecting the level of assurance 
the Council can take: 

 

Taking account of the issues identified, the Council 
cannot take assurance that the controls upon which the 
Council relies to manage this risk are suitably 
designed, consistently applied or effective. 
Urgent action is needed to strengthen the control 
framework to manage the identified risk(s). 

 

Taking account of the issues identified, the Council can 
take partial assurance that the controls to manage this 
risk are suitably designed and consistently applied. 
Action is needed to strengthen the control framework 
to manage the identified risk(s). 

 

Taking account of the issues identified, the Council can 
take reasonable assurance that the controls in place to 
manage this risk are suitably designed and consistently 
applied. 
However, we have identified issues that need to be 
addressed in order to ensure that the control framework 
is effective in managing the identified risk(s). 

 

Taking account of the issues identified, the Council can 
take substantial assurance that the controls upon which 
the Council relies to manage the identified risk(s) are 
suitably designed, consistently applied and operating 
effectively. 

 

 

 

102



 

rsmuk.com 

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our review and are 
not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made. 
Actions for improvements should be assessed by you for their full impact. This report, or our work, should not be taken 
as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the application of sound commercial practices. We emphasise 
that the responsibility for a sound system of internal controls rests with management and our work should not be relied 
upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses that may exist. Neither should our work be relied upon to identify all 
circumstances of fraud and irregularity should there be any. 
 
Our report is prepared solely for the confidential use of South Kesteven District Council, and solely for the purposes 
set out herein. This report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any other party 
wishing to acquire any rights from RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP for any purpose or in any context. Any third 
party which obtains access to this report or a copy and chooses to rely on it (or any part of it) will do so at its own risk. 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in 
respect of this report to any other party and shall not be liable for any loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature 
which is caused by any person’s reliance on representations in this report. 
 
This report is released to you on the basis that it shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole or in part (save 
as otherwise permitted by agreed written terms), without our prior written consent. 
 
We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report.  
 
RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales no. OC389499 at 
6th floor, 25 Farringdon Street, London EC4A 4AB. 

 

Chris Williams, Head of Internal 
Audit 
 
RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP 
Suite A, 7th Floor, City Gate East 
Tollhouse Hill 
Nottingham, NG1 5FS 
T  0115 964 4450 
M 07753 584993 
chris.williams@rsmuk.com 
 

 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT 

103



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
 

 

SOUTH KESTEVEN DISTRICT COUNCIL  
Internal Audit Plan 2020/21  

Presented at the Governance and Audit Committee meeting of: 
18 March 2020 

This report is solely for the use of the persons to whom it is addressed. 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP  
will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party.  

105

A
genda Item

 8



    

 
 

2 
 

 

 

 

 

Our Internal Audit Plan for 2020/21 is presented for consideration by the Governance and Audit Committee.   

The key points to note from our plan are:  

 

 

2020 Internal Audit priorities: Internal audit activity for 2020/21 is based on analysing your corporate objectives, risk profile and 
assurance framework as well as other factors affecting you in the year ahead, including changes within the sector. Our detailed plan for 
2020/21 is included at Section 2. The Council will be retendering for the provision of Internal Audit Services in 2020 and therefore a one 
year Internal Audit Plan has been developed and agreed with management. 

 

 

Level of Resource: The level of resource required to deliver the plan is consistent with 2019/20. We will increase the use of 
technology when undertaking operational audits in 2020. This will further strengthen our sampling, increasing the level of assurance 
provided.   

 

 

Core Assurance: Key priorities and changes within the Council during the period have been reflected within the proposed audit 
coverage for 2020/21 and beyond. Local government continues to face significant financial pressure and a key theme of our work 
during 2020/21 will be around finance, as well as IT and business continuity. The Internal Audit Plan includes a number of areas 
relating to compliance including GDPR, Financial Regulations as well as Health and Safety areas relating specifically to Council 
housing. We will also continue assess the implementation of previously agreed internal audit actions and report back to the 
Governance and Audit Committee on the ongoing implementation status. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

106



 
 

3
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

1. YOUR INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2020/21 ........................................................ 4 

2. INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2020/21 .................................................................... 6 

APPENDIX A: YOUR INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE ................................................. 10 

APPENDIX B: INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER ........................................................... 11 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT ............................................................ 16 
 

CONTENTS 

107



 

4 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Our approach to developing your Internal Audit Plan is based on analysing your corporate objectives, risk profile and assurance 
framework as well as other, factors affecting South Kesteven District Council in the year ahead, including changes within the sector.  

Risk management processes 
We have evaluated your risk management processes and consider that we can place reliance on your risk registers / assurance framework to inform the 
Internal Audit Plan. We have used various sources of information (see Figure A overleaf) and discussed priorities for internal audit coverage with the following 
people: 

• Paul Thomas, Interim Chief Executive; 

• Ken Lyon, Assistant Chief Executive – Housing Delivery; 

• Gary Smith, Strategic Director – Commercial and Operations; 

• Richard Wyles, Director of Finance; 

• Lee Sirdifield, Strategic Director – Transformation and Change; 

• Harry Rai, Assistant Director – Housing; 

• Jane McDaid, Assistant Director – Growth; 

• Shahin Ismail, Director of Law and Governance; and 

• Ian Yates, Assistant Director – Commercial and Operations. 

1. YOUR INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2020/21

108



 

5 
 

 

 
  

5

Figure A: Audit considerations – sources considered when developing the Internal Audit Plan. 

 

Based on our understanding of the Council, the information provided to us by stakeholders, and the regulatory requirements, we have developed an annual 
Internal Plan for the coming year (see Section 2 for full details).  

109



 

6 
 

 

 
 

 
 

The table below shows each of the reviews that we propose to undertake as part of the Internal Audit Plan for 2020/21. The table details the strategic 
objectives which may warrant internal audit coverage. This review of your risks allows us to ensure that the proposed plan will meet the Council’s assurance 
needs for the forthcoming and future years. As well as assignments designed to provide assurance or advisory input around specific risks, the plan also 
includes: time for tracking the implementation of actions and an audit management allocation. 

Objective of the review  
 

Audit approach Proposed timing Proposed 
Governance and 
Audit Committee 

Strategic  

 Business Continuity and Emergency Planning  
This audit will review the current plan in place considering whether business impact 
assessments have been completed, priorities have been established and testing of the plan 
undertaken. We will consider the development of department plans to feed into the Council 
wide plan. 

Risk Based Quarter 1 September 2020 

 Project Management – Governance Arrangements 
The review will provide assurance that appropriate project management methodologies are 
in place. Our review will include how projects are monitored and delivered. This review will 
include business cases for projects, decision making, risk assessments, monitoring of 
delivery against targets and action taken to ensure that delays or slippages are minimised 
and action plans are in place to meet project deadlines. A sample of projects will be agreed 
with management. 

Risk Based Quarter 3 March 2021 

 Contracts and Procurement 
We will focus on whether policies and procedures are being adhered to with regards to 
obtaining tenders and quotations, and the level of due diligence performed on potential new 
suppliers. We will also review the level of contractor performance management undertaken 
across the Council and how this results in payments being made to contractors. We will 
review pre, mid and post contract processes for each of the sampled contracts. 

Risk Based Quarter 1 September 2020 

GDPR – Advisory Post Implementation Review 
An advisory post implementation review to provide assurance that processes are in place in 
order to ensure compliance with the requirements of the General Data Protection 
Regulation (GDPR). 

Compliance Quarter 2 December 2020 

2. INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2020/21

110



 

7 
 

 

Objective of the review  
 

Audit approach Proposed timing Proposed 
Governance and 
Audit Committee 

Consultants and Agency Workers 
We will focus on whether procurement and HR policies and procedures are being adhered 
to with regards to procuring consulting services and using agency workers,. Our review will 
also ensure that practices in relation to using consultants and agency workers are effective 
which enables the Council to achieve value for money. 

Risk Based Quarter 1 September 2020 

Finance 

Financial Regulations 
This review will consider the content of the Financial Regulations to ensure there is regular 
review and update, formal approval of changes, communication to and understanding by 
staff, compliance is monitored and breaches are identified and dealt with in line with 
disciplinary procedures. 

Compliance Quarter 2 December 2020 

Rent Collection and Arrears 
This review will provide assurance over the Council’s ability to collect and accurately 
account for rental income in a timely basis. We will also ensure that legal recovery action is 
initiated promptly, and enforcement procedures are adhered to. 

Risk Based Quarter 3 March 2021 

Council Tax 
Our audit will provide assurance that procedures in relation to Council Tax are followed and 
correct charges are being applied, and will include identification and recording of persons  
liable for Council Tax, billing methods and payment collection, recovery and write offs, 
segregation of duties, exemptions, discounts and refunds. 

Risk Based Quarter 4 March 2021 

Growth 

Housing Compliance - Gas, Electrical, Legionella, Asbestos and Fire  
A compliance audit to confirm policies and procedures are being consistently, effectively 
and efficiently applied.  

Compliance Quarter 3 March 2021 

S106 Agreements 
To provide assurance that policies and procedures are complied with, and opportunities 
presented by planning applications are maximised, such as contributions from developers 
and other bodies. We will also review the procedures for the repayment of funds not spent, 
and the separation of funds for the administration and completion of works. 

Key Controls Quarter 2 December 2020 

111



 

8 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Objective of the review  
 

Audit approach Proposed timing Proposed 
Governance and 
Audit Committee 

Commercial and Operational 

Disabled Facilities Grant 
We will review applications for grants to ensure that they are processed in line with 
statutory responsibilities and internal policies and procedures. We will also review the use 
of, and payments to, contractors, and tenant / applicant contributions made to the total cost 
following the eligibility assessment. Finally, we will review the budget monitoring process in 
place, and the level of management information reported. 

Key Controls Quarter 1 September 2020 

Car Parks 
To ensure the Council’s car park provision is reviewed to determine whether the 
requirements of users are being met, and also that each facility has been risk assessed. 
We will include a review of the signage in place at each car park, ensuring this reflects the 
Council statutory responsibilities, the approved fees and charges for parking and 
complaints. We will also include a review of the contract in place for the provision of car 
park enforcement. 

Risk Based Quarter 2 December 2020 

Transformation and Change 

Learning and Development 
A review of the identification and approval of learning needs, monitoring of completion and 
confirmation of learning and development requirements including mandatory training. This 
review will also include the Council’s Learning and Development Plan. 

Risk Based Quarter 4 March 2021 

IT Infrastructure – Post Implementation Review 
This review will focus on the Council’s IT infrastructure and review the IT implementation 
plan. Detailed scope will be agreed with management. 

Risk Based Quarter 3 March 2021 

Customer Services 
To provide assurance that Customer Services meet the requirements of service users, with 
specific focus on garden waste services. 

Advisory Quarter 2 December 2020 

112



 

9 
 

 

Objective of the review  
 

Audit approach Proposed timing Proposed 
Governance and 
Audit Committee 

Other Internal Audit Activity 

Follow up 
To meet internal auditing standards, and to provide assurance on action taken to address 
management actions previously agreed by management. 

Follow Up Quarter 1 
Quarter 3 

 

September 2020 
March 2021 

Management 
 This will include: 

• Annual planning; 
• Preparation for, and attendance at, Governance and Audit Committee; 
• Regular liaison and progress updates; 
• Liaison with external audit and other assurance providers; and 
• Preparation of the annual opinion. 

- Throughout the year - 

 
A detailed planning process will be completed for each review, and the final scope will be documented in an Assignment Planning Sheet. This will be issued 
to the key stakeholders for each review.  

2.1 Working with other assurance providers 
The Governance and Audit Committee is reminded that internal audit is only one source of assurance and through the delivery of our plan we will not, and do 
not, seek to cover all risks and processes within the Council.  

We will however continue to work closely with other assurance providers, such as external audit to ensure that duplication is minimised, and a suitable 
breadth of assurance obtained. 

113



 

10 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Your internal audit service is provided by RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP. The team will be led by Chris Williams as your Head of 
Internal Audit, supported by Amjad Ali as your Client Manager. 

Fees      
Our fee to deliver the plan is set out in a separate fee letter. 

Core team 
The delivery of the 2020/21 audit plan will be based around a core team. However, we will complement the team with additional specialist skills where 
required.  

Conformance with internal auditing standards 
RSM affirms that our internal audit services are designed to conform to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).  

Under PSIAS, internal audit services are required to have an external quality assessment every five years. Our risk assurance service line commissioned an 
external independent review of our internal audit services in 2016 to provide assurance whether our approach meets the requirements of the International 
Professional Practices Framework (IPPF) published by the Global Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) on which PSIAS is based.   

The external review concluded that ““there is a robust approach to the annual and assignment planning processes and the documentation reviewed was 
thorough in both terms of reports provided to Audit and Risk Committee and the supporting working papers.” RSM was found to have an excellent level of 
conformance with the IIA’s professional standards.  

The risk assurance service line has in place a quality assurance and improvement programme to ensure continuous improvement of our internal audit 
services. Resulting from the programme, there are no areas which we believe warrant flagging to your attention as impacting on the quality of the service we 
provide to you. 

Conflicts of interest 
We are not aware of any relationships that may affect the independence and objectivity of the team, and which are required to be disclosed under internal 
auditing standards.  

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A: YOUR INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE

114



 

11 
 

 

Need for the charter   
This charter establishes the purpose, authority and responsibilities for the internal audit service for South Kesteven District Council. The establishment of a 
charter is a requirement of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and approval of the charter is the responsibility of the Governance and Audit 
Committee.  

The internal audit service is provided by RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP (“RSM”). 

We plan and perform our internal audit work with a view to reviewing and evaluating the risk management, control and governance arrangements that the 
Council has in place, focusing in particular on how these arrangements help you to achieve its objectives. The PSIAS encompass the mandatory elements of 
the Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) International Professional Practices Framework (IPPF) as follows: 

• Core principles for the professional practice of internal auditing; 

• Definition of internal auditing; 

• Code of ethics; and 

• The Standards.  

Mission of internal audit 
As set out in the PSIAS, the mission articulates what internal audit aspires to accomplish within an organisation. Its place in the IPPF is deliberate, 
demonstrating how practitioners should leverage the entire framework to facilitate their ability to achieve the mission. 

“To enhance and protect organisational value by providing risk-based and objective assurance, advice and insight”. 

Independence and ethics  
To provide for the independence of internal audit, its personnel report directly to the Partner, Chris Williams (acting as your Head of Internal Audit). The 
independence of RSM is assured by the internal audit service reporting to the Chief Executive, with further reporting lines to the Interim Director of Finance 
and S151 Officer. 

The Head of Internal Audit has unrestricted access to the Chair of Governance and Audit Committee to whom all significant concerns relating to the adequacy 
and effectiveness of risk management activities, internal control and governance are reported. 

APPENDIX B: INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER

115



 

12 
 

 

 
 

 
 

Conflicts of interest may arise where RSM provides services other than internal audit to South Kesteven District Council. Steps will be taken to avoid or 
manage transparently and openly such conflicts of interest so that there is no real or perceived threat or impairment to independence in providing the internal 
audit service. If a potential conflict arises through the provision of other services, disclosure will be reported to the Governance and Audit Committee. The 
nature of the disclosure will depend upon the potential impairment and it is important that our role does not appear to be compromised in reporting the matter 
to the Governance and Audit Committee. Equally we do not want the Council to be deprived of wider RSM expertise and will therefore raise awareness 
without compromising our independence. 

Responsibilities  
In providing your outsourced internal audit service, RSM has a responsibility to: 

• Develop a flexible and risk based internal audit plan. The plan will be submitted to the Governance and Audit Committee for review and approval each 
year before work commences on delivery of that plan. 

• Implement the internal audit plan as approved, including any additional tasks requested by management and the Governance and Audit Committee. 

• Ensure the internal audit team consists of professional audit staff with sufficient knowledge, skills, and experience. 

• Establish a quality assurance and improvement program to ensure the quality and effective operation of internal audit activities. 

• Perform advisory activities where appropriate, beyond internal audit’s assurance services, to assist management in meeting its objectives.  

• Bring a systematic disciplined approach to evaluate and report on the effectiveness of risk management, internal control and governance processes.  

• Highlight control weaknesses and required associated improvements together with corrective action recommended to management based on an 
acceptable and practicable timeframe. 

• Undertake follow up reviews to ensure management has implemented agreed internal control improvements within specified and agreed timeframes. 

• Report regularly to the Governance and Audit Committee to demonstrate the performance of the internal audit service. 

For clarity, we have included the definition of ‘Internal Audit’, ‘Senior Management Team’ and ‘Cabinet’. 

• Internal audit – a department, division, team of consultant, or other practitioner (s) that provides independent, objective assurance and consulting services 
designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. The internal audit activity helps an organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a 
systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of governance, risk management and control processes. 

• Senior Management Team who are the team of individuals at the highest level of organisational management who have the day-to-day responsibilities for 
managing the Council. 

116



 

13 
 

 

• Cabinet - The highest level governing body charged with the responsibility to direct and/or oversee the Council’s activities and hold organisational 
management accountable. Furthermore, “Cabinet” may refer to a committee or another body to which the governing body has delegated certain functions 
(e.g. a Governance and Audit Committee). 

Client care standards 
In delivering our services we require full cooperation from key stakeholders and relevant business areas to ensure a smooth delivery of the plan.  We 
proposed the following KPIs for monitoring the delivery of the internal audit service: 

• Discussions with senior staff at the client take place to confirm the scope four weeks before the agreed audit start date. 

• Key information such as: the draft assignment planning sheet are issued by RSM to the key auditee four weeks before the agreed start date.  

• The lead auditor to contact the client to confirm logistical arrangements at least 10 working days before the commencement of the audit fieldwork to 
confirm practical arrangements, appointments, debrief date etc.  

• Fieldwork takes place on agreed dates with key issues flagged up immediately. 

• A debrief meeting will be held with audit sponsor at the end of fieldwork or within a reasonable time frame. 

• Draft reports will be issued within 10 working days of the debrief meeting and will be issued by RSM to the agreed distribution list. 

• Management responses to the draft report should be submitted to RSM. 

• Within three working days of receipt of client responses the final report will be issued by RSM to the assignment sponsor and any other agreed recipients 
of the report. 

Authority 
The internal audit team is authorised to: 

• Have unrestricted access to all functions, records, property and personnel which it considers necessary to fulfil its function. 

• Have full and free access to the Governance and Audit Committee. 

• Allocate resources, set timeframes, define review areas, develop scopes of work and apply techniques to accomplish the overall internal audit objectives.  

• Obtain the required assistance from personnel within the Council where audits will be performed, including other specialised services from within or 
outside the Council. 

117



 

14 
 

 

 
 

 
 

The Head of Internal Audit and internal audit staff are not authorised to: 

• Perform any operational duties associated with the Council. 

• Initiate or approve accounting transactions on behalf of the Council. 

• Direct the activities of any employee not employed by RSM unless specifically seconded to internal audit. 

Reporting 
An assignment report will be issued following each internal audit assignment. The report will be issued in draft for comment by management, and then issued 
as a final report to management, with the executive summary being provided to the Governance and Audit Committee. The final report will contain an action 
plan agreed with management to address any weaknesses identified by internal audit.  

The internal audit service will issue progress reports to the Governance and Audit Committee and management summarising outcomes of audit activities, 
including follow up reviews.  

As your internal audit provider, the assignment opinions that RSM provides the Council during the year are part of the framework of assurances that assist 
the Cabinet in taking decisions and managing its risks. 

As the provider of the internal audit service we are required to provide an annual opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s governance, risk 
management and control arrangements. In giving our opinion it should be noted that assurance can never be absolute. The most that the internal audit 
service can provide to the Cabinet is a reasonable assurance that there are no major weaknesses in risk management, governance and control processes. 
The annual opinion will be provided to the Council by RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP at the financial year end. The results of internal audit reviews, and 
the annual opinion, should be used by management and the Cabinet to inform the Council’s annual governance statement. 

Data protection 
Internal audit files need to include sufficient, reliable, relevant and useful evidence in order to support our findings and conclusions. Personal data is not 
shared with unauthorised persons unless there is a valid and lawful requirement to do so. We are authorised as providers of internal audit services to our 
clients (through the firm’s terms of business and our engagement letter) to have access to all necessary documentation from our clients needed to carry out 
our duties. 

Quality Assurance and Improvement 
As your external service provider of internal audit services, we have the responsibility for maintaining an effective internal audit activity.  Under the standards, 
internal audit services are required to have an external quality assessment every five years. In addition to this, we also have in place an internal quality 
assurance and improvement programme, led by a dedicated team who undertake these reviews.  This ensures continuous improvement of our internal audit 
services.  

118



 

15 
 

 

Any areas which we believe warrant bringing to your attention, which may have the potential to have an impact on the quality of the service we provide to you, 
will be raised in our progress reports to the Governance and Audit Committee. 

Fraud  
The Governance and Audit Committee recognises that management is responsible for controls to reasonably prevent and detect fraud. Furthermore, the 
Governance and Audit Committee recognises that internal audit is not responsible for identifying fraud; however internal audit will be aware of the risk of fraud 
when planning and undertaking any assignments.  

Approval of the internal audit charter 
By approving this document, the internal audit plan, the Governance and Audit Committee is also approving the internal audit charter. 

 

119



 

rsmuk.com 

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our review and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the 
weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made. Actions for improvements should be assessed by you for their full impact.  This report, or our work, should 
not be taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the application of sound commercial practices. We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system 
of internal controls rests with management and our work should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses that may exist.  Neither should our work be 
relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud and irregularity should there be any. 

Our report is prepared solely for the confidential use of South Kesteven District Council, and solely for the purposes set out herein. This report should not therefore be 
regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any other party wishing to acquire any rights from RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP for any purpose or in any context. 
Any third party which obtains access to this report or a copy and chooses to rely on it (or any part of it) will do so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, 
RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party and shall not be liable for any loss, damage or 
expense of whatsoever nature which is caused by any person’s reliance on representations in this report. 

This report is released to you on the basis that it shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole or in part (save as otherwise permitted by agreed written terms), 
without our prior written consent. 

We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report.  

RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales no. OC389499 at 6th floor, 25 Farringdon Street, London EC4A 4AB. 

 

 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT 
Chris Williams, Head of Internal Audit 

Chris.Williams@rsmuk.com 

07753 584 993 

 

Amjad Ali, Senior Manager 

Amjad.Ali@rsmuk.com 

07800 617 139 

 

120



Governance and Audit 
Committee
21 May 2020

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes
Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Resources

        

2019/20 Accounting Policies and changes to the 
deadline for the publication of the Statement of 
Accounts
The Council’s Accounting Policies are reviewed annually, prior to the preparation of the Statement 
of Accounts, to ensure that they are up to date and in line with the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (The Code).

When changes are made to the policies, it is a requirement that these are reported to those charged 
with governance.

Adopting the proposed policies will support the timely production of a high quality Statement of 
Accounts for 2019/20.

Members are also updated with details of the changes to the statutory timetable for completion 
and inspection of the 2019/20 Statement of Accounts and external audit scale fee for 2020/21.

Report Author

Gillian Goddard, Senior Financial Accountant

01476 406288

g.goddard@southkesteven.gov.uk 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Administrative Administrative All Wards

Reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Financial Services 7 May 2020

Approved by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 7 May 2020

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Resources 11 May 2020

121

Agenda Item 9

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


Recommendation to the decision maker

It is recommended that Governance & Audit Committee 
 Approves the Statement of Accounting Policies, as set out at Appendix A to 

this report to be used in the production of the 2019/20 financial statements
 Notes the changes to the statutory timetable for completion and inspection 

of the 2019/20 Statement of Accounts
 Notes the Audit Scale Fees for 2020/21

122



1 The Background to the Report
1.1 As part of its Statement of Accounts, the Council needs to disclose the accounting policies 

it has applied to all material balances and transactions. These are drawn up in line with the 
CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20 (The 
Code).

1.2 It is good practice to consider and adopt the accounting policies in advance of the production 
and approval of draft accounts and to this end all accounting policies have been reviewed 
for the 2019/20 financial year to ensure that they comply with The Code.

1.3 Appendix A details the accounting policies to be applied in the preparation of the Statement 
of Accounts 2019/20.

1.4 The 2019/20 CIPFA Code has only minor changes compared to 2018/19, none of which are 
judged material in relation to the Council’s Statement of Accounts and so no changes have 
been made to the policies used in 2018/19.

1.5 In response to the Coronavirus pandemic the Government has issued The Accounts and 
Audit (Coronavirus)(Amendment) Regulations 2020.  This has moved the key deadlines 
relating to the completion and inspection of the Statement of Accounts 2019/20.

1.6 The publication date for final, audited, accounts will move from 31 July 2020 to 30 
November 2020.

1.7 The amendment also moves the deadline for public inspection in order to give local 
authorities more flexibility, from the first 10 working days of June to a period of public 
inspection on or before the first working day of September 2020.

1.8 This means that draft accounts must be approved by 31 August 2020 at the latest.

1.9 During the year end process there may be changes required to the policies arising from 
changes in circumstances or updated guidance.  These will be agreed with the Section 151 
Officer and reported to Governance and Audit Committee alongside the final Statement of 
Accounts.

1.10 The Public Sector Audit Appointments have notified the Council of the audit fee scale for 
2020/21 (see Appendix B). There is no change from 2019/20 with the scale fee remaining 
at £36,400.

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny
2.1 The Governance and Audit Committee are asked to approve the Statement of Accounting 

Policies set out in Appendix A.

3 Available Options Considered
3.1 No other options are available as local authorities are required to prepare accounting 

policies for inclusion in the Statement of Accounts.

4 Reasons for the Recommendation (s)
4.1 As part of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 Local Authorities are 

required to include Accounting Policies in the Statement of Accounts.

5 Financial Implications 

123



5.1 Prior to the compilation of the Statement of Accounts for 2019/20 it is important that 
members of Governance and Audit Committee have the opportunity to discuss and 
comment on the accounting policies to be used in the production of the financial statements.  
These policies if agreed, will be applied to the treatment of all transactions that make up the 
figures in the Statement of Accounts to ensure that the accounts present a true and fair view 
of the financial position of the Council at the balance sheet date and of its income and 
expenditure for the financial year.

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance

6 Legal and Governance Implications 
6.1 Local authorities are required by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to prepare a 

Statement of Accounts in accordance with relevant regulations. The policies referred to are 
a requirement of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015.  Any updates and 
amendments should be reported to Governance and Audit Committee in accordance with 
its role to approve the Statement of Accounting Policies.

Legal Implications reviewed by: Jo Toomey, Head of Governance

7 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
7.1 Not applicable.

8 Risk and Mitigation
8.1 Not applicable.

9 Community Safety Implications 
9.1 Not applicable.

10 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 
Council’s declaration of a ‘climate emergency’?

10.1 This recommendation is carbon neutral.

11 Background Papers
11.1 None.

12 Appendices
12.1 Appendix A – Statement of Accounting Policies

12.2 Appendix B – Public Sector Audit Appointments letter dated 30 April 2020

Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required)

Not required

Previously Considered by Not applicable

Report Timeline: 

Final Decision date  21 May 2020

124



125



This page is intentionally left blank



ACCOUNTING POLICIES

I. GENERAL PRINCIPLES

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2019/20 financial 
year and its position at the year-end of 31 March 2020.  The Council is required to prepare an 
annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 and The Accounts 
and Audit (Coronavirus)(Amendment) Regulations 2020. These regulations require the 
Statement of Accounts to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. These 
practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom 2019/20 and supported by International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). 

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, 
modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial 
instruments.

II. ACCRUALS OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are 
made or received. In particular:

 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Council transfers the significant 
risks and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits 
or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council.

 Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Council can measure 
reliably the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic 
benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council.

 Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed – where there is a gap 
between the date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as 
inventories on the Balance Sheet.

 Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are 
recorded as expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are 
made.

 Interest receivable on investments and payable on borrowings is accounted for 
respectively as income and expenditure on the basis of the effective interest rate for the 
relevant financial instrument, rather than the cash flows fixed or determined by the 
contract.

 Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or 
paid, a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where 
debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to 
revenue for the income that might not be collected. 

 The impact of IFRS15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers has been considered and 
deemed to have no material impact.

III. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without 
penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments 

127

Appendix A



that mature in 30 days or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to 
known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value.
In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that 
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Council’s cash management.

IV. CHARGES TO REVENUE FOR NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Services, support services and trading accounts are debited with the following amounts to 
record the cost of holding non-current assets during the year.

 Depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service.
 Revaluation and Impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no 

accumulated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the loss can be written 
off.

 Amortisation of intangible assets attributable to the service.

The Council is not required to raise council tax to fund depreciation, revaluation and 
impairment losses or amortisation.  However, it is required to make an annual contribution 
from revenue towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement equal to an amount 
calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Council in accordance with statutory 
guidance.  Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisation are therefore 
replaced by the contribution in the General Fund Balance by way of an adjusting transaction 
with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference 
between the two.

V. COUNCIL TAX AND NON-DOMESTIC RATES

Billing authorities act as agents, collecting council tax and non-domestic rates (NDR) on behalf 
of major preceptors (including government for NDR) and, as, principals, collecting council tax 
and NDR for themselves. Billing authorities are required by statute to maintain a separate fund 
(i.e. the Collection Fund) for the collection and distribution of amounts due in respect of council 
tax and NDR. Under the legislative framework for the Collection Fund, billing authorities, major 
preceptors and central government share proportionately the risks and rewards that the 
amount of council tax and NDR collected could be less or more than predicted.

Accounting for Council TAX and NDR

The council tax and NDR included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 
is the council’s share of accrued income for the year. However, regulations determine the 
amount of council tax and NDR that must be included in the Council’s General Fund. 
Therefore, the difference between the income included in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement and the amount required by regulation to be credited to the General 
Fund is taken to the Collection Fund Adjustment Account and included as a reconciling item 
in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The Balance Sheet includes the council’s share of the end of year balances in respect of 
council tax and NDR relating to arrears, impairment allowances for doubtful debts, 
overpayments and prepayments and appeals.

VI.  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Benefits Payable during Employment

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year end. 
They include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, 

128



bonuses and non-monetary benefits for current employees.  These expenses are charged on 
an accruals basis to the relevant service line of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. 

Termination Benefits 

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to terminate 
an officer’s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept 
voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits.  They are charged on an accruals basis 
to the appropriate service, or where applicable, to the Non Distributed Costs line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at the earlier of when the Council can no 
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when the council recognises costs for a 
restructuring.

Post-Employment Benefits 

Employees of the Council are members of the Local Government Pension Fund, administered 
by Lincolnshire County Council.  The scheme provides defined benefits to members 
(retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as employees worked for the Council.  

The Council recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the revenue account when 
employees earn them, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as pensions.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The Local Government Scheme is accounted for as a defined benefit scheme:

 The liabilities of the Lincolnshire County Council pension scheme attributable to the 
Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit 
method – i.e. an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to 
retirement benefits earned to date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality 
rates, employee turnover rates, etc, and projected earnings for current employees. 

 The assets of the Lincolnshire County Council pension fund attributable to the Council are 
included in the balance sheet at their fair value.

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into the following components:

 Service Cost comprising:

- Current service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of years of service earned 
this year –  allocated in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to 
the revenue accounts of services for which the employees worked

- Past service cost – the increase in liabilities as a result of a scheme amendment or 
curtailment whose effect relates to years of service earned in earlier years – debited 
to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income 
and Expenditure Statement as part of Non Distributed Costs

 Net interest on the net defined pension liability (asset) i.e. net interest expense for the 
Council – the change during the period in the net defined benefit liability (asset) that 
arises from the passage of time charged to the Financing and Investment Income and 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. 
Remeasurement comprising:

129



- The return on plan assets – excluding amounts included in net interest on the defined 
benefit liability (asset) charged to the Pension Reserve as Other Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure

-  Actuarial gains and losses – changes in the net pensions liability that arise because 
events have not coincided with assumptions made at the last actuarial valuation or 
because the actuaries have updated their assumption – charged to the Pensions 
Reserve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure.

- Contributions paid to the Lincolnshire County Council pension fund – cash paid as 
employer’s contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities; not accounted 
for as an expense.  

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund Balance to be 
charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners 
in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards.   

In the Movement in Reserves Statement, this means that there are transfers to and from the 
Pensions Reserve to remove the notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace 
them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts 
payable but unpaid at the year-end. The negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve 
thereby measures the beneficial impact to the General Fund of being required to account for 
retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather than as benefits are earned by 
employees.

Discretionary Benefits

The Council has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the 
event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any 
member of staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for 
using the same policies as are applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme.

VII. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial Liabilities 

Financial Liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party 
to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value 
and carried at their amortised cost.  Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income 
and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest 
payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of 
interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts 
estimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was 
originally recognised. 

For all of the borrowing that the Council has, this means that the amount presented in the 
Balance Sheet is the outstanding principle repayable (plus accrued interest) and interest 
charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account is the amount payable for 
the year in the loan agreement.

130



Financial Assets
Financial assets are classified based on a classification and measurement approach that 
reflects the business model for holding the financial assets and their cashflow 
characteristics. There are three main classes of financial assets measured at: 

 amortised cost 
 fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), and 
 fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI).

The Council’s business model is to hold investments to collect contractual cash flows. 
Financial assets are therefore classified as amortised cost, except for those whose 
contractual payments are not solely payment of principal and interest (ie where the cash 
flows do not take the form of a basic debt instrument). 

Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost 
Financial assets measured at amortised cost are recognised on the Balance Sheet when 
the Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and 
are initially measured at fair value. They are subsequently measured at their amortised 
cost. Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) for interest receivable are 
based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for 
Statements the instrument. For most of the financial assets held by the Council, this 
means that the amount presented in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal 
receivable (plus accrued interest) and interest credited to the CIES is the amount 
receivable for the year in the loan agreement. 

Interest is credited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the 
CIES at a marginally higher effective rate of interest than the rate receivable from the 
voluntary organisations, with the difference serving to increase the amortised cost of the 
loan in the Balance Sheet. Statutory provisions require that the impact of soft loans on 
the General Fund Balance is the interest receivable for the financial year – the 
reconciliation of amounts debited and credited to the CIES to the net gain required 
against the General Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the Financial 
Instruments Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement. 

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of an asset are credited or debited 
to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the CIES. 

Expected Credit Loss Model 
The Council recognises expected credit losses on all of its financial assets held at 
amortised cost, either on a 12-month or lifetime basis. The expected credit loss model 
also applies to lease receivables and contract assets. Only lifetime losses are 
recognised for trade receivables (debtors) held by the Council. 

Impairment losses are calculated to reflect the expectation that the future cash flows 
might not take place because the borrower could default on their obligations. Credit risk 
plays a crucial part in assessing losses. Where risk has increased significantly since an 
instrument was initially recognised, losses are assessed on a lifetime basis. Where risk 
has not increased significantly or remains low, losses are assessed on the basis of 12-
month expected losses. 

131



Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Profit of Loss 
Financial assets that are measured at FVPL are recognised on the Balance Sheet when 
the Council becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and 
are initially measured and carried at fair value. Fair value gains and losses are 
recognised as they arrive in the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services. 

The fair value measurements of the financial assets are based on the following 
techniques: 

 instruments with quoted market prices – the market price 
 other instruments with fixed and determinable payments – discounted cash flow 

analysis. 

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the 
following three levels: 

 Level 1 inputs – quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets 
that the Council can access at the measurement date. 

 Level 2 inputs – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are 
observable for the asset, either directly or indirectly. 

 Level 3 inputs – unobservable inputs for the asset. 

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of the asset are credited or debited 
to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement. 

VIII. GOVERNMENT GRANTS & OTHER CONTRIBUTIONS 

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party 
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable 
assurance that:
 The Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and
 The grants or contributions will be received

Amounts recognised as due to the Council are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement until conditions attached to the grant or contributions have been 
satisfied. Conditions are stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service 
potentially embodied in the asset in the form of the grant or contribution are required to be 
consumed by the recipient as specified, or future economic benefits or service potential must 
be returned to the transferor.

Money advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are 
carried in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or 
contribution is credited to the relevant service line (attributable revenue grants and 
contributions) or Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income (non ring-fenced revenue grants 
and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

IX. HERITAGE ASSETS

Heritage assets are held or maintained principally for their contribution to knowledge and 
culture.   They are initially recognised at cost if this is available.   If cost is not available, values 
are only included in the Balance Sheet where the cost of obtaining valuation is not 

132



disproportionate to the benefit derived.  For most of the Council’s heritage assets, insurance 
valuations are used.  Where no market exists or the asset is deemed to be unique, and it is 
not practicable to obtain a valuation, the asset is not recognised in the Balance Sheet but 
disclosed in the notes to the accounts.

Heritage assets are depreciated over their useful life if this can be established.  If an asset is 
considered to have an indefinite life, no depreciation is charged.  Disposals, revaluation gains 
and losses and impairments of heritage assets are dealt with in accordance with the Council’s 
policies relating to property, plant and equipment.  

The cost of maintenance and repair of heritage assets is written off in the year incurred.

X. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are identifiable 
and controlled by the Council (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is expected that 
future economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the Council. 

Expenditure on the development of the Council’s website is not capitalised.  

Intangible Assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair 
value of the assets held by the Council can be determined by reference to an active market. 
In practice, no intangible asset held by the Council meets this criterion, and they are therefore 
carried at amortised cost. The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised over its 
useful life to the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the asset 
might be impaired – any losses recognised are posted to the relevant service line(s) in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any gains or losses arising on the 
disposal or abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure 
Line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes, 
amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an 
impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the 
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital 
Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts 
Reserve.

The useful life of intangible assets is assessed by the Chief Finance Officer at the time of 
acquisition.  Intangible assets are derecognised when no future economic benefits are 
expected from them.

XI. INTERESTS IN COMPANIES AD OTHER ENTITIES

The Council has a material interest in Gravitas Housing Limited, Invest SK and Environment 
SK.  The nature of these relationship has been assessed and they are deemed to be 
subsidiaries.  The Council is not currently required to produce group accounts on the grounds 
of materiality.

XII. INVENTORIES AND LONG TERM CONTRACTS

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 

133



Long term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the Surplus or Deficit on the 
provision of services with the value of works and services received under the contract during 
the financial year.  

XIII. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital 
appreciation. The definition is not met if property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of 
services or production of goods or is held for sale.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, being the 
price that would be received to sell such an asset in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. As a non-financial asset investment properties are 
measured at highest and best use. Properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually 
according to market conditions at the year end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to 
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement. The same treatment is applied to gains and losses on disposal. 

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and 
Investment Income line and result in a gain for the General Fund Balance. However, 
revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by statutory arrangements to have 
an impact on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of 
the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital 
Adjustment Account and (for any sale proceeds greater than £10,000) the Capital Receipts 
Reserve.

XIV. LEASES

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all 
the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the 
lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered 
separately for classification.

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset 
in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement 
is dependent on the use of specific assets

The Council as Lessee

Finance Leases:

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet 
at the commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the leases inception (or the 
present value of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by 
a liability for the obligation to pay the lessor e.g. payments net of financing costs. Initial direct 
costs of the Council are added to the carrying amount of the asset. Premiums paid on entry 
into the lease are applied to writing down the lease liability. Contingent rents are charged as 
expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

Lease payments are apportioned between:
 A charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property, plant or equipment – applied to 

write down the lease liability, and

134



 A finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line 
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the 
policies applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease 
term if this is shorter than the assets estimated useful life (where ownership of the asset does 
not transfer to the Council at the end of the lease period).

Operating Leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement as an expense of the services benefitting from use of the leased 
property, plant or equipment. Charges are made on a straight line basis over the life of the 
lease, even if this does not match the patterns of payments (e.g. there is a rent free period at 
the commencement of the lease).

The Council as Lessor

Finance Leases

Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, 
the relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal and replaced by a long-
term debtor in the Balance Sheet valued on the future income due under the finance lease. 

Operating Leases

Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, 
the asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating 
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made 
on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not match the pattern of 
payments (e.g. there is a premium paid at the commencement of the lease). 

XV. OVERHEADS AND SUPPORT SERVICES 

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to service segments in accordance 
with the Council’s arrangements for accountability and financial performance. 

XVI. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods 
and services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be 
used during more than one financial year are classified as Property Plant and Equipment. 

Recognition: 

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is 
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits 
or service potential associated with the item will flow to the Council, over more than one year 
and that the cost of the item can be measured reliably.  Expenditure that maintains but does 
not add to an assets potential to deliver future economic benefits or service potential (i.e. 
repairs and maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred.  

135



The Council has a de-minimis of £10,000 for capital expenditure, with the exception of the 
purchase of motor vehicles.  Where the total cost of an asset is higher than £10,000 but only 
part of the expenditure has occurred within a financial year that expenditure would be included 
in the balance sheet even if it was below the de minimis level. 

Measurement

Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:

 the purchase price
 any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to 

be capable of operating in the manner intended by management

The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred while assets are under construction.

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the 
acquisition does not have commercial substance (i.e. it will not lead to a variation in the cash 
flows of the Council). In the latter case, where an asset is acquired via an exchange, the cost 
of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by the Council.

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:
 Dwellings – current value determined using the basis of existing use value for social 

housing (EUV-SH).  The social housing discount applied in 2019/20 is 42%.
 Community assets and assets under construction –  historic cost. 
 Plant, Vehicles & Equipment – depreciated historical cost
 All other classes of assets – current value, unless there is no market-based evidence of 

fair value because of the specialist nature of the asset.  In this case fair value is estimated 
using the Depreciated Replacement Cost method.

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at current value are re-valued where there have been 
material changes in the value, but as a minimum every five years.  Valuations of property 
assets are carried out by the District Valuer, an external, qualified valuer, who is independent 
of the Council. The method of valuations is as recommended by CIPFA and in accordance 
with the principles and guidance notes issued by the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors.   
Operational assets constructed or acquired during the year will be re-valued on 31 March of 
the following year.  

Increases as a result of revaluations are debited to the appropriate asset account, with the 
opposite entry going to the Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains, except to the 
extent where it reverses a previous revaluation loss that was charged to a service revenue 
account within the Comprehensive Income & Expenditure Statement.  In this case the 
revaluation gain will first be used to offset the previous loss and any further gain is then taken 
to the Revaluation Reserve.  Revaluation gains charged to Surplus or Deficit on Provision of 
Services are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account and reported in the Movement in 
Reserves Statement.

Decreases as a result of revaluation, which are not specific to one asset but affect several, 
are revaluation losses as opposed to impairments.  The decrease is recognised in the 
Revaluation Reserve up to the balance in respect of each asset affected and then in Surplus 
or Deficit on Provision of Services.   Any such charge taken to Surplus or Deficit on Provision 
of Services is then transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account and reported in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement.

136



The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the 
date of its formal implementation.  Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into 
the Capital Adjustment Account.

Impairment

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may 
be impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be 
material, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the 
carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by:

 Where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, 
the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up to the amount of 
the accumulated gains)

 Where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the 
carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service line(s) in the 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, 

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant 
service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of 
the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not 
been recognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment assets by the systematic 
allocation of their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets 
without a determinable finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain Community Assets) and 
assets that are not yet available for use (i.e. assets under construction).

Depreciation is calculated on the following bases:

 Land is not depreciated as it will not have a finite life.

 Council Dwellings and Other Buildings are depreciated using the straight line method. The 
finite useful life is assessed by the District Valuer at the time of revaluation but for Council 
Dwellings is usually 50 years, and for other buildings is between 1 and 60 years.

 Plant and Equipment are also depreciated by the straight line method. Useful life is 
assessed by the Chief Finance Officer at the time of acquisition, usually between 3 and 10 
years.  Some assets have a longer life span, up to 30 years.  

 Vehicles are depreciated using the reducing balance method at a rate of 25% per annum.

 Non-current assets held-for sale are not depreciated.

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major components whose cost is 
significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately.

Revaluation gains are also depreciated with an amount equal to the difference between 
current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been 

137



chargeable based on their historic cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation 
Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account. 

Componentisation

Only assets with a carrying amount more than or equal to £500,000 at the beginning of the 
financial year are considered for componentisation.  To be recognised as a component the 
value of the part of the asset being considered must be more than or equal to 10% of the value 
of the asset, and have a life less than or equal to half that of the main asset.  When a 
component is replaced, the carrying amount of the old component is derecognised and the 
new component is recognised. If the carrying amount of the old component is not known, this 
is estimated by indexing back from the cost of the new component and adjusting for 
depreciation and impairment over the old component’s useful life.  The Building Costs Index 
will be used.

The depreciation calculated is charged to the service revenue accounts, central support 
service accounts and trading accounts. 

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between 
current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been 
chargeable based on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation 
Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Disposals and Non-current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally 
through a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is classified as an Asset 
Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at 
the lower of this amount and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease 
to a fair value less costs to sell, the loss is posted in the Other Operating Expenditure line in 
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure statement. Gains in fair value are recognised 
only up to the amount of any previous losses recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision 
of Services. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are 
reclassified back to non-current assets and valued at the lower of their carrying amount before 
they were classified as held for sale; adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations 
that would have been recognised had they not been classified as Held for Sale, and their 
recoverable amount at the date of the decision not to sell.

Assets that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held for Sale.

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the 
Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off 
to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any) are credited 
to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the 
gain or loss on disposal (i.e. netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of 
disposal). Any revaluation gains accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are 
transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Amounts for a disposal in excess of £10,000 are categorised as capital receipts. A proportion 
of receipts related to housing disposals is payable to the Government. The balance of receipts 
remains within the Capital Receipts Reserve and can then only be used for new capital 

138



investment or set aside to reduce the Council’s underlying need to borrow (the capital 
financing requirement). 

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of non-current 
assets is fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. 

XVII. PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Provisions 

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or 
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or 
service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive 
Income and Expenditure Statement that the Council becomes aware of the obligation, and are 
measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle 
the obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance 
Sheet. Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year - where it 
becomes less than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a 
lower settlement than anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the 
relevant service.

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered 
from another party (e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the 
relevant service if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the obligation is 
settled.

The council has made a provision for settling the self-insured element of Public Liability 
insurance claims.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible 
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain 
future events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent liabilities also arise in 
circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not probable that 
an outflow of resources will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured 
reliably.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the 
accounts.

Contingent Assets

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible 
asset whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain 
future events not wholly within the control of the Council.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the 
accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benefits or service 
potential.

139



XVIII. RESERVES

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover 
contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund 
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a 
reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in that year to score against the 
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement. The reserve is then transferred back into the General Fund Balance in the 
Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against council tax for the 
expenditure.  

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes e.g. for non-current assets, 
retirement and employee benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Council – 
these reserves are explained in the relevant policies.

XIX. REVENUE EXPENDITURE FUNDED FROM CAPITAL UNDER STATUTE

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but 
does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the 
relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year.   Where 
the Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources 
or by borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General Fund 
Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged so that 
there is no impact on the level of council tax.

XX. VAT 

VAT is included as an expense only to the extent that it is not recoverable from Her Majesty’s 
Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is excluded from income.

XXI. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Council measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus assets and investment 
properties at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to 
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants 
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell 
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or 

liability.

The council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that market 
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants 
act in their economic best interest.

When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the council takes into account a market 
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best 
use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and 
best use.

140



PSAA, 18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ
www.psaa.co.uk Company number: 09178094

I am writing to notify you of your 2020/21 audit scale fee. In previous years your auditor 
has been required to write to you to do this. However, going forward, we have agreed 
with the audit firms that it is more efficient for PSAA to write out to all bodies directly. 

PSAA commissions auditors to provide audits that are compliant with the National 
Audit Office’s Code of Audit Practice (‘the Code’). PSAA is required by s16 of the 
Local Audit (Appointing Person) Regulations 2015 (the Regulations) to set the scale 
fees by the start of the financial year, and we published the 2020/21 scale fees on our 
website on 31 March 2020. In addition to notifying you directly of your scale fee, this 
letter provides you with key updates and information on audit matters in these difficult 
times. 

We wrote to all S151 officers on 12 December 2019 describing that local audit and 
audit more widely is subject to a great deal of turbulence with significant pressures on 
fees.  These pressures still apply and the key aspects are summarised below;

 It is apparent that the well publicised challenges facing the auditing profession 
following a number of significant financial failures in the private sector have 
played a part. As you know, these high profile events have led the Government 
to commission three separate reviews - Sir John Kingman has reviewed audit 
regulation, the Competition and Markets Authority has reviewed the audit 
market, and Sir Donald Brydon has reviewed the audit product. 

 It is not yet clear what the long term implications of these reviews will be. 
However, the immediate impact is clear - significantly greater pressure on firms 
to deliver higher quality audits by requiring auditors to demonstrate greater 
professional scepticism when carrying out their work across all sectors – and 
this includes local audit. This has resulted in auditors needing to exercise 
greater challenge to the areas where management makes judgements or relies 
upon advisers, for example, in relation to estimates and related assumptions 
within the accounts. As a result, audit firms have updated their work 
programmes and reinforced their internal processes and will continue to do so 
to enable them to meet the current expectations.

 30 April 2020

              Email generalenquiries@psaa.co.uk

 

 By email

Dear Section 151 Officer and Audit Committee Chair

 Fee Scale for the Audit 2020/21 and update on 2019/20

141

Appendix B

http://www.psaa.co.uk/


2

How we set your scale fee

We consulted on the 2020/21 Scale of Fees in early 2020 and received a total of 54 
responses. We published the final document on our website (Scale fee document). In 
it we explained that although we have set the scale audit fee at the same level as for 
2019/20, we do not expect the final audit fee to remain at that level for most if not all 
bodies because of a variety of change factors, the impact of which cannot be 
accurately or reliably estimated at this stage. 

The impact of these changes is likely to vary between bodies depending on local 
circumstances, and information to determine that impact with any certainty is not yet 
available. Our view is that it would also be inappropriate to apply a standard increase 
to all authorities given the differing impact of these changes between bodies. As the 
impact of these changes is understood, fee variations will need to be identified and 
agreed reflecting the impact on each audit

Scale fee for the audit 
2020/21

Scale fee for the audit
2019/20

South Kesteven District 
Council

£36,400 £36,400

As well as the Scale of Fees document, we have also produced a Q&A which provides 
detailed responses to the questions raised as part of the consultation. We will update 
the Q&As periodically to take account of ongoing developments affecting scale fees.

The fee for the audit is based on certain assumptions and expectations which are set 
out in the Statement of Responsibilities. This statement serves as the formal terms of 
engagement between appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where 
the different responsibilities of auditors and of the audited body begin and end, and 
what is to be expected of both in certain areas. 

The final fee for the audit will reflect the risk-based approach to audit planning as set 
out in the Code. Under the Code, auditors tailor their work to reflect local 
circumstances and their assessment of audit risk. This is achieved by assessing the 
significant financial and operational risks facing an audited body, and the 
arrangements it has put in place to manage those risks, as well as considering any 
changes affecting audit responsibilities or financial reporting standards.

Fee Variations

As noted above, we recognise that with so much turbulence and change in the local 
audit environment, additional fee variations are likely to arise for most if not all bodies. 

142

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-fees/2020-21-audit-fee-scale/
https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-fees/2020-21-audit-fee-scale/frequently-asked-questions/
https://www.psaa.co.uk/managing-audit-quality/statement-of-responsibilities-of-auditors-and-audited-bodies/


3

The amount of work required on arrangements to secure VFM is a matter of auditor 
judgement and is based on the requirements set out in the new Code and supporting 
guidance which will be published later in 2020. Once the Auditor Guidance Notes have 
been published we will be able to consider the impact of the new requirements in more 
depth, and may be able to provide indicative ranges in relation to the likely fee 
implications for different types and classes of body.

Given that local circumstances at each audited body are key to determining the 
assessment of risk and the audit work required, we would encourage early dialogue 
with your auditor to determine any related implications for fees.  The process for 
agreeing fee variations begins with local communication, and ideally agreement. We 
have produced a fee variation process note which is available on our website (Fee 
variations process). Please note that all fee variations are required to be approved by 
PSAA before they can be invoiced. 

Quality of Audit Services

We are committed to do all we can to ensure good quality audits and a high-quality 
service for the bodies that have opted into our arrangements. The service that you can 
expect to receive from your auditors is set out in their Method Statement, which is 
available from your auditors.

Whilst professional regulation and contractual compliance are important components 
of the arrangements for a quality audit service, so too is the aspect of relationship 
management. We recently commissioned a survey via the LGA Research team to 
obtain audited bodies’ views of the audit service provided to them. The themes and 
improvement areas from the survey will be discussed with firm contact partners for 
development at a local level. The results from our 2018/19 survey of all opted-in bodies 
will be available on our website in May and we will notify all S151 officers and Audit 
Committee Chairs.

Impact of COVID-19 on current 2019/20 audits

The global COVID-19 pandemic has created further turbulence impacting on all 
aspects of the economy including the public sector. There are potentially significant 
repercussions for the delivery of audits, audit-related issues and delays to signing 
audit opinions for 2019/20.  MHCLG has acted to ease these pressures by providing 
more flexibility in the 2019/20 accounts preparation and auditing timetable by 
temporarily revising the Accounts and Audit Regulations. This has extended the period 
which an authority has to publish its draft financial statements until 31 August, and 
importantly there is much greater flexibility for the public inspection period as it is now 
required to start on or before the first working day of September 2020. The revised 
date for publishing audited accounts (if available) is 30 November 2020.

We recommend that you discuss with your auditors the use that can be made of this 
flexibility in meeting mutual governance and assurance responsibilities, noting that in 
a letter to all local authority Chief Executives on 22 April, MHCLG encouraged 
approval of pre-audit accounts earlier than 31 August if possible. 

143

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-fees/
https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-fees/


4

We have referred to the importance of audit quality in this letter, and just as important 
is the quality of the pre-audit financial statements and the working papers that are 
prepared by bodies. The disruption caused by COVID-19 will impact on areas of 
judgement and creates uncertainty in preparation of the financial statements, and it is 
key that bodies ensure there is sufficient focus upon financial reporting and related 
processes and controls, and that the planned timetable allows for sufficient internal 
quality assurance and review of financial reporting issues taking into account the wider 
impact of the pandemic on the officers’ time.

Local Audit Quality Forum

Our Local Audit Quality Forum focuses on providing information to support audit 
committees (or equivalent) in delivering their remit effectively. We are disappointed 
that we are not able to host our planned event this summer due to the COVID-19 
pandemic. However, we plan to host our next event towards the end of the year. It will 
provide an opportunity to discuss a range of relevant topics and themes. If there are 
any particular areas you would like to see included on a future agenda, or if you wish 
to raise any other issues with PSAA, please feel free to contact us at 
generalenquiries@psaa.co.uk

Your auditor will, of course, be best placed to answer any questions you may have 
with regard to your audit. 

Yours sincerely,

Tony Crawley

Chief Executive

144

mailto:generalenquiries@psaa.co.uk


Governance and Audit 
Committee
21 May 2020

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes
Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Resources

        

Risk Management Framework - proposed changes  
This report is a follow up to the report presented to Governance and Audit Committee in December 
2019. At the request of Committee this report further details the proposed changes to the Risk 
Management Framework, which is due for a review in 2020-21, and provides further detail of the 
move from a Corporate Risk Register to a Strategic Risk Register.

Report Author

Tracey Elliott, Governance & Risk Officer

 01476 406038

 t.elliott@southkesteven.gov.uk

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards:

Administrative Administrative All Wards

Reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Financial Services 28 February 2020

Approved by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 2 March 2020

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Resources 3 March 2020

Recommendation to the decision maker

1. The Governance and Audit Committee is asked to note the contents of this report 
and approve the adoption of the Strategic Risks detailed at Appendix B.

145

Agenda Item 10

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


1 The Background to the Report
1.1 At the December meeting of Governance and Audit Committee, Members expressed 

concern about moving from a Corporate Risk Register to a Strategic Risk Register and 
requested assurance that those corporate risks would not be lost.  

1.2 Appendix A details how the Corporate Risks will be captured within the strategic risks.  
Through mapping Corporate Risks with Strategic Risks it can be demonstrated that there is 
a high correlation between the two. The table within Appendix A highlights where the existing 
Corporate Risks will reside as part of the cause or driver of the newly formed Strategic Risks.  

Appendix B captures the proposed Strategic Risks and details the risk driver, the effect if 
the risk is not managed and the risk appetite. If this document is approved it will form the 
basis of the new Strategic Risk Register which will be presented back to Committee at a 
future meeting.

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny
2.1 Governance and Audit Committee are asked to approve the adoption of a Strategic Risk 

Register, the contents of which are captured as Appendix B. 

3 Reasons for the Recommendation
3.1 Governance and Audit Committee, as part of its terms of reference, is required to monitor 

and review the risk management arrangements in place and the activities that are being 
undertaken to mitigate those risks.

4 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision
4.1 N/A

5 Financial Implications 
5.1 These are contained within the report where appropriate.

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance

6 Legal and Governance Implications 
6.1 One of the areas for the Committee as part of its terms of reference is to monitor and review 

the risk management arrangements in place and activities that are being undertaken in order 
to mitigate those risks. The Risk Management Framework therefore provides details of the 
risk environment within which the Council operates and the controls and mechanisms that 
are in place to ensure risk is sufficiently managed by officers and members. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Director of Law and Governance

7 Equality and Safeguarding Implications 
7.1 None.

8 Risk and Mitigation
8.1 None.

9 Community Safety Implications 
9.1 None.

146



10 Background Papers
10.1 None.

11 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 
Council’s declaration of a ‘climate emergency’?
The recommendation is carbon neutral.

12 Appendices
12.1 Appendix A - Mapping of Corporate Risks to Strategic Risks/Risk Appetite

12.2 Appendix B - Strategic Risks

Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required)

Not required

Previously Considered by: Governance and 
Audit Committee

18 December 2019

Report Timeline: 

Final Decision date  21 May 2020

147



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A – Mapping of Corporate Risks to Strategic Risks
Through mapping Corporate Risks with Strategic Risks it can be demonstrated where there is a high correlation between the two.  The table below 
highlights where the existing Corporate Risks will reside as part of the cause or driver of the newly formed Strategic Risks.  Corporate Risks 1, 2 and 5 are 
specifically considered as part of the Council’s Annual Assurance Statement exercise with Heads of Service.

Existing corporate risks

Correlation between 
Corporate Risks 
and proposed
Strategic Risks

1.  Maintaining an 
effective internal 
control environment 
(able to mitigate 
against material 
failure)

2. Ensuring ongoing 
resilience and quality 
in third parties ie 
partners, major 
providers, suppliers 
etc

3. Achieving future 
financial resilience

4. Building a suitable 
level of capacity, skills 
and culture within 
the Council 
workforce to achieve 
the change expected, 
whilst also still 
delivering business as 
usual

5. Ensuring robust 
security measures to 
protect the Council’s 
data and assets from 
cyber threats

Enabling community 
transformation High High

Achieving Council 
transformation High High High High High

Efficient and effective internal 
control/compliance  High High High High

Ensuring financial resilience High High High

Creating the right culture, 
capacity and capability  High High

Ability to be agile and shift 
focus in response to policy and 
national political change 

High High High

149



150



Appendix B – Strategic Risks

1. Enabling community transformation

Risk Driver:

Creating safe, vibrant and supportive communities is a core role of the Council.  The Council holds a unique position with the ability to act as 
a catalyst for this purpose drawing together individuals, neighbourhoods, agencies and business to transform communities. 

The Council does not want to position itself solely as the provider of services but be the mechanism that drives others to do so and provides 
steerage via the role of members who have a unique insight in to the needs of the District’s communities.  This might be in a coordination, 
strategy, financing/funding access role or a voice, as well as attracting investment, to name but just some of the enabling activities.

This provides the Council the opportunity to think innovatively in conjunction with its communities to achieve a greater return through 
connectivity both physical, emotional and technological.  This risk should be considered as a driver of innovation and opportunity to achieve 
community improvement rather than a risk that needs to be managed in such a way that transformation envisaged is not achieved. 

This risk is closely aligned with much of the Council transformation Risk 2, ensuring financial resilience Risk 4, creating the right culture Risk 5 
and ability to be agile and respond to political change Risk 6.

Effects of risk if not managed:

 Households and businesses are not attracted to the district
 Unlikely to attract investment from government, agencies etc
 Increased demands on Council resources undermining future financial sustainability
 Council deemed ineffective by public – reputation damage

Risk appetite:  

Open – Willing to consider all potential options recognising that there will be risk exposure

151



2. Achieving Council transformation

Risk Driver:

The Council has entered a period of significant change and transformation, from back office through to front end delivery. 

This transformation will include (but not be limited to):

 harnessing better the use of technology and digital platforms
 agile and flexible workforce that is managed by outcomes and delivery 
 physical changes ie buildings, assets usage etc as well as virtual interactions
 working as part of a collaboration, partnership and joint venture involving other entities, both in the public sector, third sector and private 

sector

All for the purpose of making the Council viable and sustainable as well as efficient, effective and economic.  This risk should be considered 
as a driver of innovation and opportunity to achieve continuous improvement rather than a risk that needs to be managed in such a way that 
transformation envisaged is not achieved. 

This risk is closely related to Risk 5 which focusses on the creation of the right culture and the development of capacity and capability to drive 
the transformation process. 

Effects of risk if not managed:

 Inefficiency and likely increasing costs, threatening future financial resilience
 Service delivery is ineffective – sub optimal outcomes
 Council is not recognised as a key player and considered unattractive by prospective partners and employees 
 Council deemed ineffective by public – reputation damage

Risk appetite:  

Open – Willing to consider all potential options recognising that there will be risk exposure

152



3. Ensuring efficient and effective internal control/compliance 

Risk Driver:

This risk focuses on the potential for failure of the Council’s core internal control (and governance) framework but leading to a significant loss 
ie financial and otherwise eg H&S failing. 

In effect the Council should be able to mitigate such a risk through rigorous review of design and application of the controls, hence ensuring 
that internal audit and other assurance activities are appropriately focussed. 

The Council is entering a changing phase including changes in behaviour, management structure, working styles and culture which will require 
a flexible and adaptive internal control environment.

The ramifications of a significant control risk failure are substantial, not only with regard to the loss but often the rectification costs post 
event, including financial and reputational.

Effects of risk if not managed:

 Unexpected remedial costs as a result of the failure which may be financial, injury or death of employees, service users, public etc
 Qualified external/internal audit opinion – concerns over those charged with governance and their ability to manage public resources 

effectively
 Council’s ability to transform is slowed
 Reputation damage

Risk Appetite:  

Minimal – Ultra safe leading to only minimum risk exposure

153



4. Ensuring financial resilience

Risk Driver:

This risk relates to the Council being unable to properly execute and achieve its Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP). 

The Council is developing a coherent and sustainable response to the forecasted reductions in funding over the medium term.  The successful 
transformation of the Council will not only impact on the Council outlook and culture ie a council that makes good evidenced based decisions 
and gets things done but will also have a significant impact on the Council finances. 

The current budget incorporates budgeted savings and delivery of income streams which need to be managed and realised to ensure that 
balanced budgets can be achieved without any reliance on the use of reserves. 

This risk is also closely linked to the delivery of the Council transformation agenda and is reliant on ensuring that the Council has available 
suitable skills and experiences to support initiatives.

Effects of risk if not managed:

 Loss of financial agility – transformation slowed/halted
 Council placed in special measures and under intervention
 Service delivery is ineffective – sub optimal outcomes
 Council is not recognised as a key player and considered unattractive by prospective partners and employees 
 Council deemed ineffective by public – reputation damage

Risk Appetite:  

Cautious – Preference for safe though accept there will be some risk exposure

154



5. Creating the right culture, capacity and capability 

Risk Driver:

This risk relates to the Council being unable to successfully achieve the level of change expected and required by the Council leaders and 
stakeholders.  In creating the change will come a new culture and outlook that is described as “agile” and “outcome focussed” ie we do what 
we say we will.  

Key to the above will be ensuring that: 

 The Council keeps under close watch recruitment, talent development and retention, as well as use of external specialists where necessary 
 Partnership and collaborative working is optimised 
 An appropriate operating environment and culture is created that will enable the necessary changes to occur – this may require a review 

of constitutional policies and procedures and a re-assessment of risk appetite at all levels in the Council, specifically members
 Member/officer mind sets are aligned regards the change initiatives enabling the appropriate cultural change

Effects of risk if not managed:

 Service delivery is ineffective – sub optimal outcomes
 Inefficiencies created
 Council is not recognised as a key player and considered unattractive by prospective partners and existing/prospective employees 
 Council deemed ineffective by public – reputation damage

Risk appetite:  

Open – Willing to consider all potential options recognising that there will be risk exposure

155



6. Ability to be agile and shift focus in response to policy and national political change

Risk Driver:

This risk relates to the Council being unable to identify, interpret and act on/respond to political and policy change and therefore best position 
itself to maximise on opportunities that this may present or to mitigate risks that may emerge as a result and impact on existing plans and 
strategies. 

The UK is still transitioning through Brexit of which there is still large scale uncertainty at a macro level and how this may translate at a local 
level both economically and socially, for communities, business and the Council itself.  Similar is the outcomes of the recent election with the 
Government embarking on its future path which is intrinsically linked with Brexit.  In addition, there are a number of changes in other public 
sector bodies which will or could impact on the Council/Communities.  The Council needs to be well positioned to have early sight of these 
and potential implications.

This risk could also affect Risks 1, 2 and 4.

Effects of risk if not managed:

 Missed opportunities to advantage the district 
 Inefficiency as the Council is forced to respond/retrofit 
 The Council is not recognised as a key player or contributor either locally, regionally or nationally 
 Council deemed ineffective by public – reputation damage

Risk appetite:  

Open – Willing to consider all potential options recognising that there will be risk exposure

156



Governance and Audit Committee Draft Work Plan 2020-21

Item Current Issues/Status Meeting Date Outcome Sought

External Audit Plan Overview of the planned scope and timing of 
the statutory audit of the final accounts and 
the Value for Money work for the financial 
year 2019/20.

The Committee to accept the 2019/20 External 
Audit Plan appended to the report. 

Internal Audit Progress Report Update from the Council’s Internal Auditors. To review and note the contents of the report.

Internal Audit Annual Report Annual report on the audit work undertaken 
during the 2019/20 period.

To review and note the contents of the report. 

Internal Audit Plan Update on the Plan for 2020/21. To review and consider approving the Internal 
Audit Plan for 2020/21.

Statement of Accounting 
Policies

Annual report prior to the preparation of the 
Statement of Accounts to ensure that the 
policies are up to date and in line with the 
CIPFA Code of Practice.

To consider approving the Statement of 
Accounting Policies.

Risk Management Framework – 
proposed changes

This report is a follow up to the report 
presented in December 2019.  At the request 
of Committee the report further details the 
move from a Corporate Risk Register to a 
Strategic Risk Register.

4 June 2020

To consider approving the proposed move from 
a Corporate Risk Register to a Strategic Risk 
Register.

Internal Audit Progress Report Update from the Council’s Internal Auditors. To review and note the contents of the report.

Internal Audit Follow-up Report Report of follow up progress made to 
implement any previously agreed 
management actions.

To review and note the contents of the report.

Draft Financial Outturn Detail of the Council’s outturn position for the 
financial year 2019/20.

To review the contents of the report and 
consider approving any reserve movements, 
Capital slippages and creation of reserves.

Health and Safety Annual 
Report

Report to give an overview of the health and 
safety management arrangements within 
South Kesteven District Council and identify 
key areas of focus. 

Not before June 
2020- date to be 

confirmed (subject to 
change in line with 
service needs and 

government 
guidance) To review and note the contents of the report.

157

A
genda Item

 11



Governance and Audit Committee Draft Work Plan 2020-21

Item Current Issues/Status Meeting Date Outcome Sought

Risk Management and 
Business Continuity Annual 
Report

Review of the risk management 
arrangements and mitigations in place and 
annual update of service level business 
continuity plans.

To review and note the contents of the report. 

Risk Management Framework Review revisions to the Risk Management 
Framework.

To review and consider approving the Risk 
Management Framework.

Strategic Risk Register The Strategic Risk Register is presented to 
the Committee twice a year as part of the 
monitoring and review of the risk 
management arrangements.

Not before June 
2020- continued

To review and consider approving the Strategic 
Risk Register.

External Audit Annual 
Governance Report

Report outlining the key findings arising from 
the statutory audit of South Kesteven District 
Council.

To review and note the contents of the report.

Statement of Accounts – Final The Statement of Accounts, including the 
Annual Governance Statement, must be 
approved each year by the statutory 
deadline after. 

To approve the 2019/20 Statement of Accounts 
and their publication on the Council’s website. 

Treasury Management Annual 
Report

Report providing details of the Council’s 
treasury management activity for the 
financial year 2019/20.

July 2020- date to be 
confirmed (subject to 
change in line with 
service needs and 

government 
guidance) To review and note the contents of the report.

Internal Audit Progress Report Update from the Council’s Internal Auditors. To review and note the contents of the report.

Counter Fraud Annual Report Report to review the counter fraud 
arrangements in place and the activities that 
are being undertaken to mitigate those risks.

To review the contents of the report and 
consider approving the proposed workplan for 
2020/21.

Counter Fraud Strategy A review of the Council’s counter fraud 
arrangements on a biennial basis.

To approve the Counter Fraud Strategy.

Ombudsman Annual Report Annual review of complaints received and 
decisions made from the Local
Government Ombudsman Letter.

September 2020- 
date to be confirmed 
(subject to change in 

line with service 
needs and 

government 
guidance) To review and note the contents of the report.

158



Governance and Audit Committee Draft Work Plan 2020-21

Item Current Issues/Status Meeting Date Outcome Sought

Safeguarding Annual Report An overview of the Council’s involvement in 
the safeguarding of children, young people 
and vulnerable adults for
2019/20.

September 2020
continued

To review and note the contents of the report.

Internal Audit Progress Report Update from the Council’s Internal Auditors. To review and note the contents of the report.

Strategic Risk Register The Strategic Risk Register is presented to 
the Committee twice a year as part of the 
monitoring and review of the risk 
management arrangements.

To review and consider approving the Strategic 
Risk Register.

Treasury Management Mid-
Year Review

Update on treasury and debt management 
operations during the financial year.

December 2020- date 
to be confirmed 

(subject to change in 
line with service 

needs and 
government 
guidance) To review and note the contents of the report.

External Audit Plan Overview of the planned scope and timing of
the statutory audit of the final accounts and 
the Value for Money work in respect of the 
financial year 2020/21.

To consider accepting the External Audit Plan.

Internal Audit Progress Report Update from the Council’s Internal Auditors. To review and note the contents of the report.

Internal Audit Follow Up Report Report to follow up progress made to 
implement any previously agreed 
management actions.

To review and note the contents of the report.

Internal Audit Strategy and Plan Update on the Strategy and Plan for 
2020/21.

To review and consider approving the Internal 
Audit Plan for 2020/21.

Review of Effectiveness and 
Terms of Reference

Biennial review of the Committee’s Terms of 
Reference.

To consider the Committee’s work over the 
previous two municipal years and suggest 
changes to the Terms of Reference if 
necessary.

Statement of Accounting 
Policies

Annual report prior to the preparation of the 
Statement of Accounts to ensure that the 
policies are up to date and in line with the 
CIPFA Code of Practice.

March 2021- date to 
be confirmed (subject 
to change in line with 

service needs and 
government 
guidance)

To consider approving the Statement of 
Accounting Policies.

159



Governance and Audit Committee Draft Work Plan 2020-21

Item Current Issues/Status Meeting Date Outcome Sought
External Audit Ad hoc reporting

Code of Corporate Governance

Regulatory policies e.g. 
Contract and Procurement 
Procedure Rules, Code of 
Conduct

Financial Regulations

Treasury Management Strategy

As required

160


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 18 December 2019
	5 External Audit Plan
	6 Internal Audit Progress Report
	7 Internal Audit Annual Report
	8 Internal Audit Plan 2020/21
	9 2019/20 Accounting Policies and changes to the deadline for the publication of the Statement of Accounts
	2019-20 ACCOUNTING POLICIES Appx A
	2019-20 Public Sector appt letter Appendix B

	10 Risk Management Framework - proposed changes
	Appendix A - Mapping of Corporate Risks to Strategic Risks
	Appendix B - Strategic Risks

	11 Work Programme



